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Dear New Resident,

Welcome to Clarksburg Ridge! We hope you will enjoy living in and contributing to the
Clarksburg Ridge community. We are writing to introduce ourselves and provide you with a
summary of some of the basics about living in Clarksburg Ridge.

-

As you may know, a Homeowners Association (HOA) governs this neighborhood. Whether
you are an owner or a renter, you should have received a copy of all HOA documents at
closing or from your landlord. Please read these documents so that you will be aware of the
covenants and guidelines for properties within Clarksburg Ridge.

If you are an owner, there is a monthly HOA fee and you will get a monthly statement from our
property manager with the amount due. You can also sign up for direct debit and have the fee
deducted from your bank account each month. The direct debit enrollment form can be
downloaded from our website. Shireen Ambush of Abaris Realty is our property manager and
she can be reached at (301) 468-8919 or sambush(@abarisrealty.com for all questions about our
neighborhood. You may also visit our community website at www clarksburgridge.org. for
additional information.

Garbage pick-up is on Wednesday and Saturday mornings. Garbage needs to be in a garbage
can/container and should be stored out of sight, except for the day of pick-up and the evening
before.

Recycle pielc-up is also on Wednesday for paper, glass and plastic. Call the county at 240-777-
6410 for a recycle bin if you do not already have one.

We have an active social comimittee with numerous events throughout the year. Past events
have included a community picnic/barbecue, a movie night, Halloween events, and an Ice
Cream Social.

We recognize that you may want to upgrade your home and we encourage it, but please be sure
to get prior approval from the Architectural Review Committee. The approval form can be
downloaded from our website. In addition, the Architectural Review Commuittee has developed
standards and guidelines for many common projects, including storm doors and decks. Any
modifications must conform to these guidelines and standards. You should have received a
copy of these guidelines with the HOA covenants at closing or from your fandlord.

Part of your HOA fees contribute to the maintenance of community common areas-—including
mowing and fertilization of grass, including the arca between the sidewalk and the curbs, and
around the town homes. Owners of single-family homes, however, are responsible for
maintaining their own lawns,

In the winter, the HOA will have the alleys plowed and the common area sidewalks shoveled.
Smgle-family homeowners are responsible for shoveling the sidewalks adjacent to their
property, The main streets in our community are plowed and maintained by the County.

We have 3 tot-lots in the neighborhood for the little ones. These tot-lots are open from dawn to
dusk.




Our neighborhood Board of Directors and committees rely on volunteers anéd we welcome your
participation. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact Shireen Ambush or any of
the Board members. Again, welcome to the community.

Sincerely,

Clarksburg Ridge Board of Directors







CLARKSBURG RIDGE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.
: ADMINISTRATIVE RESOLUTION NO. 1~
COLLECTIONS - LATE FEES AND INTEREST

In accordance with Article 8, Sections 3 and as recorded in the Clarksburg Ridge Homeowners
Association BYLAWS and the Articles of Incorporation, the Board of Directors of the
Clarksburg Ridge Homeowners Association, Inc. hereby proposes the following resolution for
immediate adoption as part of its assessment collection policy.

That subject to applicable law. the Association may charge a reasonable late fee of ($15.00) and
up to the maximum rate of interest permitted under the laws of the State of Marviand.

The late fee charge may not be imposed more than once for the same delinquent payment and
may only be imposed if the delinguency has continued for at least 15 calendar days.

This policy is also in Accordance with Section 111B-112.1 of the Maryland Homeowners
Association Act,

This resolution is to be approved at the 6/22/05 Board Meeting by The Board of Directors of
The Clarksburg Ridge Home Owners Association and will take effect on August 1, 2005. Late
fees will be charged for Late pavments of the August 2005 HOA Fee.




CLARKSBURG RIDGE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION; INC.
EQUITY RESOLUTION NO.1
MAINTENANCE OF GRASS HEIGHT

Grass on the individual lots must be cut/trimmed before it grows to a hei ght in excess of 6".
When grass on a lot grows higher than 6", the association will send the lot owner a written notice
to the property address to cut the grass no later than 7 days after the notice is sent. If grass is not
cut within the time allowed, or within any extension of time the association agrees to, then the
association may cut the grass and assess the lot owner for all costs involved pursuant to
Declaration of Covenants, Article 11, Section 11.1. The association may also, or in the

alternative, elect to fine the lot owner and pursue any other remedies legally available,
concurrently or individually.

This resolution is to be adopted at the June 22, 2005 Board of Directors Meeting and will go into
effect on August 1, 2005
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To the Board of Directors of
Ciarkshurg Ridge Homeowners Association, Inc.
Clarkshurg, Marytand

We have audited the accompanying Balance Sheets of Clarksburg Ridge Homeowners
Association, Inc. as of December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, and the related Statements
of Income, Members’ Equity, and Cash Flows for the years then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Asscciation’s management. Our responsibility is to
axpress an opinion on these financial statements based on our audiis.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit fo obtain
reasonable assurance aboul whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
sigrificant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Clarksburg Ridge Homeowners Association, Inc. as of December 31;
2011 and December 31, 2010 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generaily accepted in the United States of
America.

The Supplementary Information on Future Major Repairs and Replacements is not a required
part of the basic financial statements of Clarksburg Ridge Homeowners Association, inc., but is
supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of
inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion
on it,

DAO Tt asl Allen . r e )

May 15, 2012

622 West Patrick Street | Frederick, MD 21701} 301.695.1040 ph § 301.695.1098 fx
8311 Colesville Road, Suite 5 § Silver Spring, MD 20910-4327 § 301.562.0303 ph P 301.562.4111 fx
2911-E Route 108 { Olney, MD 20832 | 301.260.9770 ph | 301.260.9772 fx




Clarksburg Ridge Homeowners Association, Inc.
Balance Sheets
December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010

2011 2010
ASSETS
Cash - Operating $ 10,236 § 13,083
Cash - Investments (Note E) 138,795 117,469
Assessments Receivable - Net (Note B) 12,263 12,823
Accrued Interest - 278
Prepaid Expenses 1,870 1,502
Income Taxes Receivable 1,088 2,488
Total Assets $ 164,252 % 147,643
LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS® EQUITY
LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable 3 2,166 % 4,555
Prepaid Assessments 4,050 4,801
Total Liabilities 5 65,216 3 9,356
MEMBERS EQUITY:
Replacement Reserves (Note C) $ 89417 § 28,619
initial Working Capital (Note F) 17,382 17,382
Unappropriated Members' Equity 51,237 22,286
Total Members' Equity $ 158,036 $ 138,287
Total Liabilities and Members’ Equity g 164,252 % 14?,643
See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements 2



Clarksburg Ridge Homeowners Association, Inc.
Statements of income
For the Years Ended
December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010

2011 2010
INCOME:
Assessments $ 138,573 § 125,976
Interest 2,047 2,234
Bad Debt Recovery 320 511
Other 5,508 6,913
Total income $ 146,448 § 135,634
EXPENSES:
Management § 22,050 % 22,050
Legai & Audit 5,311 11,055
insurance 3,401 3,432
Administrative 7.120 4,900
Social 3,158 4,301
Janitorial 9,575 8,750
Snow Removal 10,398 21,601
Trash Removal 9,120 8,120
Grounds 33,745 34,300
General Repairs & Maintenance 585 945
Total Expenses % 104,463 § 120,454
Net income hefore Provision for Income Taxes
and Contribution to Reserves $ 41,985 § 15,180
Provision for Income Taxes {(Note D) - -
Contribution to Reserves (Note C) {13,034 (13,034)

Net Income g 28,951 § '2,146

See Accompanying Notes fo Financial Statements ' o 3



Clarksburg Ridge Homeowners Association, inc.

Statements of Mambers' Equity
For the Years Ended
December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010

Initial Unappropriated Total
Replacement Working Members' Members'
‘Reserves Capital Equity Equity
Balance as of December 31, 2009 $ 60,240 $ 17,382 % 70,140 % 147,762
Additions:
Contributions to Reserves - Budgst 13,034 13,034
Net Income 2,146 2,146
Inter-Equity Transfer: 50,000 (50,000) -
Deductions:
Reserve Expenditure - Railing Repair (6,309) {6,309)
Reserve Expenditure - Tot Lot Steps (18,346) (18,3486)
Balance as of December 31, 2010 $ 98,619 $ 17,382 % 22286 % 138,287
Additions:
Contributions to Reserves - Budget 13,034 13,034
Net Income 28,951 28,951
Deductions:
Reserve Expenditure - Landscape {9,336) {2,336)
Reserve Expenditure - Tree Removal/Replacement {12,900) {12,900)
Balance as of December 31, 2011 $ 85417 § 17,382 § 51,237 § 158,036

See >onoavm3<3u:zoﬂmm to Financial Statements



Clarksburg Ridge Homeowners Association, Inc.
Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended
December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010

2011 2010
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income $ 28,051 % 2,146
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income fo
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Decrease (Increase) in:
Assessments Receivable - Net (Note B) 560 4,267
Accrued interest 278 448
Prepaid Expenses (368) {221)
thcome Taxes Receivable 1,400 (1,400)
Increase (Decrease) in:
Accounts Payable {2,389) {9,169)
Prepaid Assessments {751) 796
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities  § 27681 § {3,133)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Received from Assessments (Reserves) $ 13,034 § 13,034
Disbursed for Expenditures {Reserves) (22,236) (24.655)
Net Decrease (Increase) in Non Cash Equivalents (1,376} 47,619
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities  $ (10,578} % 35,008
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalenis 3 17,103 &% 32,865
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 75,218 42,351
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $ 92,319 § 75,218
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Cash Paid for Income Taxes $ - % 1,400

See Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements 5



Clarksburg Ridge Homeowners Association, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2018¢

NOTE A - ORGANIZATION

Clarksburg Ridge Homeowners Association, Inc. is an association organized under
the laws of the State of Maryland for the purpose of operating and maintaining the
commaon property of the Association. The Asscciation consisis of 159 homes located
in Clarksburg, Maryland.

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Method of Accounting — The financial statements are presented on the accrual
method of accounting in which revenues are recognized when earmed and expensed
when incurred, not necessarily when received or paid. The Association's financial
statements are maintained on the cash basis of accounting throughout the year.

Property — Real property and common areas acquired from the developer and
related improvements to such property are not recorded on the Association's
financial statements because those properties are owned by the individual
homeowners in common and not by the Association.

Assessments Receivabie — Association members are subject to assessmenis fo
provide funds for the Association's operating expenses, future major repairs and
replacements. Assessments Receivable at the balance sheet date represents fees
due from homeowners. The Association utilizes the allowance method of accounting
for bad debf. Under the allowance method, collection efforts may continue and
recovery of amounts previously written off are recognized as income in the year of

collection.
2011 2010
Assessments Receivable $ 22186 § 23065
Less: Allowance for Bad Debt {9,923) (10,242)
Assessments Receivable - Net $ 12,263 § 12823

Estimates — The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reporied amounts and disclosures. Accordingly,
actual results could differ from those estimates. g

Cash Equivalents — For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Association
cohsiders all highly liquid investments that mature within three months frorn the
balance sheet date to he cash equivalents.




Clarksburg Ridge Homeowners Association, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
Becember 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010

NOTE C - REPLACEMENT RESERVES

In accordance with the Association's governing documents, it is accumulating funds
for future major repairs and replacements. Accumulated funds, which aggregate
$89,417 and 398,619 at December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectivaly,
are held in separate accounts and are generally not available for operating purposes.
These designated replacement reserves were fully funded by cash-invesiments.

in 2007, the Association hired a professional engineer to eslimate the remaining
useful lives and the replacement costs of the components of common property. The
estimates were based on current estimated replacemeant costs. The table included in
the unaudited supplementary information on future major repairs and replacements
is based on the study.

The Association is funding the replacement reserves over the remaining useful lives
of the components based on the study's estimates of the replacement costs and
considering amounts previously accumulated in the replacement reserves.
Accordingly, $13,034 has been included in the current financial statements as a
contribution to reserves,

The Association is funding for major repairs and replacements based on estimates of
future needs. Actual expenditures, however, may vary from the estimated amounts
and the variations may be material. Therefore, amounts designated for future repairs
and replacements may not be adequate to meet fulure needs. If additional funds are
needed, however, the Association has the right, subject to member approval, to
increase regular assessmenis or levy special assessments, or it may delay major
repairs and replacements until funds are available.

NOTE D - INCOME TAXES

For income tax purposes, the Association may elect annually to fite as an Association
classified as a nonexempt membership organization or as a tax-exempt homeowners
association.

The Association is subject 1o specific rulings and regulations applicable to
nonexempt membership organizations. In general, the Association is required to
separate Hs laxable income and deductions info membership iransactions,
nonmembership transactions and capital transactions.

For federal and state tax purposes, the Association is taxed on all net income from
nonmembership activities reduced only by losses from nonmembership activities for
which a profit motive exists. Nonmembership income may not be offset by
membership losses, and any net membership losses may only be carried forward to
offset membership income of future tax pericds. Any net membership income. not
applied to the subsequent tax year is subject to taxation.




Clarksburg Ridge Homeowners Association, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010

NOTE D - INCOME TAXES (CONTINUED)
The Association elected to be taxed as an association classified as a tax-exempt
homeowners association for both federal and state income tax purposes for the

years ended December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010. This resulted in a
pravision for income taxes of $0 and $0, respectively.

NOTE E - CASH - INVESTMENTS

The Association maintains its cash — investments as follows:

Institution Type of investment Amount
Cash Equivalenis:
Monument Bank Money Market $ 82,083
Total Cash Equivalents 3 82,083
Non Cash Equivalents:
Monument Bank Certificate of Deposit % 27,124
Monument Bank Certificate of Deposit 29,588
Total Nen Cash Equivalents 3 56,712

Total Cash - Investments $ 138,795

NOTE F - INITIAL WORKING CAPITAL

At the time of the initial sale of each home, each homeowner is required to pay a
one-time initial working capital contribution of two times the monthiy assessment, As
of December 31, 2011 and Pecember 31, 2010, the initial working capital baiance
was $17,382 and $17,382, respectively.




Clarksburg Ridge Homeowners Association, Inc.
Supplementary Information on Future Major Repairs and Replacements
December 31, 2011
Unaudited

A professional engineer conducted a study in 2007 to estimate the remaining useful
lives and the replacement costs of the components of common property. Replacement
costs were based on the estimated costs to repair or replace the common property
components at the date of the study. Estimated replacement costs have not been revised
since that date and do not take into account the effects of inflation between the date of the
study and the date the components will require repair or replacement. The Association has
not designated the replacement reserve balance of $89,417 into specific categories as
detailed betow and utilizes the cash flow method of allocating replacement reserves.

The following information is based on the study and presents significant information
about the components of common property.

2007 Estimated 2007

Remaining Estimated

Useful Life Replacement
Component {Years) Cost
Concrete Areas 48 $ 30,948
Asphalt 18 50,155
Tot Lot 18 80,000
Wood Reatining & Rail - Tof Lot 18 7,040
Storm Water Block Retaining Walll 38 13,680
Block Retaining Wall 38 9,885
Park Landscaping Stonewalls 38 1,000
Other Block and Stonewalls 38 7,380
Enterance Monuments 38 6,000
Metal Railing (storm waler area) 23 6,653
Metal Railing (Catawa Manor Way) 23 4,260
Other Metal Railing 23 2,385
Metal Ralt Painting 5 4,433
White Fence (Park) 18 2,500
Painting {Park White Fence) 3 750
Sound Screen (Dutrow Court) 18 7,000
Brick Pavers (Park Area) 38 4,435
Walkway Brick Paveres 38 6.000
Park Pavilion 23 1,500
Bernches 18 8,750
Garbage Cans 18 g75

Total $ 233,739







Abaris Realty, Inc. CELEBRATING
12009 Nebel Street, Rockville, MD 20852 il

301-468-8319 » Fax: 301-468-0983 w»
Web Site: www.abarisrealty.com YEARS

MEMORANDUM
TO: ALL OWNERS AT CLARKSBURG RIDGE HOA
FROM: SHIREEN AMBUSH, PCNV%K
PROPERTY MANAGER i
DATE: NOVEMBER 14, 2011
RE: APPROVED 2012 BUDGET

The Clarksburg Ridge HOA Board of Directors met on November 10, 2011 at which time
they voted to adopt the 2012 budget for the Association with no changes to the proposed
budget which was previously mailed to all homeowners. Enclosed is the final, approved
budget for your records. I am pleased to announce that there will be no increase in the
HOA fee for next year. The fec for all town homes will remain $88 per month and the
fee for all single family homes will remain $63.80 per month.

In case you are not aware, Abaris Realty offers a direct debit service free of charge for
payment of the monthly HOA dues. This allows for your monthly HOA fee to be
automatically debited from your checking account every month hence avoiding the hassle
of writing a check and mailing your payment. This service also ensures that your
payments are always received on time hence avoiding late fees which may be caused by
mail delays. If you are interested in signing up for this free service, please contact our
Accounts Receivable department at the letterhead phone number above.

Please be advised of a recent ordinance passed in Montgomery County regarding
“smoke-free playground areas and common areas in apartment/condominium
communities”. This ordinance is applicable to the community playgrounds. The
regulation which became effective August 12, 2011 bans:

e Smoking in a common indoor area of any multi-unit residential dwelling
e Smoking within 25 feet of a playground area on privately owned property that has
a primary purpose of serving residents of more than one dwelling unit.

A new “No Smoking” sign has been placed at each playground area and this letter shall
serve as written notification to all residents in accordance with the new County Law
requirements. For more information on this Law, please visit the County website at
www.monteomeryecountymd.gov/smoke-free. To report violations, please call 311 or
visit the County website,

On behalf of the Board, I thank you for your attention to this matter and I wish you all a
safe and joyous holiday season!

Accrumten Axsncielns |
FisaRbRARt Lespusy | REALTOR®
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CLARKSBURG RIDGE HOA

APPROVED 2012 BUDGET
7 MONTHS
“AUDIT AUDIT AUDIT AUDIT BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2011 2012
Acct. 'Revenues: |
B Assessments ‘
$ 109,320.00 1 § 109,320.00: § 115,044.00 | 125,976,060 | 4108 Homeowner Assoc Fee | § 138,573.00 | § 79,786,830  § 138,573.00
$ 7,609.00 § 2550008 1425008 282500 4140 Lale/interst Fees $ 2000008 477.00[8% 200000
$ 1,380.00 | § 5416.00 | §  1,284.00 | § 1,838.07 | 4144|Legal Fees $ 1000001 % 132.00 ' § 1,000.00
$ 905.00 | § 1,940.00 ' §  6,501.74 § 2,250.00 | 4156 |Miscelianeous % 500.00 1 $ 22500 % 500.00
$ 11821400 ! $ 118,426.00 ' § 124,344.74  $132,880.07 Total Assessments § 142,073.00 | $ 80,620.80 : § 142,073.00
Other Revenue
5 486761 .8 414567 § 204741 |3 223440 | 4302 Interest Revenue § 280000 % 1.04008:8% 2400.00
$ - $ - $ - $ 510.89 | 4351 Bad Debt Recovery $ - $ - $ -
§ 48678113 414587 % 2047418 274528 Jotal Other Revenue | §  2,800.00 | § 1,040.08 1S  2400.00
5 124,081,681 | § 12257167 | § 127,282.15 | $135,634.35 TOTAL REVENUES: $ 144 873.00 § B1,660.89 | § 144,473.0C
Expenses:
Administrative
$ 20,13180:% 21,868.12 % 22,050.00 | $ 22,050.00 | 5002 Management Fees § 22,050.00 1% 1286250 % 23,000.00 |
§ 554500 |8 5940.00|% £78206|% 938020 5004 Legai § 8000.001% 137964 |8 500000
$ 1,350.00 | % 1,400.00 | $ 1,875.00 1 § 1,675.00 | 5008 Accounting/Audit $ 15800.001§ 15000018 1,800.00
$§ 2,293.40'% 221787 ' § 225743 1% 2,081.10 | 5012|Postage/Printing $ 25000018 1,173.87:%§ Z,OO0.00ﬂ
$ - $- - b - $ 89,00 | 5031 |Meeting Facility $ 20000 | § - $ 200.00
$ - 8 - § - ['$ 750.47 | 5038|Bank Fees § 750008 49546 |$  750.00
% - 3 35775 1 ¢ 477.00 1 $ 477.00 | 5059 Montg, Co. Assmit. 5 500.00 | § 47700 | § 500.00
$ 5506380 8% 485236]% 581771 % 488402 BOT1 Community Activities $ 550000 § 2,828051% 3,000.00
5 - $ . Safety Committee 3 - $ - 8 -
$ 340145|% 280550 (S 48411018 - 5088!Bad Debt $ 20067.00!% - $ 150000
$ 161646 |§ 998.67 | § 718.81 | § 810.0C | 5088 Miscellaneous 3 1,000001% 355001 % 1,000.00 |
$ 3984191 | § 4044007 | § 44,618.81 $ 42306.79 Total Administrative $ 4240700 | $ 21,06062 3 39.850.00
Contracted Services -
$ 956385 % 925857 % 15070.241% 0.120.24 1 5202 trash ) 5 10,00000 (8% 53201418 8,500.00 |
$ 31,500.00 | & 3181500 % 34,125.00 ' § 28,875.00 | 5204 Grounds/Landscaping | § 38,500.00 | $ 17,300.00 1 § 38,500.00
$ - E - $ - $ 8,750.00 | 5230:Cieaning $§ 5,100.00!% 5,12500]8% 9,300.00
§ 1503650 | $§ 257350 | % 18,15350 ! $ 21,600.50 | 5232|Snow Removal $ 20,00000]§ 12,356.00 | $ 20,000.00
$ 56,100.35 | § 43847.07|% 67,348.74 . § 68,345.74 Totai Contract Services! §  77,600.00 | § 41,101.14 | §  77.300.00
e Maintenance Repairs
$  3,815.00 ! % 1,855.00 | § 1248500 | $ 5,425.00 | 5326 Grounds/Landscaping | §  4,500.00 | $ 228000 8% 6,900.00
$ - 1§ - % . 5 - 5328 Tree Care $ - $ - $ -
$ 22000 | $ 3,218.00 ' % 27500 | § 145.12 | 5342:General Repairs § 80C.00 'F 40000 % 800.00
$ - $ - $ R 800.00 | 5355|Pongd 1% 233200 % - 5 233200
$ 4035001% 5072008 12,750.00 [§ B,370.12 Total Mainten. Repairs 1§ 7,332.00| % 2,680001% 10,032.00
Insur, Taxes, License |
$ 238288 |% 449479 $ 3,508.13!% 3,431.80 | 5810|Insur-Master Policy $ 360000 % 1236857 % 360000
$§ 16048018 582.00 | § 312.00 1 $ - 5930 |Taxes-Corping, Taxes 1 $ - 900.00 | $ - § 600.00
$ 3987881%§ 50767918 3910135 343189 TotalIns, Tax, License | § 450000 § 123697 [% 420000
Replacmnt. Reserves
5 1173500:% 1220500 % 13,034.00 | $ 13,034.00 6311 Replacement Reserves | $ 13,034,00 | § 13,034.00 | § 13,091.00
$ 11,73500 (% 1226500 | § 13,034.00 | § 13,034.00 Total Repl. Reserves § 13,034.00 | $13,03400 | $ 13,091.00
$ 115,699.84 | § 106,531.83 | $ 141,671.68 | $133,488.54 TOTAL EXP, & RES, $ 144,873.00 1 § 79,2173 | § 14447300
$ 8738167 % 1603874 3% {14,379.53)! § 2,145.82 NET INCOME/(LOSS) | & - $ 253816+ % -
Percentage Change 0.00%
Quantity hMonthly Fee | Contribution
TH= townhouse 581 % 88.00 . § #61,248.00
SFH=singie fam. house 101, % 63.80 i § 7732580
| |Total $ 138,573.50
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ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF
ARKSBURG RIDGE HOMEQWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

In compliance with the requirements of Corporations and Associations, Title 2, Annotated Code
of Maryland (1999), and any amendments thereto, the undersigned, Dave Dombert, whose post
office address is 806 West Diamond Avenue, Suite 300, Gaithersburg, Maryland 20878, being at
least eighteen (18) years of age, has this day, by execution of these Articles, voluntarily declared
himself to be an incorporator for the purpose of forming a nonstock, nonprofit corporation
pursuant to the general laws of Maryland, and does hereby certify:

ARTICLE 1
NAME OF CORPORATION

The name of the corporation is CLARKSBURG RIDGE HOMEOWNERS
ASSOCIATION, INC., hereinafter called the “Association”.

ARTICLE 2
PRINCIPAL OFFICE

The post office address of the initial principal office of the Association is 806 West
Diamond Avenue, Suite 300, Gaithersburg, Maryland 20878

ARTICLE 3
RESIDENT AGENT

The name of the resident agent of the Association is Thomas A. Natelli, whose post office
address is Natelli Communities, 806 West Diamond Avenue, Suite 300, Gaithersburg, Maryland
20878.

ARTICLE 4
POWERS AND PURPOSES

This Asscciation does not contemplate pecuniary gain or profit, direct or indirect, to the
Members thereof, and the specific purposes for which it ie formed axe to provide for and assure
the maintenance, preservation and architectural control of the Lots, Common Area and
Community Facilities within the Property described in the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions
and Restrictions recorded or to be recorded among the Land Records of the County in which said
Property is located, including such additions thereto as may be hereafter brought within the
jurisdiction of the Association, and to promote the health, safety and welfare of the Owners



within the Property and any additions thereto as may hereafter be brought within the jurisdiction
of this Association. For this purpose, the Association shall have the power and authority fo:

(a)  exercise all of the powers and privileges and perform all of the duties and
obligations of the Association as set forth in the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and
Restrictions, hereinafter called the “Declaration”, applicable to the Property and recorded or to
be recorded among the Land Records of Montgomery County, Maryland, and as the same may
be amended from time to time as therein provided, said Declaration being incorporated herein as
if set forth at length and made a part hereof;

(b)  fix, levy, collect and enforce payment by any lawful means, of all charges
or Assessments pursuant to the terms of the Declaration; to pay all expenses in connection
therewith, including all office expenses, licenses, taxes or governmental charges levied or
imposed against the property of the Association and all other expenses incident fo the conduct of

the business of the Association;

(¢ acquire (by gift, purchase or otherwise), own, hold, improve, build upon,
operate, maintain, convey, sell, lease, transfer, dedicate for public use or otherwise dispose of
real or personal property in connection with the affairs incurred;

(d)  borrow money, and with the consent of two-thirds (2/3) of each class of
Members of the Association, mortgage, pledge, deed in trust, or hypothecate any or ail of the real
or personal property owned by the Association as security for money borrowed or debts incurred;

(&)  dedicate, sell or transfer all or any part of the Common Area or
Commumity Facilities to any public agency, authority, or utility for such purposes and subject to
such conditions as may be agreed to by the Members of the Association. No such dedication,
sale or transfer shall be effective without the consent of two-thirds (2/3) of each class of
Members and fifiy-one percent (51%) of the Eligible Mortgage Holders, and unless the
Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission, or its successors or assigns, has
given its prior written approval thereof, which approval shall not be unreasonably delayed or
denied;

()  participate in mergers and consolidations with other nonprofit corporations
organized for the same purposes or annex additional residential property and Common Area,
provided that any such merger, consclidation or annexation shall have the consent of two-thirds
(2/3) of each class of Members, unless the Declaration or Bylaws provide otherwise; and

() have and egercise any and all powers, rights and privileges which a
nonstock corporation organized under the laws of the State of Marylend by law may now or
hereafier have or exercise,
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ARTICLE S
NO CAPITAL STOCK

This Association is not authorized to issue any capital stock and shall not be operated for
profit. The Association does not auticipate distributing dividends, gains or profits to its
Members. No Member shall have any personal liability for the debts or obligations of the
Association.

ARTICLE 6
VOTING RIGHTS

The Association shall initially have three (3) classes of voting membership, Class A,
Class B and Class C. _

Class A. With the exception of the Declarant (until expiration of the Class C
memberships as provided below), every person, group of persons, corporation, partmership, trust
or other legal entity, or any combination thereof, who is an Owner of a Single-Family Detached
Lot (including any Participating Builder) shall be a Class A Member of the Association;
provided, however, that any such person, group of persons, corporation, partnership, trust or
other legal entity, or any combination thereof, who holds such interest solely as security for the
performance of an obligation shall not be a Class A Member solely on account of such interest,
Each Single-Family Detached Lot shall entitle the Owner of such Lot to cast one (1) vote in the
affairs of the Association. When more than one (1) persor or entity are the Owners of any
Single-Family Detached Lot, all such persons and entities shall be Class A Members, The vote
for such Single-Family Detached Lot shall be exercised as they among themselves determine, but
in no event shall more than one (1) vote be cast with respect to any Single-Family Detached Lot
owned by a Class A Member, Any Class A Member who leases his or ber Single-Family
Detached Lot may, in the lease or other written instrument, assign the voting right appurtenant to
thet Single-Family Detached Lot to the lessee, provided that a copy of such instrument is
furnished to the Association.

Class B. With the exception of the Declayant (until expiration of the Class C
memberships as provided below), every person, group of persons, corporation, partnership, trust
or other legal entity, or any combination thereof, who Is an Owner of a Townhouse Lot
(including any Participating Builder) shall be a Class B Member of the Association; provided,
however, that any such person, group of persons, corporation, partnership, trust or other legal
entity, or any combination thereof, who holds such interest solely as security for the performance
of an obligation shall not be a Class B Member solely oo account of such interest. Each
Townhouse Lot shall entitle the Owner of such Lot fo cast one (1) vote in the affairs of the
Association. When more than one (1) person or entity are the Owners of any Townhouse Lot, all
such persons and entities shall be Class B Members. The vote for such Townhouse Lot shall be
exercised as they among themselves determine, but in no event shail more than one (1) vote be
cast with respect to any Townhouse Lot owned by a Class B Member. Any Class B Member
who leases his or her Townhouse Lot may, in the lease or other written instrument, assign the
voting right appuctenant to that Townhouse Lot to the Jessee, provided that a copy of such
instrument is furnished to the Association.

IMANAGE: 311567 V05 00726.0033
Bd, 09/5 %2003



Class C. There shall initially be four hundred seventy-seven (477) ClassC
memberships in the Association. This number shall be increased by three (3) meraberships for
each Lot which is annexed within the jurisdiction of the Assoctation in accordance with Seotion
a1 of the Declaration in excess of one hundred fifty-nine (159) Lots, and shall be decreased by
three (3) memberships for each Lot conveyed to a Class A or Class B Member (excluding any
Lot conveyed to a Participeting Builder). The Class C Member shall be the Declarant, its
nominee or nominees, and shall include every person, group of persons, corporation, partnership,
trust or other legal entity, or any combination thereof, who shall obtain any Class C membership
by specific assignment in writing from the Declarant.

The Cless C Member shall be entitled to one (1) vote for each Class C
membership. Fach Class C membership shall lapse and become a nullity on the first to happen
of the following events:

® one hundred twenty (120) days following the date on which the
total authorized, issued and outstanding votes of the Class A and Class B Members (excluding
any Participating Builder) equals the number of Class C memberships; or

() fifteen (15) years from the date of recordation by the Declarant of
the first Supplementary Declaration annexing all or any portion of the real property described on
Exhibit “A” hereto; provided, however, that if the Declarant is delayed in the improvement and
development of the Property on account of a sewer, water or building permit moratorium or oy
other cause or event beyond the Declarant’s control, then the aforesaid fifteen (15)-year period
shall be extended by a period of time equal to the length of the delays or an additional five (5)
years, whichever is less; or

(i) upon the surrender of said Class C memberships by the then
holders thereof for cancellation on the books of the Association.

Upon the lapse or surrender of the Class C memberships as provided for in this
Article, the Declarant shall thereafler become a Class A and/or Class B Member of the
Association, as applicable, as to each and every Lot in which the Declarant then holds the
interest otherwise required for such membership, '

The Members of the Association shall have no preemptive rights, as such
Members, to acquire any memberships of this Association thet may at any time be issued by the
Association except as may be specifically provided in these Articles of Incorporation, the Bylaws
or the Declaration of the Association.

ARTICLE 7
MEMBERSHIP

Every person or entity who is a record owner of & fee or undivided fee interest of any Lot,
including contract sellers, shall be a Member of the Association; provided that any such person
or entity who or which holds such interest merely as security for the performance of an
obligation shall not be a Member. Membership shall be appurtepant to and may not be separated
from ownership of any Lot which is subject to Assessment by the Association.

4
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ARTICLE 8
RIGHT OF ENJOYMENT

Every Owner shall have a right and easement of enjoyment in and to the Common Area
and Community Facilities, including, without Yimitation, an easement for the use and enjoyment
of the private streets, driveways, alleys, parking areas, pathways and walkways, if any, within the
Common Arca, which shall be appurtenant to and shall pass with the title to every Lo, for
purposes of ingress and egress to and from such Owner's Lot.

ARTICLE 9
ROARD OF DIRECTORS

The affairs of this Association shall be managed by a Board initially consisting of three
(3) Directors whose names and addresses are bereinafter listed. Commencing with the first
annual meeting of the Association, the Board shall consist of an uneven number of not less than
three (3) nor more than nine (9} Directors. The names and addresses of the persons who are 10
initially act in the capacity of Dircctors antil the selection of their successors, and their respective

class as Directorsg, ate:
Nzme Address Class
Thomas A. Natelli 806 West Diamond Avenue A
Suite 300
Gaithersburg, Maryland 20878
David G. Dombert 806 West Diamond Avenue B
Suite 300
Gaithersburg, Maryland 20878
William J. Moore %06 West Diamond Avenue At Large

Suite 300
Gaithershurg, Maryland 20878

The pumber, classes, qualifications, powers, duties ani tenure of the office of the
Directors and the manner by which Directors are to be chosen shall be as prescribed and set forth
in the Bylaws of the Association. Officers of the Association shall be elected and shall serve as
provided for in said Bylaws.

ARTICLE 10
DISSOLUTION

The Association may be dissolved with the consent given in writing and signed by not
less tham two-thirds (2/3) of each class of voting Members, and with the written approval of the
Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission, or its successors or assigns, which
approval shall not be unreasonably delayed or denied; provided that the affirmative vote of at

5
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least one (1) Class A Disector and one (1) Class B Director shall be required to dissolve the
Assaciation. Written notice of a proposal to dissolve, setting forth the reasons therefor and the
disposition to be made of the assets (which shall be consonant with this Article 10), shall be
mailed to every Member not less than ten (10) days nor more than fifty (50) days in advance of
any action to be taken. Upon dissolution of the Association, other than incident to 2 merger or
consolidation, the asscts of the Association shall be dedicated to an appropriate public agency to
be used for purposes similar to those for which this Association was created. In the event that
such dedication is refused acoeptance, such assets shall be granted, conveyed and assigned to any
nonprofit corporation, association, trust or other organization to be devoted to such similar

purposes.

ARTICLE 11
DURATION

The Association shall exist perpetually.

ARTICLE 12
AMENDMENTS

Amendment of these Articles shall require the consent of Mermbers entitled to cast not
less than seventy-five percent (75%) of the votes of all Members of the Association.

ARTICLE 13
FHA APPROVAL

As long as there is a Class C membership and any Lot subject to the Declaration is then
encumbered by 2 deed of trust or mortgage which is insured by the Federal Housing
Administration (the “FHA™), the following actions will require the prior approval of the FHA:
annexation of additional properties, not in conformance with the Development Plan (and
amendments thereto) as approved by the FHA, mergers and consolidations, mortgaging of
Common Area, dedication of Common Ares, dissolution and amendment of these Articles.

"ARTICLE 14
LIABILITY

No Director or officer of the Association shall be liable to the Association or to its
Members for money damages except (i) to the extent that it is proved that such Director or
officer actually received an improper benefit or profit in money, property or services, for the
amount of the benefit or profit in money, property or services actually received, or (ii) to the
extent that a judgment or other final adjudication adverse to such Director or officer is entered in
a proceeding based on a finding in the proceeding that such Director’s or officer’s action, or
failure to act, was the result of active and deliberate dishonesty and was material to the cause of
action adjudicated in the proceeding.
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ARTICLE i5
MISCELLANEOUS

Unless it is plainly evident from the context that 2 different meaning is intende;d, all terms
used herein shall have the same meaning as they are defined to have in the Declaration. In the
event of any conflict between these Articles and the Declaration, the terms and provisions of the

Declaration shall control,

[SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has signed, sealed and delivered these
Articles of Incorporation as his own free act and deed on this Q:Z day of

200 3 .

(SEAL)

STATE OF %&7&4{ o
*  fo wits
COUNTY OF */@W

On this 7% *'day of Jltag k.. ,200.F |, before me, a Notary Public in and for the
above County and State, personaily appeared Dave Dombert and acknowledged that he signed
the foregoing Articles of Incorporation for the purposes therein stated.

WITNESS my hand and Notarial Seal.

My Commission Expires: E"g_‘ lZ ﬁ

[NOTARIAL SEAL]
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CONSENT TO ACT AS RESIDENT AGENT

Pursuant to Section 1-208 of the Corporations and Associations Axticle of the Annotated
Code of Marvland (1999 Replacement Volume) the undersigned, Thomas A. Natelli (having the
following post office address: Nateili Communities, 806 West Dismond Avenus, Suite 300,
Gaithersburg, Maryland 20878), hereby consents to serve as the resident agent of the Company.

INWI SS WHEREOF, I have signed this Consent and acknowledged it to be my act
as of the 27 “'day of @ rpree. 2002 .

By: | 7/%%’

Thomas A. Natelli
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DEPOSITORY STATEMENT

FOR

CLARKSBURG RIDGE HOMEQOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.
[For Deposit in the Depository of Montgomery County, Maryland]

Every purchaser of a residence in the Clarksburg Ridge community automatically
becomes a member of the Clarksburg Ridge Homeowners Association, Inc. (hereinafter the
“Association”). All members of the Association are subject to the restrictions, rights and
obligations contained within the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for the
Association recorded, or to be recorded, among the Land Records of Montgomery County,
Maryland (heremafter referred to as the “Declaration™) including, but not limited to, the
obligation to pay assessments to the Association. The disclosure information set forth below is
being provided in accordance with the Maryland Homeowners Association Act (the “Act”™). The
property which is, or may hereafter be annexed within the jurisdiction of the Association shall
hereinafier be referred to as the “Properties” or as the “Development”. Certain other capitalized
terms used herein, unless otherwise defined herein, have the meanings specified in the
Declaration for the Association.

Sect

I Declarant: Clarksburg Ridge LLC,
a Maryland limited hability company

Principal Address: Thomas A. Natelii
Natelli Communities
806 West Diamond Avenue
Suite 300
Gaithersburg, Maryland 20878

Telephone Number: {301) 670-4020
As of the date of this document the name and address of the Declarant are as set forth
above, however, the Declarant reserves the right to change such name and address at its

sole discretion from time to time.

II. Vendors (sometimes hereinafier referred to collectively as the “Participating Builders™; and
individually as a “Participating Builder”):

1. NVR, INC.,
a Virginia corporation (t/a NVHomes)



Principal Address: 555 Quince Orchard Road
Suite 240 :
Gaithersburg, Maryland 20878

Telephone Number: (301) 258-0002
Corporate Officers: Dwight C. Schar Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer
Michael J. Cannizzo Senior Vice President,
Administration
Paul C. Saville Senior Vice President, Chief
Fmancial Officer and
Treasurer
Rainer Altman Area President
Thomas C. Buescher Area President
Dennis M. Seremet Vice President, Finance
James M. Sack Vice President and Secretary
Corporate Officers'
Address: 7601 Lewinsville Road
Suite 300

McLean, Virginia 22102

2. NVR, INC,,
a Virginia corporation (t/a Ryan Homes)

Principal Address: 555 Quince Orchard Road
Suite 280
Gaithersburg, Maryland 20878
Telephone Number: {301) 948-6400
Corporate Officers: Dwight C. Schar Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer
Michael J. Cannizzo Senior Vice President,

Administration
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Paul C. Saville Senior Vice President, Chief
Financial Officer and

Treasurer
Rainer Altman Area President
Thomas C. Buescher Area President
Dennis M. Seremet Vice President, Finance
fames M. Sack Vice President and Secretary

Corporate Officers'

Address: 7601 Lewinsville Road
Suite 300
Mclean, Virginia 22102

As of the date of this document the names and addresses of the Vendors and the names and
addresses of the corporate officers of the Vendors are as set forth above, however, the
Vendors reserve the right to change such names and addresses in its sole discretion from
time to time.

Section 2
1. The name of the Association is, or will be, Clarksburg Ridge Homeowners Association,
Inc,
1L The Association is, or will be, incorporated in the State of Maryland.
IIL The resident agent of the Association is, or will be:
Thomas A. Natelli
Natelli Communities
806 West IDhiamond Avenue
Suite 300
Gaithersburg, Maryland 20878
Section 3
L. The Development is located in the Clarksburg (2nd) Election District of Montgomery

County, Maryland. The Declarant presently conternplates that the Development may contain a
maximum of approximately 159 Lots and may contain up to approximately 35.4 acres, however,
the Declarant reserves the right to annex such property within the Development in stages or

IMANAGE: 372035 vw.01 06724.0033



phases and to annex more or less than the anticipated maximum number of Lots and/or acreage
within the Development. It is anticipated that the Development may contain a total of 101
single-family detached dwelling units and 58 single-family attached or semi-attached townhouse
dwelling units; provided, however, that the Declarant reserves the right to annex such property
within the Development in stages or phases, to annex more or less than the anticipated maximum
amount of dwelling units and/or acreage within the Development, and to increase or decrease the
number of Lots of each type. The Declarant reserves the right to amend the Development Plan
for the Properties, to modify or alter the size, number, type and location of the dwelling units to
be constructed thereon, and to take any other action as it deems necessary or desirable in
conjunction with the development of the Properties. Without limiting the generality of the
foregomg, the Declarant reserves the right to resubdivide all or a portion of the Properties, to
convey all or a portion of the Properties, to convey all or a portion of the Common Area, to
modify the size and location of the Common Area, and to construct improvements on the
Common Area. Any property not annexed within the jurisdiction of the Association may be
sold, transferred, conveyed or otherwise developed by the Declarant or its successors, transferees
and assigns. The Declarant and the Participating Butlders also reserve the right to modify the
price of dwelling units in response to market conditions. Purchasers may pay different prices for
similar dwelling units.

1. The Declarant does not own any property contiguous to the Development which is, or
may be, dedicated to public use, other than the public streets and easements indicated on the
subdivision plats for the Properties recorded, or to be recorded, among the Land Records of
Montgomery County, Maryland.

IH.  The Vendors do not own any property contiguous to the Development which is, or may
be, dedicated to public use.

Section 4

The Association is not within or part of another development or homeowners association.
However, the Declarant reserves the right to establish one or more separate sub-associations
within the Association.

Section 5

. The Declarant has reserved the right to annex property comprising approximately 35.4
acres of land in the Clarksburg (2nd) Election District of Montgomery County, Maryland, as
more particularly described in the Declaration. The Declarant has also reserved the right to
annex any real property shown on the Development Plan, any real property contiguous to or in
the vicinity of the real property shown on the Development Plan, and any real property
contiguous to or in the vicinity of the real property described in the Declaration. The Declarant
presently anticipates including approximately 159 Lots in the Development. The Declarant’s
right to annex, including any time limits on such annexation, is fully set forth in Article 2 of the
Declaration. The Declarant reserves the right to annex all or any portion of the foregoing
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property within the Development in stages or phases, to annex more or less than the anticipated
maximum number of Lots and/or acreage within the Development, to include more or less than
the foregoing number of Lots in any section of the Development, and to increase or decrease the
number of Lots of each type. Any part of such property not annexed may be sold, transferred,
conveyed or otherwise developed by the Declarant or its successors, transferees and assigns. In
the event such sale, transfer, conveyance and/or development occurs, one or more separate
homeowners associations and/or condominium regimes may be developed within the property
not annexed within the Association.

Section 6

A copy of the Bylaws, and Rules if any, of the Association are attached hereto as
Exhibit “A”  The Bylaws, and Rules if any, are, or will be, enforceable against any Owner and
such Owner’s tenants,

Section 7

I Pursuant to Article 1, Section 1.8 of the Declaration, “Common Area” is generally
defined as “all real property owned, leased or maintained by the Association (including the
Community Facilities and all other Common Area improvements) for the common use and
enjoyment of the Owners.” The location of the Common Area is, or will be, graphically shown
on the plats of subdivision for the Properties recorded, or to be recorded, among the Land
Records of Montgomery County, Maryland.

I. It 1s anticipated that the Common Area will include, if constructed, certain play areas,
pathways, open space, and stormwater management facilities. The Association will generally be
-responsible for the maintenance and repair of the Common Area and any improvements situated
thereon as well as any property which it is obligated or elects to maintain pursuant to any cross-
easement agreement or the requirements of any governmental agency, any storm water
management facilities designed to benefit or serve the Property, rights-of-way, entry strips and
entrance features or improvements and other property appurtenant to the Development. Section
11.3 of the Declaration provides that the Association may elect to maintain and keep in good order
the Lawn and Garden Area within the Lots. Section 11.4 authorizes the Association to assume
additional maintenance responsibilities upon all or any portion of the Property. For a more
complete statement of the Association’s maintenance responsibilities, see the Declaration for the
Association.

HL  Availability of the Common Area improvements planned to be included within the
Association, as well as the timing of their construction, is dependent upon a number of factors,
including, without limitation, the development and construction schedule of all dwelling umts
planned to be mcluded within the jurisdiction of the Association. 1f construction of such
dwelling units is delayed, then it is possible that the construction of any Common Area
improvements not then completed may also be delayed or canceled. Similarly, if fewer dwelling
units than originally planned are actually constructed, then some of the Common Area
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improvements may not be constructed as presently planned. Neither the Declarant nor the
Vendors make any representation or warranty regarding the construction or availability of any of
the Commmon Area improvements planned to be included within the jurisdiction of or maintained
by the Association, nor has the Declarant or the Vendors authorized any other party to make any
such representation or warranty.

Section 8

Information regarding the zoning and other land use requirements affecting the
Development may be obtained by reviewing the Zoning Ordinance for Montgomery County,
Maryland and other materials regarding land use requirements affecting the Development at the
offices of the Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission. The Declarant
reserves the right fo seek zoning changes, amendments and modifications to the Development
Plan for the Properties.

Section 9

All mandatory homeowners association fees or assessments and other permitted charges
imposed upon Lot owners by the Association will be subject to collection in accordance with
Article 5 of the Declaration and the provisions of the Maryland Contract Lien Act, Section 14-
201, et seq., Real Property Article, Annotated Code of Maryland (2003 Replacement Volume), as
amended. Pursuant to Article 5 of the Declaration, please note the following:

l. Pursuant to Article 5, Section 5.8, the annual assessments will generally commence as to
all Lots simultaneously with the conveyance of the first Lot to a Class A or Class B Member.
The first annual assessment will be adjusted according to the number of months remaining in the
calendar year. The purchaser or grantee of any Lot will be responsible for assessments on his or
her Lot beginning on the date of settlement or conveyance to such party.

2. Pursuant to Article 5, Section 5.8 the due dates for assessments shall be established by the
Board of Directors.

3. The procedure for increasing or decreasing such fees, assessments or charges is set forth
in Article 5, Section 5.3.

4. Delinquent fees, assessments and charges will be collected in accordance with Article 6.

5. Pursuant to Article 5, Section 5.1, and Article 6, unpaid fees, assessments and charges,
together with interest, costs, late fees and reasonable attorneys' fees, shall be the personal
obligation of the Owner of a Lot.

6. Interest shall be charged on any unpaid assessment at a rate determined by the Board of

Directors up to the maximum rafe of interest permiited by law, as set forth in Article 6, Section
6.1.
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7. Pursuant to Article 5, Section 5.1, and Article 6 of the Declaration, unpaid assessments
may be collected by the imposition of a lien on a Lot in accordance with the Maryland Contract
Lien Act.

8. Lot owners may be assessed interest, attorneys' fees, late fees, court costs and
administrative costs for the collection of unpaid assessments as set forth in Article 6. In addition,
the entire balance of the unpaid assessments for the remainder of the year may be accelerated and
declared due.

Section 10

Certain special rights or exemptions reserved by or for the benefit of the Declarant and/or
the Vendors are contained within the Declaration, including, but not limited to:

1. Pursuant to Article 9, Section 9.1, the right to conduct construction, marketing,
sales and/or leasing activities within the Development including, but not limited to, the right to
use any Lot or dwelling, or improvements thereon, for promotional or display purposes, or as
model homes, a sales and/or construction office, or for any other lawful purpose.

2. Pursuant to Article 5, Section 5.7, the right of the Declarant to be exempt from
Assessments, and the right of the Participating Builders to a limited exemption from Assessments.

3. Pursuant to Article 7, the right of the Declarant to be exempt from the architectural
controls contained in Article 7, and the right of the Participating Builders to be exempt from the
provisions of Sections 7.3 through 7.12.

4. Pursuant to Article 2, the right to annex additional property within the jurisdiction
of the Association, and the right to deannex property from within the jurisdiction of the
Association.

S. Pursuant to Section 10.1(a), the right to grant easements to all public authorities
and utilities over any part of the Common Area and Community Facilities.

6. Pursuant to Article 10, Section 10.1(c), a blanket easement upon, across and under
the Property for vehicular and pedestrian ingress and egress, curb cuts, slope, or grading
easements, as well as for the installation, replacement, repair and maintenance of all utilities, and
the right to connect to and use any such utilities which may exist or be located upon the Property
from time fo time, the right to grant easements, both temporary and permanent, to all public
authorities and ufility companies over any part of the Property, and the right to unilaterally
execute and record such additional easements and agreements as may be necessary in order to
give effect to the foregoing easements and other rights, which additional easements and other
agreements need not be consented to or joined in by any party having an interest in the Property.

7. Pursuant to Article 10, Section 10.1(f), the right during the period of construction
and sale in the Development to maintain such facilities and perform such operations as the
Declarant may determine to be reasonably required, convenient or incidental to the construction
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and sale of residences, including, without limitation, a business office, sales/leasing office,
storage area, consiruction yards, signs, displays and model units.

8. Pursuant to Article 10, Section 10.1(g), the right to enter the Common Area for the
purpose of carrying out any obligations concerning the curing of defects in workmanship or
materials in the Property or the improvements thereon. There is further reserved unto the
Declarant and its agent(s) a non-exclusive easement over, across and through all of the Common
Area and Community Facilities for the purpose of access, the storage of building supplies and
materials and equipment and, without any limitation, for any and all purposes reasonably related
to the completion of the development, construction or rehabilitation and repair of the Property.

9. Pursuant to Article 10, Section 10.1(h), for ten (10) years from the date of
conveyance of the first Lot in the Development, the right to correct drainage of surface water in
the Development. Such right includes the ability to cut any trees, bushes or shrubbery, make
gradings of the soil, or take any other action reasonably necessary, following which the Declarant
shall restore the affected property to its original condition as near as practicable.

10.  The right to vote as specified in Article 4, Section 4.2 of the Declaration with
respect to each Class C membership held by the Declarant (one (1) vote for each such Class C
membership).

11.  Pursuant to Article 16, Section 16.15, the right to execute on behalf of all contract
purchasers, Owners, Eligible Mortgage Holders, mortgagees, and other lienholders or parties
claiming a legal or equitable interest in any Lot, Common Area or Community Facilities, any
such agreements, documents, amendments or supplements to the Declaration, the Articles of
Incorporation and Bylaws of the Association which may be required by FNMA, FHA, VA,
FHLMC, GNMA, Montgomery County, Maryland, any governmental or quasi-govemmental
agency or authority having regulatory jurisdiction over the Association, any public or private
uiility company designated by the Declarant, any institutional lender or title insurance company
designated by the Declarant, to comply with the Fair Housing Amendments Act of 1988, as
amended, to comply with the Act, or to comply with other applicable laws or regulations.

For a more complete statement of the rights and exemptions reserved by or for the benefit
of the Declarant and/or the Vendors, see the Declaration and Bylaws for the Association.

The mformation set forth herein is being provided in accordance with the Act, and is
based upon current development plans and information currently available. The information set
forth herein is subject to change and modification from time to time. Owners are advised that
modifications, changes and supplements to such information are probable and should be
expected.

The foregoing narrative sections of this Depository Statement do not repeat or contain all
of the mformation appearing in the documents and other materials referenced in or reproduced as
exhibits hereto. In many cases, these sections contain abstracts or summaries of information
from such documents and other materials. Accordingly, in no case should any of the information
set forth in the narrative sections of this Depository Statement be construed to substitute for,
alter, modify or abrogate, in whole or in part, any of the terms, conditions or provisions of any of
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the documents and other materials referenced in or reproduced as exhibits to this Depository

Statement. In the event of any conflict between the narrative sections of this Depository
Statement and any of the documents and other materials referenced in or reproduced as exhibits
to this Depository Statement, the documents and other materials referenced in or reproduced as
exhibits to this Depository Statement, as applicable, shall control.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]
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‘The undersigned agent for the Association, hereby certlﬁes that the foregoing instrument

was prepared on behalf of the Association.

Dated as of

3

200
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By:
Name: David G. Dombert
Address: 06 West Diamond Avenue
Suite 300
Gaithersburg, Maryland 20878
Telephone:  (301) 590-7347
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CLARKSBURG RIDGE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

DECLARATION OF COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS

THIS DECLARATION, is made on the date hereinafter set forth by CLARKSBURG
RIDGE, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company, hereinafier referred to as “Declarant”.

WHEREAS, Declarant is the owner of certain real property in the County of
Montgomery, State of Maryland, which is more particularly described on the legal description
attached hereto and made a part hereof as Exhibit “A”,

NOW, THEREFORE, Declarant hereby declares that all of the real property described on
Exhibit “A” hereto shall be subject to the Declarant’s right to unilaterally subject such real
property to the covenants, conditions, restrictions and easements set forth in this Declaration and
to annex such real property within the jurisdiction of the Association pursuant to Article 2
hereof.  The Declarant hereby further declares that, upon recordation of one or more
Supplementary Declarations in accordance with Article 2 hereof, all or any portion of the real
property described on Exhibit “A” hereto, and any other real property annexed within the
Jurisdiction of the Association in accordance with Article 2 hereof, shall thereafier be held,
conveyed, hypothecated, encumbered, sold, leased, rented, used, occupied and improved subject
to the covenants, conditions, restrictions and easements set forth below, which are for the
purpose of protecting the value and desirability of, and which shall run with such real property
and be binding on all parties having any right, title or interest in all or any portion of the real
property described on Exhibit “A” hercto, and any other real property annexed within the
jurisdiction of the Association in accordance with Article 2 hereof, their heirs, personal
representatives, successors, transferees and assigns, and which shall inure to the benefit of each
Owner thereof:

ARTICLE 1
DEFINITIONS

Section I.1.  "Administrative Resolutions” are rules, policies and/or procedures,
adopted by the Declarant and/or the Board of Directors, for purposes of implementing provisions
of this Declaration, the Bylaws and Articles of Incorporation of the Association, as more fully
described in Article 8 of the Bylaws.

gection 1.2, “Annual Assessments” shall mean and refer to the assessments levied
against all Lots within the Property to fund the Common Expenses, not including Special
Assessments, Neighborhood Assessments, or Neighborhood Special Assessments.

Section 1.3.  "Application Procedures” shall have the meaning specified in Section 7.9
of this Declaration.
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Section 1.4.  “Architectural Review Commitiee” shall have the meaning specified in
Section 7.3(b) of this Declaration.

Section 1.5.  “Architectural Review Entity” shall have the meaning specified in Section
7.3 of this Declaration.

Section 1.6.  “Assessments” shall mean and refer collectively to any Annual
Assessment, Special Assessment, Neighborhood Assessment, Neighborhood Special
Assessment, and all other fees and charges, including all installments thereof, as may be levied
by the Association in accordance with this Declaration.

Section 1.7.  “Association” shall mean and refer to Clarksburg Ridge Homeowners
Association, Inc., a nonstock Maryland corporation, its successors and assigns.

Section 1.8.  “Common Area” shall mean all real property owned, leased or maintained
by the Association (including the Community Facilities and all other Common Area
improvements) for the common use and enjoyment of the Owners. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, in the event the Association maintains all or any portion of any Lot(s), such property
shall not be considered Common Area. The Common Area must ultimately include all of the
real property and all facilities depicted as such on any and all project plans, preliminary plans
and/or site plans, as amended (“Regulatory Plans”), for the Project reviewed and approved by the
Montgomery County Planning Board (“Planning Board”) of the Maryland-National Capital Park
and Planning Commission (“Commission™). Facilities include, as may be applicable, all
recreational facilities, storm water management facilities, private roads, and other required
features that are to be constructed on the Common Area pursuant to the Regulatory Plans.
Facilities are to be timely constructed in a good, workmanlike manner. The timing for the
provision of Common Area is set forth in Section 2.4 hereof. The term Common Area shall be
deemed to include “Neighborhood Common Area” (as defined below).

Section 1.9.  “Common Expenses” shall mean and refer to the actual and estimated
expenses of operating the Association, including, without limitation, a reasonable reserve and
expenses for the maintenance of the Common Area in accordance with Article 11 hereof, all as
may be found to be necessary or appropriate by the Board of Directors pursuant to this
Declaration, the Bylaws and the Articles of Incorporation of the Association.

Section 1.10. “Community Facilities” shall mean and refer to any and all improvements
and facilities located upon the Common Area including, without limitation, recreational facilities
(if any), which are operated and maintained by the Association for the use and enjoyment of the
Owners.

Section 1.11.  “Community-Wide Standard” shall mean the standard of conduct,
maintenance or other activity generally prevailing in the Project. Such standard may be more
specifically determined and set forth by the Board of Directors.

Section 1.12.  "Declarant” shall mean and refer to Clarksburg Ridge, LLC, a Maryland
limited liability company, and its successors and assigns if such successors or assigns should
acquire more than one undeveloped Lot from the Declarant for the purpose of development, but
only to the extent that all or any portion of the rights, reservations, easements, interests,

2

IMANAGE: 311843 v07 06724.0033
Ed. 08/26/2003



253bb  0EF

exemptions, privileges and/or powers of the Declarant are specifically assigned or transferred to
any such successors or assigns by an instrument in writing.

Section 1.13. “Declarant’s Rights and Obligations” shall mean and refer to the rights,
reservations, easements, interests, exemptions, privileges, powers and/or duties reserved or given
to the Declarant pursuant to this Declaration. The Declarant’s Rights and Obligations shall
extend until the first to occur of (i} the initial conveyance of all Lots included and to be included
within the jurisdiction of the Association in accordance with Article 2 of this Declaration to
Owners other than the Declarant or the Participating Builders, or (ii) twenty (20) years after the
recordation of this Declaration. The Declarant may, however, elect to earlier terminate all or any
portion of the Declarant’s Rights and Obligations by the recordation of a written instrument
among the Land Records expressing the Declarant’s express intention to relinquish all or any
portion of the Declarant’s Rights and Obligations. The term during which the Declarant’s Rights
and Obligations are in effect is sometimes referred to in this Declaration as the “Declarant’s
Rights and Obligations Period.”

Section 1.14. “"Design Guidelines” shall have the meaning specified in Section 7.9 of
this Declaration.

Section 1.15. “Development Plan” shall mean and refer collectively fo (i) Preliminary
Plan No. 1-01078, and (111) Site Plan No. 8-02031, including all amendments, modifications,
extensions and supplements thereof as may be made from time to time.

Section 1.16. "Eligible Mortgage Holder” shall mean a holder, insurer or guarantor of a
First Mortgage on a Lot who has submitted a written request for notice from the Association of
amendments to the Association documents or other significant matters which would affect the
interests of the mortgagee.

Section 1.17. “Equity Resolutions” shall mean and refer to those actions of the
Declarant and/or the Board of Directors which create additional covenants, conditions and/or
restrictions with respect to the Lots, the Common Area and/or the Neighborhood Common Area,
as more fully described in Article 8 of the Bylaws.

Section 1.18.  “Governing Documents” shall mean and refer collectively to this
Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation and the Bylaws of the Association, and all
Administrative Resolutions, Equity Resolutions and other rules and regulations adopted by the
Association, as the same may be amended from time to time.

Section 1.19. “Improvements” shall have the meaning specified in Section 7.1 of this
Declaration.

Section 1.20. “Land Records” shall mean and refer to the Land Records of Montgomery
County, Maryland.

Section 1.21. “Lawn and Garden Area” shall mean and refer to any portion of the front,
side or rear (if applicable) yard areas of any Lot that contains grass, shrubs, bushes, trées or other
planted material; provided, however, that any portion of a Lot which is enclosed by a wall, fence
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or other obstruction and which is not readily accessible to the Association, as determined by the
Board of Directors in its sole discretion, shall not be considered a Lawn and Garden Area.

Section 1.22. “Living Unit” shall mean and refer to any portion of the Property, whether
improved or unimproved, which contains or is intended to contain a dwelling designed for use
and occupancy by a single household; provided, however, that an accessory structure within a
single Lot containing living quarters in addition to the primary dwelling, the ownership of which
is held by the same person, shall not be deemed to be a separate Living Unit. Living Units
include, without limitation, single-family detached dwelling units, and single-family attached
and semi-attached townhouse dwelling units.

Section 1.23.  “Lot” shall mean and refer to any plot of land designated as a separate
subdivided lot of record upon any recorded subdivision plat of the Property upon which the
planmed or actual improvements are primarily intended for use and occupancy as a residential
Living Umt. No Lot shall be counted twice in any situation where it may fall within more than
one of the foregoing descriptions. The term Lot shall not include Common Area or outlots of
property dedicated for public use. The term Lot shall be deemed to refer collectively to Single-
Family Detached Lots and Townhouse Lots.

Section 1.24. "Member” shall mean and refer to every person, group of persons,
corporation, partnershlp, trust, or other legal entity, or any combination thereof, who holds any
class of membership in the Association.

Section 1.25. “Mortgagee” shall mean the holder of any recorded mortgage, or the party.
secured or beneficiary of any recorded deed of trust, encumbering one or more of the Lofs.
“Mortgage”, as used herein, shall include deeds of trust. “First Mortgage”, as used herein, shall
mean a mortgage with priority over all other mortgages. As used in this Declaration, the term
“mortgagee” shall mean any mortgagee and shall not be limited to institutional morigagees. As
used in this Declaration, the term “institutional mortgagee” or “institutional holder” shall include
banks, trust companies, insurance companies, mortgage insurance companies, savings and loan
associations, trusts, mutual savings banks, credit unions, pension funds, mortgage companies,
Federal National Mortgage Association (“FNMA™), Government National Mortgage Association
(“GNMA"), Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (“FHLMC”), all corporations and any
agency or department of the United States Government or of any state or municipal government,
or any other organization or entity which has a security interest in any Lot. In the event any
mortgage is imsured by the Federal Housing Administration (“FHA”) or guaranteed by the
Department of Veterans Affairs (“VA™), then as to such mortgage the expressions “mortgagee”
and “institutional mortgagee” include the FHA or the VA as the circumstances may require,
acting, respectively, through the Federal Housing Commission and the Secretary of Veterans
Affairs or through other duly authorized agents.

Section 1.26. “Neighborhood™ shall mean and refer to any group of Lots which are
hereafter annexed within the jurisdiction of the Association by the Declarant pursuant to Article
2 of this Declaration and which are designated by the Declarant as constituting all or a portion of
specified Neighborhood of Lots in the Supplementary Declaration annexing such Lots. The term
Neighborhood shall also mean and refer to any group of Lots designated as constituting all or a
portion of a specified Neighborhood of Lots by the Declarant or the Board of Directors based on
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such factors as are deemed appropriate by the Declarant or the Board, including, without
limitation, the location and proximity of such Lots, any special features or amenities within or
serving such Lots, any special services provided to or requested by the Owners or residents of
such Lots, and the mput of interested Owners and residents within the Property.

Section 1.27. “Neighborhood Assessments” shall mean and refer to assessments for
those portions of the Common Expenses, if any, as may be levied against the Lots within a
specified Neighborhood in accordance with Section 5.10 of this Declaration.

Section 1.28. “Neighborhood Committee” shall mean and refer to any committes
comprised of the Owners and/or residents of Lots within a specified Neighborhood, as may be
established by the Board of Directors in accordance with Article 15 of this Declaration.

Section 1.29.  “Neighborhood Common Area” shall mean and refer to any Common
Area which is hereafter annexed within the jurisdiction of the Association by the Declarant
pursuant to Article 2 of this Declaration and which is designated by the Declarant as being for
the primary or exclusive use and benefit of a specified Neighborhood in the Supplementary
Declaration annexing such Common Area. The term Neighborhood Common Area shall also
mean and refer to any Common Area designated as being for the primary or exclusive use and
benefit of a specified Neighborhood by the Declarant or the Board of Directors based on such
factors as are deemed appropriate by the Declarant or the Board, inchuding, without limitation,
the location and proximity of such Neighborhood to the Common Area, any special features or
amenities within the Common Area serving such Neighborhood, and the input of interested
Owners and residents within the Property.

Section 1.30. “Neighborhood Special Assessments” shall mean and refer to any
assessment levied by the Association against Lots within a specified Neighborhood in
accordance with Section 5.11 of this Declaration.

Section 1.31. “Owner"” shall mean and refer to the record owner, whether one or more
persons or entities, of a fee simple title to any Lot which is a part of the Property, including
contract sellers, but excluding those having such interest merely as security for the performance
of an obligation.

Section 1.32.  “Participating Builder” shall mean and refer to any person or entity that
acquires one or more Lots for the purpose of constructing residential dwelling units on such Lots
for sale or lease to others.

Section 1.33. “Project” as used in this Declaration shall refer to the Property.

Section 1.34. “Property” shall mean and refer to all real property as may hereafter be
brought within the jurisdiction of the Association pursuant to Article 2 of this Declaration.

Section 1.35,  “Single-Family Detached Lot” shall mean and refer to any Lot upon
which there is construed, or is intended to be constructed, a single-family detached dwelling unit.

Section 1.36. “Special Assessment” shall mean and refer to any assessment levied by
the Association in accordance with Section 5.4 of this Declaration.

5
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Section 1.37. “Town Architect” shall have the meaning specified in Section 7.12 of this
Declaration. '

Section 1.38.  “Townhouse Lot” shall mean and refer to any Lot upon which there is
constructed, or is intended to be constructed, a single-family attached or semi-attached
townhouse dwelling unit.

ARTICLE 2
DECLARANT’S RIGHT TO SUBJECT PROPERTY TO DECLARATION

Section 2.1.  Property Subject to this Declaration. The real property which shall be
held, conveyed, hypothecated, encumbered, sold, leased, rented, used, occupied and improved
subject to this Declaration shall be as described in one or more Supplementary Declarations
recorded by the Declarant among the Land Records. The Declarant shall have the right to
incrementally annex all or any portion of the real property described on Exhibit “A” hereto
within the jurisdiction of the Association by executing and recording one or more Supplementary
Declarations, regardless of the ownership of the real property described on Exhibit ““A” hereto at
the time of such annexation and without the need for the execution or filing of any such
Supplementary Declarations by any other party; provided, however, that the Declarant’s right to
unilaterally annex the real property described on Exhibit “A” hereto shall only continue for a
period of fifteen (15) years from the date of recordation by the Declarant of the first
Supplementary Declaration annexing all or any portion of the real property described on
Exhibit “A” hereto; provided, further, that if the Declarant is delayed in the improvement and
development of the Property on account of a sewer, water or building permit moratorium or any
other cause or event bevond the Declarant’s control, then the aforesaid fifteen (15)-vear period
shall be extended by a period of time equal to the length of the delays or an additional five (5)
years, whichever is less.

Section 2.2,  Annexation_of Property. The real property described on Exhibit “A”
hereto, any real property shown on the Development Plan, any real property contiguous to or in
the vicinity of the real property shown on the Development Plan and any real property
contiguous to or in the vicinity of the real property described on Exhibit “A” hereto, may be
annexed within the jurisdiction of the Association by the Declarant without the consent of the
Class A or Class C Members of the Association, if any, for a period of fifteen (15) years from the
date of recordation by the Declarant of the first Supplementary Declaration annexing all or any
portion of the real property described on Exhibit “A” hereto; provided, however, that if the
Declarant is delayed in the improvement and development of the Property on account of a sewer,
water or building permit moratorium or any other cause or event beyond the Declarant’s control,
then the aforesaid fifteen (15)-year period shall be extended by a period of time equal to the
length of the delays or an additional five (5) years, whichever is less. The scheme of this
Declaration shall not, however, be extended to include any such real property unless and until the
same is annexed within the jurisdiction of the Association by the recordation of a Supplementary
Declaration as hereinafter provided. Except as otherwise provided above with respect to
annexations of real property by the Declarant, annexations of real property within the jurisdiction
of the Association shall require the consent of Members entitled to cast not less than sixty-seven
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percent (67%) of the votes of all Members present, in person or by proxy, and voting at any
meeting of the Association.

Any annexations made pursuant to this Article, or otherwise, shall be made by
recording a Supplementary Declaration among the Land Records, which Supplementary
Declaration shall extend the scheme of the within Declaration to such annexed property. Any
Supplementary Declaration made pursuant to the provisions of this Article may contain such
complementary or supplemental additions and/or modifications to the covenants, conditions
and/or restrictions set forth in the within Declaration as may be considered necessary or
appropriate by the maker of such Supplementary Declaration to reflect the different character or
use, if any, of the annexed property, including, without limitation, a partial or complete waiver of
all or any portion of such covenants, conditions and/or restrictions with respect to the anmexed

property.

So long as the FHA insures, or agrees to insure, loans made with respect the
initial sales of Lots within the Project, no annexation of real property shall be made pursuant to
this Article, or otherwise, except following a determination by the FHA that the annexation
conforms to a general plan for the development of the Project previously approved by the FHA,
or, if no such general plan was approved by the FHA, except following the prior written approval
of the FHA. Failure to obfain such approval may result in the Lots located within the annexed
property not being eligible for FHA insured loans, but such failure shall not be deemed to
preclude or be a waiver of the Declarant’s right to annex real property within the jurisdiction of
the Association.

Every Owner of a Lot in property to be annexed as provided herein shall have an
easement of enjoyment in and to the Common Area and Community Facilities, and such other
rights of use as are provided in Article 3 herein.

Section 2.3,  Deannexation. The Declarant may deannex any property annexed within
the jurisdiction of the Association for a period of fifteen (15) years from the date of recordation
by the Declarant of the first Supplementary Declaration annexing all or any portion of the real
property described on Exhibit “A” hereto; provided, however, that (i) the Declarant is the Owner
of such property at the time of deannexation, or (ii) if the Declarant is not the Gwner of such
property, the Declarant deannexes such property with the written consent of the Owner thereof;
provided, further, that if the Declarant is delayed in the improvement and development of the
Property on account of a sewer, water or building permit moratorium or any other cause or event
beyond the Declarant’s control, then the aforesaid fifteen (15)-year period shall be extended by a
period of time equal to the length of the delays or an additional five (5) years, whichever is less.
Such deannexed property shall no longer be subject to the covenants and restrictions of this
Declaration except for (i) any easements, rights, reservations, exemptions, powers or privileges
reserved to the Declarant pursuant to this Declaration which affect the deannexed property and
(i) any other easements, rights, reservations, exemptions, powers or privileges which are
expressly reserved to the Declarant in the instrument effectuating such deanmexation. Such
deannexation shall be made by recording a Supplementary Declaration among the I.and Records,
withdrawing the effect of the covenants and restrictions of this Declaration from the deannexed
property. Such deannexed property may be utilized by the Declarant, or any successor, assign or
transferee thereof, for any lawful purpose or use.
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So long as the FHA insures, or agrees to insure, loans made with respect the
initial sales of Lots within the Project, no deannexation of real property shall be made pursuant
to this Article, or otherwise, except following a determination by the FHA that the deannexation
1s not contrary to a general plan for the development of the Project previously approved by the
FHA, or, if no such general plan was approved by the FHA, except following the prior wriften
approval of the FHA. Failure to obtain such approval may result in the Lots located within the
deannexed property not being eligible for FHA insured loans, but such failure shall not be
deemed to preclude or be a waiver of the Declarant’s right to deannex real property from within
the jurisdiction of the Association.

Section 2.4.  Common_Areq. All Common Area and completed facilities must be
annexed within the Association by the Declarant in accordance with the terms and conditions of
the approved Regulatory Plans, as may be amended from time to time, and must otherwise be in
accordance with the terins of any Regulatory Plan enforcement agreement, including a phasing
schedule, as may be amended. The Declarant reserves the right to seek an amendment to a
Regulatory Plan for the purpose of modifying the location or amount of real property comprising
the Common Area and for the purpose of modifying the improvements to be constructed on the
Common Area which amendment shall be reviewed by the Planning Board in accordance with
applicable law. Such amendment shall be effective only if approved by the Planning Board.

ARTICLE 3
PROPERTY RIGHTS

Section 3.1,  Owners’ Easements of Enjovment. Every Owner shall have a right and
easement of enjoyment in and to the Common Area and Community Facilities, including an
easement for the use and enjoyment of the private streets, driveways, alleys, parking areas,
pathways and walkways within the Common Area, which shall be appurtenant to and shall pass
with the title to every Lot, subject to the following provisions:

(a) the right of the Association to charge reasonable and uniform admission
and other fees for the use of the Common Area and Community Facilities;

(b) the right of the Association to suspend an Owner’s voting rights and right
to use the Common Area and/or Community Facilities (i) for any period during which any
assessment against such Owner’s Lot remains unpaid, and (ii) after notice and an opportunity for
a hearing, for a period not to exceed one hundred twenty (120) days for any infraction of its
published rules and regulations; provided, however, that the obligation of such Owner to pay
Assessments shall continue unabated during such period of suspension of voting rights or right to
utilize the Common Area and/or Community Facilities;

(c) the might of the Association to dedicate, sell or transfer all or any part of
the Common Area and/or Community Facilities fo any public agency, authority, or utility for
such purposes and subject to such conditions as may be agreed to by the Members. No such
dedication, sale or transfer shall be effective without the consent of two-thirds (2/3) of each class
of Members and fifty-one percent (51%) of the Eligible Mortgage Holders, and unless the
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Maryland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission, or its successor or assign, has given
its prior written approval thereof, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed;

(d) the right of the Association to limit the number of guests of Owners
utilizing the Common Area and Community Facilities; :

(e) the right of the Declarant and the Association to establish Administrative
Resolutions and Equity Resolutions pertaining to the use of the Property, the Common Area and
the Community Facilities; '

H the right of the Association to establish uniform rules and regulations
pertaining to the use of the Common Area and Community Facilities;

(g) the right of the Declarant to designate all or any portion of the Common
Area as being for the exclusive or primary use of the Owners and residents within a specified
Neighborhood;

(h} the right of the Declarant and the Association to designate all or any
portion of the Common Area as being for the exclusive or primary use of the Owners and
residents within a specified Neighborhood pursuant to a duly adopted Equity Resolution;

(1) the right of the Association to provide for the exclusive use by certain
Owners and residents of designated parking spaces within the Common Area;

)] the right of the Association, the Declarant, utility companies and other
owners with respect to the easements established by this Declaration;

&) the right of the Association, in accordance with its Articles of
Incorporation and Bylaws, and with the consent of two-thirds (2/3) of each class of Members of
the Association, to borrow money for the purpose of improving the Common Area and
Community Facilities in a manner designed to promote the enjoyment and welfare of the
Members and in aid thereof to mortgage any of the Common Area and Community Facilities;

D the right of the Association to take such steps as are reasonably necessary
to protect the property of the Association against mortgage default and foreclosures; provided,
however, that the same are in conformity with the other provisions of this Declaration;

(m)  the right of the Declarant, as more fully set forth in Section 10.1 of this
Declaration, to grant easements, to utilize reserved rights and easements, and to otherwise utihze
the Common Area and Community Facilities as it deems appropriate in connection with the
development of the Project;

(1) the right of the Association, acting by and through its Board of Directors,
to grant easements, licenses or other rights of use of the Common Area and Community
Facilities to persons or entities who are not Members of the Association for such consideration
and on such terms and conditions as the Board of Directors may from time to time consider
appropriate or in the best interest of the Association or the Property;
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(0) the right of the Association to be the lessee of any portion or ali of the
Common Area and the right of the Association to enforce the terms of the lease with respect fo
such Common Area against such property and the Owners and their guests, lessees and invitees;
and

_ (p)  the right of the Association, acting by and through its Board of Directors,
to transfer or convey portions of the Common Area for purposes of adjusting the boundary lines
of one or more Lots and/or the Common Area; provided, however, that such transfer or
conveyance has been approved, as necessary, by applicable local governmental authorities or
agencies, or is otherwise in conformance with applicable law, local zoning ordmances,
governmental guidelines, or restrictions.

Section 3.2.  Limitations.

(a) Any other provision of this Declaration fo the contrary notwithstanding,
the Association shall have no right to suspend the right of any Member of the Association to use
any private streets, driveways, alleys and roadways located within the Common Area for both
vehicular and pedestrian ingress and egress to and from such Member’s Lot. The Common Arca
will be available for the type of active and passive recreational and open space uses
contemplated in the Planning Board’s regulatory approvals. All Owners shall have the right to
access and make reasonable use of the Common Area and facilities as described in the approved
Regulatory Plans both before and after they are conveyed to the Association, with the exception
of those areas as may be reasonably and necessarily restricted for access because of temporary
safety reasons.

(b} Any other provision of this Declaration to the contrary notwithstanding,
the Association shall have no right to suspend the right of any Member of the Association to use
the Common Area for necessary, ordinary and reasonable vehicular and pedestrian ingress and
egress to and from such Owner’s Lot or to suspend any easement over the Common Area for
storm water drainage, electrical energy, water, sanitary sewer, natural gas, CATV or similar
service, telephone service or similar utilities and services to the Lots.

Section 3.3. Delegation of Use. Any Owner may delegate, in accordance with the
Bylaws and rules and regulations of the Association, such Owner’s right of enjoyment to the
Common Area and Community Facilities to the members of such Owner’s family, such Owner’s
tenants, social invitees, or contract purchasers who reside within the Property.

ARTICLE 4
MEMBERSHIP AND VOTING RIGHTS

Section 4.1.  Membership. Every Owner of a Lot shall be a Member of the Association.
Membership shall be appurtenant to and may not be separated from ownership of any Lot.

Section 4.2.  Voting Rights. The Association shall initially have three (3) classes of
voting membership, Class A, Class B and Class C.
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Class A. With the exception of the Declarant (until expiration of the Class C
memberships as provided below), every person, group of persons, corporation, partnership, trust
or other legal entity, or any combination thereof, who is an Owner of a Single-Family Detached
Lot (including any Participating Builder) shall be a Class A Member of the Association;
provided, however, that any such person, group of persons, corporation, partnership, trust or
other legal entity, or any combination thereof, who holds such interest solely as security for the
performance of an obligation shall not be a Class A Member solely on account of such interest.
Each Single-Family Detached Lot shall entitle the Owner of such Lot to cast one (1) vote in the
affairs of the Association. When more than one (1) person or entity are the Owners of any
Single-Family Detached Lot, all such persons and entities shall be Class A Members. The vote
for such Single-Family Detached Lot shall be exercised as they among themselves determirie, but
in no event shall more than one (1) vote be cast with respect to any Single-Family Detached Lot
owned by a Class A Member. Any Class A Member who leases his or her Single-Family
Detached Lot may, in the lease or other written instrument, assign the voting right appurtenant to
that Single-Family Detached Lot to the lessee, provided that a copy of such instrument is
furnished to the Association.

Class B. With the exception of the Declarant (until expiration of the Class C
memberships as provided below), every person, group of persons, corporation, partnership, trust
or other legal entity, or any combination thereof, who is an Owner of a Townhouse Lot
(including any Participating Builder) shall be a Class B Member of the Association; provided,
however, that any such person, group of persons, corporation, partnership, trust or other legal
entity, or any combination thereof, who holds such interest solely as security for the performance
of an obligation shall not be a Class B Member solely on account of such interest. Each
Townhouse Lot shall entitle the Owner of such Lot to cast one (1) vote in the affairs of the
Association. When more than one (1) person or entity are the Owners of any Townhouse Lot, all
such persons and entities shall be Class B Members. The vote for such Townhouse Lot shall be
exercised as they among themselves determine, but in no event shall more than one (1) vote be
cast with respect to any Townhouse Lot owned by a Class B Member. Any Class B Member
who leases his or her Townhouse Lot may, in the lease or other written instrument, assign the
voting right appurtenant to that Townhouse Lot to the lessee, provided that a copy of such
instrument is furnished to the Association.

Class €. There shall initially be four hundred seventy-seven (477) Class C
memberships in the Association. This number shall be increased by three (3) memberships for
each Lot which is annexed within the jurisdiction of the Association in accordance with Section
2.2 of this Declaration in excess of one hundred fifty-nine (159) Lots, and shall be decreased by
three (3) memberships for each Lot conveyed to a Class A or Class B Member (excluding any
Lot conveyed to a Participating Builder). The Class C Member shall be the Declarant, its
nominee or nominees, and shall include every person, group of persons; corporation, partnership,
trust or other legal entity, or any combination thereof, who shall obtain any Class C membership
by specific assignment in writing from the Declarant.

The Class C Member shall be entitled to one (1) vote for each Class C
membership. Each Class C membership shall lapse and become a nullity on the first to happen
of the following events:
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(i) one hundred twenty (120) days following the date on which the
total authorized, issued and outstanding votes of the Class A and Class B Members (excluding
any Participating Builder) equals the number of Class C memberships; or

(i) fifteen (15) years from the date of recordation by the Declarant of
the first Supplementary Declaration annexing all or any portion of the real property described on
Exhibit “A” hereto; provided, however, that if the Declarant is delayed in the improvement and
development of the Property on account of a sewer, water or building permit moratorium or any
other cause or event beyond the Declarant’s control, then the aforesaid fifteen (15)-year period
shall be extended by a period of time equal to the length of the delays or an additional five (5)
years, whichever is less; or

(i1i))  upon the surrender of said Class C memberships by the then
holders thereof for cancellation on the books of the Association.

Upon the lapse or surrender of the Class C memberships as provided for in
this Article, the Declarant shall thereafter become a Class A and/or Class B Member of the
Association, as applicable, as to each and every Lot in which the Declarant then holds the
interest otherwise required for such membership.

ARTICLE 5
COVENANT FOR MAINTENANCE ASSESSMENTS

Section 3.1,  Creation of the Lien and Personal Obligation for Assessments. There are
hereby created Assessments for Common Expenses as may be from time to time specifically
authorized by the Board of Directors to be commenced at the time and in the manner set forth in
this Article. Each Owner of any Lot by acceptance of a deed therefor, whether or not it shall be
so expressed in such deed, is deemed to covepant and agree to pay to the Association: Annual
Assessments, Special Assessments, Neighborhood Assessments, Neighborhood Special
Assessments, and all other Assessments as may be levied by the Association in accordance with
this Declaration. All Assessments, together with interest, costs, late fees and reasonable
attorneys’ fees, shall be a charge on the Lot (including all improvements thereon), and shall be a
continuing lien upon the property against which each such Assessment is made, provided the
requirements of the Maryland Contract Lien Act, if applicable, have been fulfilled. Each such
Assessment, together with interest, costs, late fees and reasonable attorneys’ fees, shall also be
the personal obligation of the person who was the Owner of the Lot at the time when the
Assessment fell due. The personal obligation for delinquent Assessments shall not pass to a
prior Owner’s successors in title unless expressly assumed by such successors.

Section 5.2, Purpose of Assessments.

(a) The Assessments levied by the Association shall be used exclusively to
promote the recreation, health, safety, and welfare of the residents in the Property and for the
improvement, maintenance, repair and replacement of the Common Area and Community
Facilities, the maintenance and repair of the Lawn and Garden Area (if the Association elects to
perform such maintenance and repair), the maintenance, repair and replacement of any rights-of-

way, median strips, signage, entry strips and entrance features or improvements that serve and/or
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benefit the Association, the payment of real estate taxes, assessments and utility services for the
Common Area and Community Facilities, management fees, administration expenses, insurance
and all other costs and expenses incurred by the Association in the proper conduct of its
activities, including, without limitation, reserves for replacements or contingencies, and charges
accruing under any cross-easement or other agreement (including, without limitation, any such
agreement for the maintenance of any storm water management facility). The Assessments may
also be used for the maintenance, repair and replacement of any property or facilities serving or
appurtenant to the Property which the Association is obligated or elects to maintain whether or
not such property or facilities are owned by the Association or are located within the Property
(including, without limitation, any property or facilities which the Association is authonzed to
maintain pursuant to this Declaration).

(b) The Assessments levied by the Association shall also be used for
maintaining and providing reserves for any and all storm water management facilities, including,
without limitation, drainage pipes, infiltration trenches, ponds, basins, swales, berms, out-flow
control devices, drainage areas, filters, inlets, oil/grit separators and underground facilities, if
any, whether such storm water management facilities are located within the Property or not, as
long as such storm water management facilities are designed to benefit or serve any portion of
the Property and are required or intended to be maintained by the Association pursuant to any
casement, agreement or the direction of any governmental authority or agency. The Association
shall not refuse to accept the conveyance of any such facilities from the Declarant. Such
stormwater management facilities may also benefit property not within the jurisdiction of the
Association and the maintenance of such facilities may be set forth in a cross-easement or other
agreement in which event the Association shall maintain the facilities pursuant to such
agreement.

Section 5.3.  Assessments; Budgets. Until January 1 of the year immediately following
the first conveyance of a Lot to a Class A or Class B Member (not including any Participating
Builder), Assessments shall be imposed in amounts established by the Declarant in its sole
discretion. Thereafter, the Board of Directors shall from time to time set the Assessments in
amounts sufficient to meet the Common Expenses of the Association. Without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, the Association shall, at all times, levy and collect Assessments in
sufficient amounts to (i) maintain the Common Area and Community Facilities in accordance
with sound property management standards, and (ii) establish necessary reserves for the future
repair and replacement of any capital improvements within the Common Area. The Board of
Directors shall determine the amount of the Assessments before the beginning of each fiscal year
in connection with preparation of the Association’s annual budget, and may do so at more
frequent intervals should circumstances so require.

The Board of Directors shall make a reasonable effort to prepare a budget at least
thirty (30) days before the beginning of the fiscal year. The budget shall include the estimated
costs of operating the Association during the coming vear and shall also include an amount
sufficient to establish and maintain a reserve fund in accordance with a reserve fund budget
separately prepared by the Board of Directors pursuant to Section 5.9. The Board of Directors
may determine, in its discretion, during any fiscal year to amend the then current budget as may
be necessary to meet the Common Expenses of the Association. The budget, including any
amendment if applicable, and the Assessments shall become effective unless a special meeting of
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the Association is duly held and at such special meeting the budget, including any amendment if
applicable, and the Assessments are disapproved by a vote of Members entitled to cast not less
than sixty-seven percent (67%) of the votes of all Members present, in person or by proxy, and
voting at such meeting. Notwithstanding the foregoing, however, in the event that the
membership disapproves the budget, or any amendment if applicable, or in the event that the
Board of Directors fails for any reason to determine the budget for the succeeding year, then and
until such time as a budget shall have been determined as provided herein, the budget in effect
for the then current year shall continue for the succeeding year, or, in the case of an amendment,
for the remainder of the then current year.

The Declarant may establish a working capital fund for the initial and ongoing
operation of the Association. Such working capital fund may be funded by a one-time
assessment of up to two (2) times the monthly Assessment for a Lot and shall be payable, if
established, by the Declarant’s or Participating Builder’s grantee upon the earlier of settlement or
occupancy of a completed dwelling located on any Lot.

Upon resolution of the Board of Directors, installments of Annual Assessments
may be levied and collected on a monthly, quarterly, semi-annual or annual basis. Any Class A
or Class B Member may prepay one or more installments of any Annual Assessment levied by
the Association, without premium or penalty.

Section 5.4.  Special Assessmenzs. In addition to the Annual Assessments authorized
above, the Association may levy, in any assessment year, a Special Assessment or Special
Assessments applicable fo that year for such purposes as the Board of Directors may deem
appropriate; provided that any such Special Assessment shall be approved by Members entitled
to cast not less than sixty-seven percent (67%) of the votes of all Members present, in person or
by proxy, and voting at a meeting of the Association duly called for this purpose. The
Association may also levy a Special Assessment against any Owner to reimburse the Association
for costs incurred in bringing any Owner and his or her Lot into compliance with the provisions
of this Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation, the Bylaws and the rules and regulations of the
Association. Such a Special Assessment may be levied upon the vote of the Board of Directors
after notice to the Owner and an opportunity for a hearing before the Board of Directors.

Section 3.5.  Notice and Quorum. Written notice of any meeting called for the purpose
of establishing a Special Assessment in accordance with Section 5.4 hereof, shall be sent to all
Members not less than thirty (30) days nor more than sixty (60) days in advance of such meeting.
At the first such meeting called, the presence of Members or of proxies entitled to cast sixty
percent (60%) of the votes of each class of Members shall constitute a quorum. If the required
quorum is not present, another meeting may be called subject to the same notice requirement and
the required quorum at the subsequent meeting shall be one-half (1/2) of the required quorum at
the preceding meeting. No such subsequent meeting shall be held more than sixty (60) days

following the preceding meeting.

Section 5.6. Variable Annuial Assessment Rates.

(a) Annual Assessments shall be imposed upon the Lots at different rates,
which shall correspond to the differing types of Living Units constructed, or to be constructed,
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upon such Lots. Such Annual Assessment rates shall be based on actual or projected costs
incurred or anticipated to be incurred by the Association relating to the operation and
maintenance of the Property, as determined by the Board of Directors in its sole discretion.
There shall initially be the following classes of Annual Assessments: Townhouse Lot Class
Rates and Single-Family Detached Lot Class Rates. Subject to the provisions of Section 5.6(b)
hereof, the Annual Assessment rate applicable to each class shall be as determined by the Board
of Directors of the Association, and shall be set forth in the annual budgets, and any amendments
thereto, adopted by the Board of Directors in accordance with this Declaration.

(b) Any provision of this Declaration to the contrary notwithstanding, for the
duration of the Declarant’s Rights and Obligations Period the Declarant may establish additional -
Annual Assessment rates, and/or may increase or decrease the existing Annual Assessment rates
otherwise applicable to specific Lots and/or Living Units annexed, or to be annexed, within the
jurisdiction of the Association to such amount as the Declarant shall deem appropriate, in its sole
discretion, in relation to the level of services and benefits available to, or anticipated to be
utilized by, the Owners and residents such Lots and/or Living Units, and the anticipated cost {o
the Association of providing such services and benefits. In the event that the Declarant
determines to decrease the Annual Assessment rate otherwise applicable to such Lots or Living
Units pursuant to this Section 5.6(b), the Declarant may also limit, in whole or in part as the
Declarant shall deem appropriate in relation to the decreased Annual Assessment rate applicable
to such Lots or Living Units, the right of the Owners of such Lots or Living Units to vote on
matters arising before the Association. The Declarant’s determination under this Section 5.6(b)
may be set forth in a Supplementary Declaration recorded by Declarant for purposes of annexing
such Lots or Living Units within the jurisdiction of the Association in accordance with Article 2
of this Declaration. Following termination of the Declarant’s Rights and Obligations Period, the
Declarant’s rights and powers under this Section 5.6(b) shall be deemed to be transferred and
assigned to, and shall thereafter be exercised by, the Board of Directors of the Association. Any
determination made by the Board of Directors under this Section 5.6(b) shall be reflected in a
duly adopted Equity Resolution. '

(c) In the event that the actions or activities of any Owner causes or results in
increased expenses for the Association, the Board of Directors may assess such increase in
expenses against the Owner and such Owner’s Lot, after notice to such Owner and an
opportunity for a hearing. For example, and for purposes of illustration only, the Board of
Directors may assess the amount of any insurance deductible paid by the Association against any
Owmner and such Owner’s Lot if the Association is required to pay such deductible as a result of
the misuse or neglect of the Owner. Such Assessment shall be a lien against the Owner’s Lot
and shall be payable and collectible in the same manner as any other Assessments required to be
paid to the Association; provided, however, that neither the Declarant or any Participating
Builder shall be subject to any Assessment based on this Section 5.6(c).

Section 5.7.  Assessment of Declarant; Assessment of Participating Builders,

(a) Any provision hereof to the contrary notwithstanding, Lots owned by the
Declarant shall not at any time be subject to any Assessments levied by the Association, and the
Declarant shall have no obligation whatsoever to pay any such Assessments. Lots formerly
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owned by the Declarant shall cease to be exempt from such Assessments commencing upon
transfer or conveyance of any such Lot from the Declarant fo any other Owner.

(b) Except to the extent provided otherwise in this Section, Lots owned by the
Participating Builders shall not at any time be subject to any Assessment levied by the
Association, and the Participating Builders shall have no obligation to pay any such Assessment.
Each Participating Builder shall pay to the Association the following per Lot assessment
amounts upon transfer or conveyance of each Lot from the Declarant to such Participating
Builder (the “Participating Builder Assessments™): One Hundred Fifty Dollars ($150.00) per
Townhouse Lot; and Two Hundred Dollars ($200.00) per Single-Family Detached Lot. Further,
the Participating Builders shall be solely responsible for all costs and expenses associated with
the maintenance and repair of the dwelling units and structures located on the Lots owned by the
Participating Builders. Any Lot owned by a Participating Builder shall be subject to the full
amount of all Assessments levied by the Association commencing upon the earlier of (i) the
transfer or conveyance of such Lot to an Owner other than the Declarant or a Participating
Builder, (ii) the day upon which the Living Unit located upon such Lot is first occupied and/or used
for residential purposes, whether pursuant to a lease of such Living Unit or otherwise, by any person
or entity other than the Declarant, including, without limitation, by any Participating Builder, or (iii)
two (2) years after such Lot has been ammexed within the jurisdiction of the Association in
accordance with Article 2 of this Declaration. All amounts required hereunder to be paid by the
Participating Builders shall be payable and collectible in the same manner as any other
Assessments required to be paid to the Association. For the duration of the Declarant’s Rights
and Obligations Period, the Declarant may increase or decrease the Participating Builder
Assessment otherwise applicable to specific Lots and/or Living Units annexed, or to be annexed,
within the jurisdiction of the Association to such amount or amounts as the Declarant shall deem
necessary or appropriate, in its sole discretion.

Section 5.8.  Date_of Commencement of Annual Assessments; Due Dates. Unless an
earlier commencement date is established by the Board of Directors, the Annual Assessments
provided for herein shall commence as to all Lots simultaneously with the conveyance of the
first Lot to a Class A or Class B Member. The first Annual Assessment shall be adjusted
according to the number of months remaining in the calendar year. Written notice of the Annual
Assessment shall be sent to every Owner subject thereto. The due dates shall be established by
the Board of Directors.

Section 5.9.  Reserve Fund Budget and Contribution. The Board of Directors shall
annually prepare a reserve fund budget which shall take into account the number and nature of
the replaceable assets of the Association, the expected life of each asset, and the expected repair
or replacement cost of each asset. The Board of Directors shall set the required reserve fund
contribution, if any, in an amount sufficient to meet the projected reserve needs of the
Association, as shown on the reserve fund budget, with respect both to amount and timing by the
imposition of Annual Assessments over the period of the budget. The reserve fund contribution
shall be fixed by the Board of Directors and included within the budget and Assessment, as
provided in Section 5.3. Such reserve fund contribution shall be payable as part of the Annual
Assessment, applicable to all Lots (except as otherwise provided with respect to Lots owned by
the Declarant and the Participating Builders in Section 5.7), to the extent such reserve fund will
be utilized to replace assets which are determined by the Board of Directors to benefit
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substantially all Owners. Reserves may also be maintained for operating contingencies and
insurance deductibles. A copy of the reserve fund budget shall be distributed to each Owner in
the same manner as the operating budget. Except where an emergency requires an expenditure
to prevent or minimize loss from further damage to, or deterioration of, the Common Area or
Community Facilities, reserves accumulated for one purpose may not be expended for any other
purpose unless approved by the Board of Directors and by the affirmative vote of Members
entitled to cast not less than fifty-one percent (51%) of the votes of all Members present, in
person or by proxy, and voting at a meeting of the Association duly called for this purpose.

Section 3.10. Neighborhood Assessments. Subject to the limitations applicable to
Assessments imposed on Lots owned by the Declarant and the Participating Builders pursuant to
this Article, and in addition to the Assessments provided for above in this Article, each Owner of
a Lot within any Neighborhood, by acceptance of a deed therefor, whether or not it shall be so
expressed in any such deed, shall be deemed to covenant and agree to pay the Association that
Owner’s proportionate share of the annual Neighborhood Assessments estimated by the Board of
Directors to be necessary to meet the annual expenses of maintaining the Neighborhood
Common Area appurtenant to such Neighborhood, and performing any other services which
primarily benefit the Lots within that Neighborhood, as determined by the Board of Directors in
its sole discretion, which may include, but not be limited to, the maintenance, repair and
replacement of the private streets, parking areas, sidewalks, trails and pathways, if any, that serve
that Neighborhood, and for performing such other maintenance, repairs and replacements upon
the Neighborhood Common Area or other property within or appurtenant to such Neighborhood
as the Board of Directors may from time to time elect to perform, including, but not limited to,
the following: '

(a) the cost of maintaining, replacing and repairing the Neighborhood
Common Area and other property within or appurtenant to such Neighborhood (and any
improvements situated thereon), in whole or in part, including, without limitation, snow removal,
parking area striping, street lighting, sweeping, washing, landscaping (including, but not limited
to, mowing, fertilizing, watering and mulching, and the repair and replacement of trees, bushes,
shrubbery and other plant material), specialty signing and the like; and '

(b) the cost of funding a separate reserve to be established by the Association
for the non-recurring repair and replacement of the Neighborhood Common Area and other
property within or appurtenant to such Neighborhood (and any improvements situated thereon),
in whole or in part.

The Board of Directors shall determine the amount of the Neighborhood
Assessments annually, but may do so at more frequent intervals should circumstances so require.
Upon resolution of the Board of Directors, installments of annual Neighborhood Assessments
may be levied and collected on a monthly, quarterly, semi-annual or annual basis. Any Member
may prepay one or more installments of any ammual Neighborhood Assessment levied by the
Association, without premium or penalty.

The Board of Directors shall prepare, or cause the preparation of, an annual
budget for the Neighborhood Assessments for each Neighborhood. The budget shall be prepared
and distributed to the Owners within such Neighborhood and adopted by the Board of Directors

17

IMANAGE: 311543 v.07 06724.0033
Ed. £8/26/2003



753hb  b38

of the Association in accordance with the provisions of Section 5.3 of this Declaration. The
Board of Directors of the Association shall make a reasonable effort to fix the amount of the
annual Neighborhood Assessments against each Lot within each Neighborhood at least thirty
(30) days before the beginning of the fiscal year. Written notice of the annual Neighborhood
Assessments shall thereupon be sent to the Owners within such Neighborhood. The omission by
the Board of Directors, before the expiration of any assessment period, to fix the amount of the
anmual Neighborhood Assessments hereunder for that or the next period, or the disapproval of
the budget by the Members pursuant to this Declaration, shall not be deemed to be a waiver or
modification in any respect of the provisions of this Article or a release of any Owner so
obligated from the obligation to pay the annual Neighborhood Assessments, or any installment
thereof, for that or any subsequent assessment period; but the Neighborhood Assessments fixed
for the preceding period shall continue until a new Neighborhood Assessment is established. No
Owner of a Lot within a Neighborhood may exempt himself or herself from liability for the
Neighborhood Assessments applicable to such Lot by abandonment of the Lot, or by the
abandonment of his or her right to the use and enjoyment of the Neighborhood Common Area
within such Neighborhood.

Section 5.11.  Neighborhood Special Assessments. In addition to the regular annual
Neighborhood Assessments authorized by this Article, the Association may levy, in any
assessment year, a Neighborhood Special Assessment or Neighborhood Special Assessments,
applicable to that year for the purpose of defraying, in whole or in part, the cost of any
construction or reconstruction, extraordinary repair or replacement of a capital improvement
located upon, or forming a part of, the Neighborhood Common Area within such Neighborhood,
or located upon, or forming part of, other property exclusively benefitting or serving the Lots
within such Neighborhood, or for such other purposes as the Board of Directors may deem
appropriate; provided that any such special Neighborhood Assessment shall be approved by
Members entitled to cast not less than sixty-seven percent (67%) of the votes of all Members
within such Neighborhood present, in person or by proxy, and voting at a meeting of the
Association duly called for this purpose.

Section 5.12. Neighborhood Notice and Quorym. Written notice of any meeting called
for the purpose of establishing a Neighborhood Special Assessment in accordance with Section
5.11 hereof shall be sent to all Owners within the Neighborhood not less than thirty (30) days nor
more than sixty (60) days in advance of such meeting, At the first such meeting called, the
presence of Members or of proxies entitled to cast sixty percent (60%) of the votes of all
Members within such Neighborhood shall constitute a quorum. If the required quorum is not
present, another meeting may be called subject to the same notice requirement and the required
quorum at the subsequent meeting shall be one-half (1/2) of the required quorum at the preceding
meeting. No such subsequent meeting shall be held more than sixty (60) days following the
preceding meeting.

Section 5.13. Reserve for Repairs and Replacements of the Neighborhood Common
Area. The Association shall establish and maintain separate reserve funds for repairs and
replacements (in whole or in part) of the Neighborhood Common Area for each Neighborhood,
and of other property within or appurtenant to such Neighborhood (and any improvements
situated thereon) by the allocation and payment periodically to such reserve funds of an amount
to be designated from time to time by the Board of Directors to be collected from the Lot Owners
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within such Neighborhood. The reserve for repairs and replacements of the Neighborhood
‘Common Area within any particular Neighborhood (and any improvements situated thereon)
may be expended only for the purpose of effecting the repairs and replacement (in whole or in
part) for such Neighborhood Common Area or other property within or appurtenant to such
Neighborhood (and any improvements situated thereon) including, without limitation, the repair
and replacement of any private streets, parking areas, sidewalks, trails and pathways, if any,
constructed thereon, and for operating contingencies of a non-recurring nature relating to such
property and any improvements situated thereon. The Association may establish such other
reserves for such other purposes associated with any Neighborhood as the Board of Directors
may from time to time consider to be necessary or appropriate.

ARTICLE 6
REMEDIES OF ASSOCIATION FOR NON PAYMENT OF ASSESSMENTS

Section 6.1.  Non-Pavment of Assessments. Any Assessment levied by the Association
which is not paid within ten (10) days after the due date established for such Assessment by the
Board of Directors, may, upon resolution of the Board, bear interest from the due date until paid
at the rate of interest established by the Board, not to exceed the maximum, if any, rate of
interest permitted under the laws of the State of Maryland. The Board of Directors may also
impose a reasonable late fee against any Owner (and such Owner’s Lot} for failure to pay any
Assessment within ten (10) days after the due date for such Assessment. The Association may
bring an action at law against the Owner personally obligated to pay the delinquent Assessment,
and/or foreclose on the lien against such Owner’s Lot in the manner now or hereafter provided
under the Maryland Contract Lien Act, or as may otherwise be provided under applicable law.
The Owner personally obligated to pay the delinquent Assessment shall also be obligated to pay
all attorneys’ fees, court costs and administrative costs incurred by the Association in connection
with the collection of such Assessment. No Owner may waive or otherwise escape liability for
Assessments by non-use of the Common Area, Neighborhood Common Area, or Community
Facilities, or by abandonment of such Owner’s Lot. This Section shall not be deemed to limit or
waive, and shall be without prejudice to, any and all rights, remedies, or recourses as may be
available to the Association for the non-payment of Assessments.

Section 6.2.  Assessmeni Certificate.  The Association shall, upon demand of any
Owner, issue such Owner a written certificate signed by an officer of the Association setting
forth whether the Assessments applicable to such Owner’s Lot have been paid, and if not paid,
the amount of the delinquent Assessments. A properly executed certificate of the Association
regarding the status of Assessments on a Lot shall be binding on the Association as of the date of
issuance. If permitted by applicable law, the Association may charge a reasonable fee for the
1ssuance of each such certificate.

Section 6.3.  Acceleration of Installments. Upon default in the payment of any
Assessment, the entire balance of all unpaid Assessments for the remainder of the fiscal year
may, at the Board’s discretion, be accelerated and declared due and payable in full, in the same
manner as the delinguent portion of such Assessment.

Section 6.4.  Priority of Lien. The lien for Assessments provided for herein shall be
subordinate to the lien of any First Mortgage or deed of trust recorded against a Lot. Sale or

19

IMANAGE: 311543 v.07 06724.0033
Ed. 09/26/2003



253bb bl

transfer of any Lot shall not affect the Assessment lien; provided, however, that the sale or
transfer of any Lot pursuant to mortgage or deed of trust foreclosure or any proceeding in lieu
thereof, shall extinguish the lien of such Assessments as to installments which became due prior
to such sale or transfer. No sale or transfer of a Lot shall exempt such Lot or the Owner thercof
from liability for any Assessments thereafter coming due or from the lien thereof. No
amendment to this Section shall affect the rights of the holder of any First Mortgage on a Lot (or
the indebtedness secured thereby) recorded prior to recordation of such amendment unless the
holder thereof (or of the indebtedness secured thereby) shall join in the execution of such
amendment.

ARTICLE 7
ARCHITECTURAL CONTROL

Section 7.1.  Architectural Review_ and Control. No construction or development
activities, including, without limitation, staking, clearing, landscaping, excavation, grading or
other site work, shall be commenced, erected or maintained on any Lot or the Common Area, no
building, structure or other improvement of any kind, including, without limitation, fences, walls,
mailboxes, swimming pools and decks, shall be commenced, erected or maintained within the
Property, and no exterior addition, change or alteration of any nature to the Lots or other existing
improvements within the Property, including, without limitation, changes in color, changes or
additions to driveway or walkway surfaces and landscaping modifications, shall be commenced,
erected or maintained (all of the foregoing are referred to herein, individually and collectively, as
“Improvements™) unless and until complete plans and specifications for such Improvements have
been approved, in writing, in accordance with the applicable provisions of this Article.

Section 7.2.  New Construction. No construction of the initial Improvements on a Lot
by a Participating Builder may be commenced, erected or maintained until complete plans and
specifications for such Improvements have been approved, in writing, by the Declarant. The
Declarant shall have thirty (30} days from its actual receipt of all the material which it may
reasonably request from the Participating Builder in which to approve or disapprove such plans
and specifications. Failure to respond within this time frame shall be deemed automatic approval
of the plans and specifications by the Declarant. The approval of the Declarant shall in no way
be substituted in licu of applicable governmental approvals and permits and no construction may
commence until all such approvals and permits have been obtained. The Declarant’s approval
shall not be construed as a representation or warranty of any type regarding the design or
construction of any Improvement built by any Participating Builder. The Declarant may
disapprove any plans and specifications (or any elements or features thereof) for any reason, in
its sole discretion, and approval of any plans and specifications (or any elements or features
thereof) does not constitute a waiver of the right to disapprove the same or similar plans and
specifications (or any elements or features thercof) subsequently submitted for any purpose. Any
provision of this Declaration to the contrary notwithstanding, the approval of the Declarant under
this Section shall be the only approval required pursuant to this Declaration with respect to the
construction of the initial Improvements on a Lot by a Participating Builder; provided, however,
that such approval shall also be subject to the applicable terms and conditions of any binding
written agreement, if any, between the Declarant and any Participating Builder regarding the
construction of such Improvements.
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Section 7.3.  Architectural Review Entity. Except for the initial Improvements on the
Lots made by the Participating Builders (which shall be approved by the Declarant in accordance
with Section 7.2 above), no other individual or entity, including, without limitation, all Members
of the Association, may commence, erect or maintain any Improvements within the Property
until complete plans and specifications for such Improvements have been approved, in writing,
by the “Architectural Review Entity” (as defined below) in accordance with Sections 7.3 through
7.12 hereof. As used in this Declaration, the term “Architectural Review Entity” shall mean and
refer fo the entity having jurisdiction at any particular time with respect to the matters described
in this Article, and may be, as applicable, the Declarant, the Board of Directors of the
Association and/or the Architectural Review Committee.

(a) Declarant as Architectural Review Entity.

The Declarant shall be entitled to exercise all rights and powers of the
Architectural Review Entity under this Declaration until the first to occur of (i) the termination
of the Declarant’s Rights and Obligations Period, or (ii) the recordation by the Declarant of a
written instrument among the Land Records expressing the Declarant’s express intention to
relinquish all or any portion of the rights and powers of the Architectural Review Entity under
this Declaration, whereupon, all or any specified portion of the rights and powers of the
Architectural Review Entity shall be deemed to be transferred and assigned to, and shall
thereafter be exercised by, the Board of Directors of the Association. FEach Owner, by
acceptance of a deed or other instrument conveying an interest in any portion of the Property,
whether or not it shall be so expressed in such deed or other instrument, shall be deemed to
- covenant and agree that, as the developer and initial owner of the Property, the Declarant has a
significant and substantial interest in ensuring that the Improvements within the Property are
consistent with the Development Plan, and that such Improvements do not have an adverse
impact upon the Declarant’s ongoing ability to market, sell, and/or lease all or any portion of the
Property. Accordingly, in its exercise of the rights and powers of the Architectural Review
Entity under this Declaration, the Declarant shall have the right to approve or disapprove any
plans and specification for Improvements submitted to it for review under this Declaration for
any reason whatsoever, in the Declarant’s sole discretion, and the Owners hereby acknowledge
that, in reviewing and acting upon any such plans and specifications the Declarant shall be acting
in its own interest and shall owe no duty whatsoever to any other individual or entity, including,
without limitation, the Association and its Members.

(b} Association as Architectural Review Entity.

Commencing upon transfer of all or any portion of the rights and powers
of the Architectural Review Entity to the Association pursuant to Section 7.3(a) hereof, the rights
and powers of the Architectural Review Entity so transferred shall thereafter be exercised by the
Board of Directors of the Association, or by an architectural review committee appointed by the
Board of Directors {the “Architectural Review Committee™). If established by the Board of
Directors, the Architectural Review Committee shall consist of an uneven number of at least
three (3) but not more than seven (7) members who shall serve at the pleasure of and may be
removed and replaced at the discretion of the Board of Directors. The members of such
Architectural Review Committee need not be Members of the Association, and may, but need
not, include architects, engineers and similar design professionals, whose compensation, if any,
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shall be established from time to time by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall
make a good faith effort, but shall not be required, to employ a Town Architect in accordance
with Section 7.12 hereof.

Section 7.4.  Review by the Architectural Review Entity. No Improvement of any kind
shall be commenced, erected or maintained upon the Property until complete plans and
specifications showing the nature, kind, shape, height, materials, and location of the same shall
have been submitted to and approved in writing as to harmony of external design and location in
relation to surrounding structures and topography, and conformity with the design concept for
the Property, by the Architectural Review Entity. In the event that the Architectural Review
Entity fails to approve or disapprove any Improvements within sixty (60) days after the pians and
specifications for such Improvements have been submitted to it, approval will not be required
and this Article will be deemed to have been fully complied with. Approval by the Architectural
Review Entity shall in no way be construed as to pass judgment on the correctness of the
location, structural design, suitability of water flow or drainage, location of utilities, or other
qualities of the item being reviewed, nor shall such approval be substituted in lieu of applicable
governmental approvals and permits or be deemed to constitute a determination as to compliance
with local zoning ordinances, governmental guidelines or restrictions. The Architectural Review
Entity shall have the right to charge a reasonable fee for reviewing each application in an amount
not to exceed the costs actually incurred by the Architectural Review Entity. Any Improvement
made without application having first been made and approval obtained as provided above shall
be deemed to be in violation of this covenant and the Improvement may be required to be
removed and the affected Property restored to the original condition at the Owner’s cost and
expense. In any event, no such Improvement shall be made without approvals and permits
therefor having first been obtained by the Owner from the applicable public authorities or
agencies. In addition, no Improvements may be constructed which are not in compliance with
local zoning ordinances, governmental guidelines or restrictions.

Section 7.5.  Initiation__and _Completion _of __Improvements. Construction  of
Improvements in accordance with plans and specifications approved by the Architectural Review
Entity pursuant to the provisions of this Article shall be commenced within six (6) months of
such approval (whether by affirmative action or by forbearance from action as provided in
Section 7.4) and completed within twelve (12) months following the date of commencement, or
within such longer or shorter time period as the Architectural Review Entity may specify in its
approval. In the event construction is not commenced or completed within the time periods
aforesaid, then approval of the plans and specifications shall be conclusively deemed to have
lapsed and compliance with the provisions of this Article shall again be required. There shail be
no deviations from plans and specifications approved by the Architectural Review Entity without
the prior consent in writing of the Architectural Review Entity. Approval of any particular plans
and specifications or design shall not be construed as a waiver of the right of the Architectural
Review Entity to disapprove such plans and specifications, or any elements or features thereof, in
the event such plans and specifications are subsequently submitted for use in any other instance.
The Architectural Review Entity may condition its approval of any plans and specifications
submitted to it for review upon the Owner’s compliance with such limitations or conditions as the
Architectural Review Entity may deem appropriate, in its sole discretion.
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Section 7.6.  Certificate_of Compliance. Upon completion of any Improvements in
accordance with plans and specifications approved by the Architectural Review Entity in
accordance with the provisions of this Article, the Architectural Review Entity shall, at the
request of the Owner thereof (which request shall be made within one year of completion), issue
a certificate of compliance which shall be prima facie evidence that such Improvements
referenced in such certificate have been approved by the Archifectural Review Entity in full
compliance with the provisions of this Article and with such other provisions and requirements
of this Declaration as may be applicable.

Section 7.7.  Deviations from Design Guidelines. The Architectural Review Entity, in
its sole discretion, shall have the power to permit an Owner to deviate from the standards and
restrictions contained in this Declaration and the Design Guidelines. However, the Architectural
Review Entity must provide, in writing as part of its decision, the basis of and rationale for
allowing such deviation. Generally, but not exclusively, this Section is intended to enable the
Architectural Review Entity to appropriately respond to creative and beneficial design solutions
that are consistent with the overall design character of the Property and the objectives of this
Declaration, but which were not specifically anticipated in this Declaration or the Design
Guidelines.

Section 7.8, Appeal. The decisions of the Declarant and the Board of Directors when
acting as the Architectural Review Entity shall be final and shall not be subject to appeal, except
that any Member who is aggrieved by any action or forbearance from action by the Architectural
Review Commiitee (if established) when acting as the Architectural Review Entity may appeal
the decision of the Architectural Review Committee to the Board of Directors and, upon the
request of such Member, shall be entitled to a hearing before the Board of Directors. A vote of
two thirds (2/3) of the Board of Directors shall be required to reverse or modify the decision of
the Architectural Review Committee (if established).

Section 7.9,  Design Guidelines and Application Procedures.

(a) The Architectural Review Entity may from time to time adopt and
promulgate design guidelines, policy statements, rules and regulations, and amendments thereto
(the “Design Guidelines™) which shall establish criteria for the review of applications for
Improvements, and which may include, without limitation, guidelines for the architectural design
and placement of buildings, structures and other improvements within the Property, and
guidelines for permissible color schemes, materials, exterior finishes and similar features;
provided, however, that the Design Guidelines shall not contravene any specific standards or use
restrictions established by this Declaration. The Design Guidelines shall not be construed as a
waiver of the provisions of this Article or any other provision or requirement of this Declaration.
Design Guidelines adopted and promulgated by the Architectural Review Committee (if
established) when acting as the Architectural Review Entity shall be subject to review and
approval by the Board of Directors.

(b) The Architectural Review Entity may from time to time adopt and
promulgate procedures and requirements for the submission of applications to the Architectural
Review Entity and amendments thereto (the “Application Procedures™), including, without
limitation, requirements regarding the number of copies, the content, scale and detail of the plans
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and specifications to be included with such applications, and the identification of any required
supporting materials; provided, however, that the Application Procedures shall not contravene
any specific requirement established by this Declaration. The Application Procedures shall not
be construed as a waiver of the provisions of this Article or any other provision or requirement of
this Declaration. Application Procedures adopted and promulgated by the Architectural Review
Committee (if established) when acting as the Architectural Review Entity shall be subject to
review and approval by the Board of Directors.

Section 7.10. Limited Scope of Approval. The Architectural Review Entity shall not be
presumed to be expert in, nor shall it be held responsible for, integrity of engineening or
architectural design, quality of construction, or compliance with local zoning ordinances,
governmental guidelines or restrictions. The Architectural Review Entity shall not be
responsible or liable for any architectural, engineering or construction defect, public code
violation or the consequences of such defects or violations with regard to any Improvements.
Approval by the Architectural Review Entity shall in no way be construed as to pass judgment
on the correctness of the location, structural design, suitability of water flow or drainage,
location of utilities, or other qualities of the Improvements being reviewed, nor shall such
approval be substituted in lieu of applicable governmental approvals and permits or be deemed to
constitute a determination as. to compliance with local zoning ordinances, governmental
guidelines or restrictions.

Section 7.11. Covenant Committee Ligison. The Architectural Review Entity shall
assist the Covenant Committee in monitoring the Lots for compliance with this Declaration and
the Design Guidelines, and for compliance with plans and specifications for Improvements to
such Lots approved by the Architectural Review Entity.

Section 7.12. Town Architect. A Town Architect may be appointed in accordance with
this Section. The Town Architect shall be an individual with demonstrable experience in a
recognized design profession, and may, but is not required to be, an Owner or resident of the
Property. If appointed, the Town Architect shall be charged with assisting the Architectural
Review Entity in the review of applications for Improvements and in otherwise maintaining the
visual integrity of the Property. The specific powers and responsibilities of the Town Architect
may be further established by the Declarant or the Board of Directors in an Administrative
Resolution, provided that all actions of the Town Architect shall be subject to review and
approval by the Architectural Review Entity. The Town Architect shall be appointed by, shail
serve at the pleasure of, and may be removed and replaced by the Declarant during the
Declarant’s Rights and Obligations Period. Following termination of the Declarant’s Rights and
Obligations Period the Town Architect shall be appointed by, shall serve at the pleasure of, and
may be removed and replaced by the Board of Directors.  The Town Architect may be paid a
reasonable compensation by the Association, as determined by the Architectural Review Entity.

Section 7.13. Exemption. Notwithstanding any provision of this Declaration to the
contrary, the provisions of this Article 7 shall not be applicable to the Declarant or any part of
the Property owned by the Declarant, and Section 7.3 through Section 7.12, inclusive, shall not
be applicable to the construction of the initial Improvements on a Lot by a Participating Builder.
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ARTICLE 8
COVENANT COMMITTEE

 Section 8.1.  Purpose and Powers of the Covenant Committee. The purpose of the
Covenant Committee shall be to ensure compliance with the Governing Documents and to foster
harmony within the Property through reasoned and impartial adjudication of disputes within the
Property as they anise. To this end, the principle powers of the Covenant Committee shall be as
follows:

(a) To make reasonable efforts to resolve conflicts related to the Governing
Documents between Owners on an informal and amicable basts,

(b) To investigate and render decisions on alleged violations of the Governing
Documents. ‘

(c) To ‘hear and adjudicate disputes related to the Governing Documents
between Owners.

(d)  Upon petition of any Owner or upon its own initiative, to issue cease and
desist requests to any Owner whose actions are inconsistent with the provisions of the Governing
Documents or otherwise detrimental to the Property.

(e) To provide interpretations of the Govermning Documents when requested to
do so by a member of the Board of Directors or on its own initiative.

H To impose reasonable fines for violations of the Goveming Documents,
subject to the approval of the Board of Directors. :

(g) To propose rules and procedures for hearing alleged violations of the
Governing Documents, for adoption by the Board of Directors, which shall incorporate
reasonable concepts of due process and fundamental fairness. Such rules and procedures, and
amendments thereto, may also be proposed and approved by the Board of Directors acting alone,
without action by the Covenant Committee. No such rules or procedures shall be construed as a
wajver of any provision or requirement of the Governing Documents.

(h) Such additional powers as may be granted by the Board of Directors fo
enable the Covenant Committee to fulfill its duties under the Governing Documents.

Section 8,2.  Selection of Covenant Committee. The Covenant Committee shall consist
of not less than three (3) or more than seven (7) persons. For the duration of the Declarant’s
Rights and Obligations Period, the Declarant shall appoint all members of the Covenant
Committee. Members of the Covenant Committee appointed by the Declarant shall serve at the
pleasure of and may be removed and replaced, without cause, by the Declarant. Following
termination of the Declarant’s Rights and Obligations Period, or earlier upon written notice from
the Declarant to the Association, the number, qualifications, tenure, and manner by which
members of the Covenant Committee are to be chosen shall be as determined from time to time
by the Board of Directors, in the Board’s sole discretion. Members of the Covenant Committee
appointed by the Board of Directors shall serve at the pleasure of and may be removed and
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replaced, without cause, by the Board. For the duration of the Declarant’s Rights and
Obligations Period, Covenant Committee members need not be Owners. In the event that the
Declarant and/or the Board of Directors shall have failed to appoint a Covenant Committee, or in
the event of the Committee’s absence, resignation or inability or refusal to act, the Board of
Directors shall have the power and authority of the Covenant Committee and shall otherwise
exercise and discharge the committee’s duties under the Governing Documents.

Section 8.3.  Appeal. Subject to such procedures as may be established by the Board of
Directors, any Owner or resident may appeal an adverse Covenant Committee decision to the
Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may uphold, modify or reverse the decision of the
Covenant Committee.

Section 8.4.  Jurisdiction of Covenant Committee. Any provision hereof to the contrary
notwithstanding, the Covenant Committee shall have no jurisdiction over the Declarant.
Following termination of the Declarant’s Rights and Obligations Period the Board of Directors
may from time to time, in its sole discretion, curtail the jurisdiction or authority of the Covenant
Committee, either generally or on a case-by-case basis.

ARTICLE 9
USE RESTRICTIONS

In addition to all other covenants, conditions and restrictions contained herein, and in
addition to other covenants, conditions and restrictions adopted by Equity Resolutions, the use of
the Property and each Lot therein is subject to the following:

Section 9.1,  Permitted Uses. The Lots shall be used for residential purposes
exclusively, and no building shall be erected, altered, placed or permitted to remain on any such
Lot other than one used as a dwelling, except that the use of a dwelling unit for a “no-impact
home-based business”, as defined in §11B-111.1 of the Maryland Homeowners Association Act,
as amended (the “Act”), shall be permitted, provided that: (i) before any dwelling unit may be
used for a no-impact home-based business the Owner and/or resident of such dwelling unit shall
notify the Association, in writing, at least thirty (30) days prior to the opening of the no-impact
home-based business; and (i1} in no event shall the Commeon Area be used by or in connection
with any permitted no-impact home-based business. Nothing contained in this Article, or
elsewhere in this Declaration, shall be construed to prohibit the Declarant from the use of any
Lot or dwelling, or the improvements thereon, for promotional or display purposes, or as “model
homes”, a sales and/or construction office, or for any other lawful purpose.

Section 9.2.  Prohibited Uses and Nuisances. Except for the activities of the Declarant
and the Participating Builders during the construction and development of the Property, or except
with the prior written approval of the Declarant or the Board of Directors, or as may be necessary
in connection with reasonable and necessary repairs or maintenance to any dwelling or the
Common Area:
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{a) no noxious or offensive {rade or activity shall be carried on upon any Lot
or within any dwelling or any other part of the Property, nor shall anything be done therein or
thereon which may be or become an annoyance or nuisance to the neighborhood or other
Members. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, no speaker, homn, whistle, siren, bell,
amplifier or other sound device, except such devices as may be used exclusively for security
purposes, shall be located, installed or maintained upon the exterior of any dwelling or upon the
exterior of any other improvements constructed upon any Lot.

(b) the maintenance, keeping, boarding or raising of animals, livestock, or
poultry of any kind, regardless of number, shall be and is hereby prohibited on any Lot or within
any dwelling, or other part of the Property, except that this shall not prohibit the keeping of a
reasonable number of dogs, cats, caged birds or other small domestic animals as pets provided (i)
they are not kept, bred or maintained for commercial purposes; (i) such domestic pets are not a
source of annoyance or nuisance to the neighborhood or other Members; and (iii) such pets are
maintamed in strict conformance to all laws and ordinances. The Board of Directors and the
Covenant Committee shall have the authority, after hearing, to determine whether a particular pet
is a nuisance or a source of annoyance to other Members, and such determination shall be
conclusive. Pets shall be attended at all times and shall be registered, licensed and inoculated as
may from time to time be required by law. Pets shall not be permitted upon the Common Area
unless accompanied by a responsible person and unless they are carried or leashed. The Board
of Directors shall have the right to adopt such additional rules and regulations regarding pets as it
may from time to time consider necessary or appropriate, including, without limitation, rules
prohibiting pets within the Community Facilities.

(c) no burning of any trash and no accumulation or storage of litter, lumber,
scrap metals, refuse, bulk materials, waste, new or used building materials, or trash of any other
kind shall be permitted on the Common Area or Community Facilities.

(d) except for parking within garages, and except as herein elsewhere
provided, no junk vehicle, commercial vehicle (including vans used for commercial use and
vehicles displaying commercial signage), truck (as defined by the Maryland Department of
Motor Vehicles and/or by common usage and practice except for light pick-up trucks of three-
quarter (3/4) ton capacity or less used for non-commercial purposes), unlicensed or inoperable
motor vehicle (which shall include, without limitation, any vehicle which would not pass
applicable state inspection criteria), trailer, camp truck, house trailer, recreational vehicle, boat or
other similar vehicles, machinery or equipment of any kind or character (except for such
equipment and machinery as may be reasonable, customary and usual in connection with the use
and maintenance of any dwelling and except for such equipment and machinery as the
Association may require in connection with the maintenance and operation of the Common
Area) shall be kept upon the Property or upon the public or private streets within or adjacent to
the Property, nor {(except for bona fide emergencies) shall the repair or extraordinary
maintenance of automobiles or other vehicies be carried out thereon. The Association may, in
the discretion of the Board of Directors or the Covenant Committee, provide and maintain a
suitable area designated for the parking of such vehicles.
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(e) trash and garbage containers shall not be permitted to remain in public
view except on days of trash collection and the evening prior to such days of trash collection.
Garbage and trash containers shall be screened from public view at all other times.

(H no Lot shall be divided or subdivided and no portion of any Lot (other
than the entire Lot) shall be transferred or conveyed for any purpose. The provisions of this
subsection shall not apply to the Declarant or the Participating Builders and, further, the
provisions hereof shall not be construed to (i) prohibit the granting of any easement or right-of-
way to any municipality, political subdivision, public utility or other public body or authorty, or
to the Association, the Declarant, the Participating Builders or any other person for any purpose,
or (i1) prohibit minor boundary line adjustments between adjoining Lot Owners if done in
accordance with applicable local zoning ordinances, governmental guidelines and restrictions.
The provisions of this subsection shall not be deemed to preclude any Owner from granting an
easement or right-of-way to any municipality, political subdivision, public utility or other public
body or authority, or to the Association, to serve necessary public purposes, or from dedicating
or conveying a portion of such Owner’s Lot for such purposes.

(2) no tree, hedge or other landscape feature shall be planted or maintained in
a location which obstructs sight-lines for vehicular traffic on public streets or on private streets
and roadways. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, no wire or other lawn edging,
fencing or other treatment shall be placed or maintained on any Lot which would impede the
Association’s ability to perform its obligations as set forth in this Declaration, or which would be
inharmonious with the aesthetics of the Project.

(h) no decorative Jawn omament, no structure of a temporary character, and
no trailer, tent, shack, bamn, pen, kennel, run, stable, or other similar structure shall be erected,
used or maintained on any Lot at any time. A storage shed may be erected, constructed or placed
on a Lot provided that such shed (i) is approved, in writing, with respect to design (including, but
not limited to color and materials), location and construction by the Architectural Review Entity,
and (ii) any shed must be properly maintained at all times by the Owner of the Lot upon which it
is located.

(1) except for entrance signs, directional signs, signs for traffic control or
safety, community “theme areas” and such promotional sign or signs as may be maintained by
the Declarant, the Participating Builders or the Association, no signs or advertising devices of
any character shall be erected, posted or displayed upon, in or about any Lot or dwelling,
provided, however, that one temporary real estate sign not exceeding six (6) square feet in area
may be erected upon any Lot or attached to any dwelling placed upon the market for sale or rent.
Any such temporary real estate sign shall be removed promptly following the sale or rental of
such dwelling. The provisions and limitations of this subsection shall not apply to any
institutional first mortgagee of any Lot who comes 1nto possession of the Lot by reason of any
remedies provided by law or in such mortgage or as a result of a foreclesure sale or other judicial
sale or as a result of any proceeding, arrangement, assignment or deed in lieu of foreclosure. The
Declarant and the Board may, through the adoption of an Equity Resolution, adopt additional
covenants, conditions and restrictions regarding signage.
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() no water pipe, sewer pipe, gas pipe, drainage pipe, cable or other similar
transmission line shall be installed or maintained upon any Lot above the surface of the ground
and no wire, cable or other similar transmission line may be attached to the exterior of any
structure on any Lot; provided, however, that such transmission lines, wires or cables providing
utility services to any Lot or dwelling (including, but not limited to, electricity, telephone, gas,
water and cable television) shall be permitted.

(k) no play equipment, including, without limitation, basketball backboards,
basketball hoops and other equipment associated with either adult or juvenile recreation, shall be
erected or atfached in any manner to the exterior of any dwelling, nor shall any basketball
backboards and/or hoops, whether temporary or otherwise, be placed or maintained within any
Lot or the adjacent public street, without the prior written approval of the Architectural Review
Entity pursuant to Article 7 hereof. If approved in accordance with this Declaration, such play
equipment must be properly maintained at all times. '

0] no structure, planting or other material shall be placed or permitted to
remain upon any Lot which may damage or interfere with any easement for the installation or
maintenance of utilities, or which may unreasonably change, obstruct or retard the direction or
flow of any drainage channels.

(m)  except as specifically permitted by applicable federal governmental
regulations, no exterior aerials or antennas of any type, including, but not limited to, satellite
dishes for reception or transmission, may be erected or maintained within the Property without
the prior written approval of the Architectural Review Entity pursuant to Article 7 hereof;
provided, however, that satellite dishes not in excess of one (1) meter in diameter are permitted.
The Architectural Review Entity may impose reasonable rules and regulations regarding the
location and screening of any such satellite dish, subject to applicable federal governmental
regulations. Aerials and antennas situated entirely within a dwelling unit, and not visible from
the exterior, are permitted.

(n) vegetable gardens shall be maintained only within the rear yard of any
Lot, and shall be maintained in a neat and attractive manner.

(o)  lawn fumniture shall be used and maintained in rear yards or decks only
and shall be maintained in a neat and attractive manner.

(p) no equipment or machinery (including, without limitation, equipment or
machinery for use in connection with the maintenance of any dwelling) shall be stored in the
front, rear or side yard of any dwelling.

(q) no Member shall make any private, exclusive or proprietary use of any of
the Common Area or Community Facilities except with the specific approval of the Board of
Directors and then only on a temporary basis, and no Member shall engage or direct any
employee or agent of the Association on any private business of the Member during the hours
such employee or agent is employed by the Association, nor shall any Member direct, supervise
or in any manner attempt to assert control over any employee or agent of the Association.
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{(r) all fences constructed within the Property shall be in accordance with the
Design Guidelines.

{s) bed sheets, plastic sheets, newspapers, plastic storm windows or other
similar window treatments shall not be hung or placed in or on any window of any dwelling
within the Property.

t) children’s play and similar equipment shall not be allowed to remain
overnight within any front yard of any dwelling or within the Common Area.

(u) children’s outdoor permanent playhouses and swinging or climbing
apparatus or equipment shall be permitted within the Property with the prior written approval of
the Architectural Review Entity pursuant to Article 7 hereof. Such equipment, playhouse(s)
and/or apparatus shall be properly maintained at all times.

(V) no drying or airing of any clothing or bedding shall be permitted outdoors
at any time. Clothes-hanging devices such as lines, reels, poles and frames are prohibited.

(w)  no garage or outbuilding properly erected on a Single-Family Detached
Lot or Townhouse Lot shall at any time be used for human habitation, temporarily or
permanently, nor shall any structure of a temporary character be used for human habitation. No
garage may be altered, modified or changed in any manner which would inhibit or in any way
limit its function as a parking area for vehicles without the prior written approval of the
Architectural Review Entity pursuant to Article 7 of this Declaration. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, any Single-Family Detached Lot or Townhouse Lot owned by the Declarant or the
Participating Builders upon which is situated a dwelling unit in which the garage has been
modified to serve as living area shall be exempt from this paragraph and any grantee of the
Declarant or a Participating Builder, and such grantee’s successors and assigns, shall also be
exempt until such time as the garage is restored or a garage is constructed on such Single-Family
Detached Lot or Townhouse Lot.

(x) Except for parking within designated parking spaces, parking of vehicles
within the Common Area is prohibited.

Section 9.3, Parking. Parking within the Property shall be subject to the following
restrictions:

{(a) The Association shall be entitled to establish supplemental rules
concemning parking and traffic control on all or any portion of the Common Area and Lots,
including, without limitation, providing for the involuntary removal of any vehicle violating the
provisions of this Declaration and/or such rules.

(b) Except as provided in this Section, Common Area parking spaces shall be
deemed unassigned and designated for general use, to be used on a “first come, first served”
basis. Subject to applicable law, however, the Board of Directors may assign zll or any portion
of these parking spaces as “reserved” for the exclusive use of designated Owners. No vehicle
belonging to any Owner, or to any tenant, guest, invitee or family member of any Owner, shall
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be parked in a manner which unreasonably interferes with or impedes ready vehicular access to
any adjoining parking space.

(c) Each Owner shall comply in all respects with such supplemental rules
which are not inconsistent with the provisions of this Declaration which the Board of Directors
may from time to time adopt and promulgate with respect to parking and traffic control within
the Property, and the Board of Directors is hereby authorized to adopt such rules. The location
of any Common Area parking space assigned to any Owner in accordance with this Section may
be changed by the Board of Directors, at any time and from time to time, upon reasonable notice
thereof in writing. The Board of Directors reserves the right to assign and reassign Common
Area parking spaces if necessary to fulfill federal, state or local laws, including, without
limitation, the Fair Housing Amendments Act of 1988, as amended, and any Owner requested to
relinquish his or her reserved Common Area parking space shall promptly comply with such
request; provided, however, that if another reserved Common Area parking space is not made
available to such Owner, the Board of Directors shall reimburse such Owner for any monies
previously paid by such Owner, if any, to acquire such reserved Common Area parking space.
The Board of Directors may suspend the right of any Owner to use any Common Area parking
space assigned to that Owner in accordance with this Section for any period during which any
assessment against such Owner’s Lot remains unpaid.

(d) The Declarant, its successors and assigns, and its nominee or nominees
and any agents, servants and/or employees thereof shall be exempt from the provisions of this
Section 9.3,

Section. 9.4.  Leasing and Transfers.

(a) No portion of a dwelling unit, other than an entire dwelling unit, may be
leased or rented unless the prior written approval of the Covenant Committee or the Board of
Directors is obtained. All leases shall be on forms approved by the Association and shall (i)
contain provisions advising the tenant of his or her obligation to comply with all provisions of
this Declaration, the Bylaws and the rules and regulations of the Association, and (ii) provide
that the Association shall have the right to terminate the lease upon default by the tenant in
observing any of the provisions of this Declaration, the Bylaws or rules and regulations of the
Association, or of any other document, agreement or instrument governing the dwelling units
and/or the Property. The Owner(s) of a leased Lot shall notify the Association in writing of the
Owners’ current address. The Owner(s) of a leased or rented dwelling unit shall be jointly and
severally liable with his tenant(s) to the Association to pay any claim for injury or damage to
persons or property caused by any action or omission, including, without limitation, the
negligence of the tenant(s). Every lease shall be subordinate to any lien filed by the Association,
whether before or after such lease was entered into. The minimum term any dwelling unit may
be rented or leased shall be thirty (30) days, and in no event may a transient tenant be
accommodated in any dwelling unit,

(b) Prior to the sale, conveyance or transfer of any Lot or dwelling unit to any
person, the Owner shall notify the Board of Directors in writing of the name and address of the
person to whom the proposed sale, conveyance or transfer is to be made and provide to it such
-other information as the Board of Directors may reasonably require. Failure to comply with the

31

IMANAGE: 311843 v, 07 06724,0033
Ed, 0%/28/2003



2753bb  b93

provisions of this Section shall not void, prohibit or otherwise invalidate the sale, conveyance or
transfer of any Lot er dwelling unit nor may it have any affect upon any mortgage or deed of
trust thereon.

Section 9.5.  House Rules, Eic. There shall be no violation of any reasonable rules for
the use of the Common Area or Community Facilities, or “house rules” or other community rules
and regulations not inconsistent with the provisions of this Declaration, including, without
limitation, rules providing for the involuntary removal of any vehicle violating the provisions of
this Declaration, which may from time to time be adopted by the Board of Directors of the
Association and promulgated among the membership by the Board in writing, and the Board of
Directors 1s hereby anthorized to adopt such rules and regulations. To adopt such rules and
regulations, the Board of Directors must provide a copy of the proposed rule(s) or regulation(s)
to each Owner not less than ten (10} days prior to the Board of Directors meeting at which such
rule(s) or regulation(s) are scheduled to be discussed and/or adopted. If a majority of the Owners
disapprove the proposed rule(s) or regulation(s), such rule(s) or regulation(s) shall not be adopted
or be effective. In order to be effective, the proposed rule(s) or regulation(s) must be adopted by
a resolution of the Board of Directors at the aforesaid meeting and a copy of the same provided
to each Owner. Each Owner is responsible to provide the tenants or other occupants of such
Owner’s Lot, if applicable, with a copy of such rule(s) and regulation(s). :

Section 9.6.  Exemptions. None of the foregoing restrictions shall be applicable to (i)
improvements constructed by or to the activities of the Declarant and the Participating Builders,
and their respective officers, employees, agents and assigns, in their development, marketing,
leasing and sales activities within the Property, or (ii) to the Association, its officers, employees
and agents, in connection with the proper maintenance, repair, replacement and improvement of
the Common Area and Community Facilities.

Section 9.7.  Participating Builders. The Declarant may, in its sole discretion, assign
its rights and exemptions, or any part thereof, under this Declaration to one or more designated
Participating Builders, subject to such conditions and limitations as may be deemed necessary or
desirable by the Declarant, including, without limitation, the requirement that any assigned rights
be exercised only during certain times, and limitations on the duration of any such assignment.
Any such assignment need not be recorded to be effective, and may be revoked by the Declarant
at any time, without cause, in the Declarant’s sole discretion.

Section 9.8.  Special Protection Area Provisions.

(a) All Owners are hereby on notice that a portion of the Property is within
the drainage basin to Little Seneca Creek/Little Bennett Creck, an area that has been designated
by Montgomery County as being a part of the Clarksburg Special Protection Area. A Special
Protection Area is defined by applicable Montgomery County law and regulations as a
geographic area where (a) existing water resources or other environmental features directly
relating to those water resources are of high quality or unusually sensitive, and (b) proposed land
uses would threaten the quality or preservation of those resources or features in the absence of
special water quality protection measures which are closely coordinated with appropriate land
use controls. All Owners are hereby advised that special water quality measures and certain
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restrictions on land uses and impervious surfaces apply within the Clarksburg Special Protection
Area.

(b) Pursuant to the water quality plan applicable within the Property, the
Montgomery County Department of Environmental Protection (“MCDEP™) has reviewed and
approved a residential integrated pest management plan attached hereto as Exhibit “B”, which is
intended to provide mechanisms for the application, use, maintenance, and storage of fertilizers,
pesticides, and toxic substances within the Property (the “IPM Plan™). The IPM Plan is intended
fo guide the Association and the Owners on how to be responsible stewards of Little Seneca
Creek/Little Bennett Creek and the Clarksburg Town Center environment.

{c) The Association shall maintain a copy of the IPM Plan among its
permanent records, and shall make copies of the IPM Plan available to all Owners. The
information included in the IPM Plan has been reviewed and approved by MCDEP as of the
recordation of this Declaration among the Land Records; provided, however, that the IPM Plan is
subject to modification and amendment based upon changes in applicable Montgomery County
law and regulations regarding Special Protection Areas, and based upon changes to the water
quality plan and other requirements imposed or adopted by MCDEP, the Montgomery County
Department of Permitting Services (“MCDPS™), and/or the Maryland-National Capital Park and
Planning Commission (“MNCPPC”). For further information regarding the IPM Plan and the
requirements of applicable Montgomery County law and regulations regarding the Clarksburg
Special Protection Area, the Association and the Owners should contact MCDEP, 255 Rockville
Pike, Suite 120, Rockville, Maryland 20850, phone (240) 777-7700, MCDPS, 255 Rockville
Pike, 2nd Floor, Rockville, Maryland 20850, phone (240) 777-6333, or MNCPPC, 8787 Georgia
Avenue, Silver Spring, Maryland 20910, phone (301) 495-4600.

ARTICLE 10
DECLARATION OF EASEMENTS AND RIGHTS

Section 10.1. Declaration of Easements and Rights. The following easements and rights
are hereby declared or reserved:

(a) For a period of fifteen (15) years from the recordation of this Declaration,
Declarant reserves the right to grant easements, both temporary and permanent, to all public
authorities and utility companies over any part of the Common Area and Community Facilities.

(b) Each Single-Family Detached Lot and Townhouse Lot within the Property
is hereby declared to have an easement, not exceeding three feet (3°) in width, over all adjoining
Single-Family Detached Lots, Townhouse Lots and Common Area for the purpose of
accommodating any encroachment due to engineering errors, errors in original construction,
settlement or shifting of the building, roof over-hangs, gutters, architectural or other appendages,
draining of rainwater from roofs, or any other similar cause. There shall be valid easements for
the maintenance of said encroachments so long as they shall exist, and the rights and obligations
of Owners shall not be altered in any way by said encroachment, settlement or shifting; provided,
however, that in no event shall a valid easement for encroachment be created in favor of an
Owner or Owners if said encroachment occurred due to the willful misconduct of said Owner or
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Owners. In the event a structure on any Single-Family Detached Lot or Townhouse Lot is
partially or totally destroyed and then repaired or rebuilt, the Owners of each Single-Family
Detached Lot or Townhouse Lot agree that minor encroachments over adjoining Single-Family
Detached Lots or Townhouse Lots shall be permitted and that there shall be valid easements for
the maintenance of said encroachments so long as they shall exist.

(c) There 1s hereby reserved unto the Declarant (and its successors and
assigns to whom such easement has been specifically assigned in writing), for the benefit of the
real property shown on the Development Plan, and for the benefit of the Declarant and its agents,
a non-exclusive perpetual blanket easement upon, across and under the Property (provided such
easement does not encroach upon any building within the Property or unreasonably interfere
with the use and enjoyment of the Property), for vehicular and pedestrian ingress and egress,
curb cuts, slope, and grading easements, as well as for the installation, replacement, repair and
maintenance of all utilities, including, but not limited to, water, sewer, drainage, storm water
detention and/or siltation, gas, cable television, telephones and electricity, and further including
the right to connect to and use any such utilities which may exist or be located upon the Property
from time to time. By virtue of this easement, it shall be expressly permissible to erect and
maintain the necessary poles, pipes, lines and other equipment on the Property, to affix and
maintain electrical or telephone wires and conduits, sewer and water drainage lines, on, above, or
below any portion of the Property, including any improvements constructed thereon, and to have
construction vehicles, equipment and the like exercise the aforesaid right of ingress and egress
over the Property. There is further reserved unto the Declarant the right to erect entry features,
promotional and other similar items within the Property provided they do not unreasonably
mterfere with the use, operation and enjoyment of the Property. There is further reserved unto
the Declarant the right to grant specific easements, both temporary and permanent, to any person
or entity, including all public authorities and utility companies, over any part of the Property in
furtherance of the blanket easement created by this subsection. Further, without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, the Declarant reserves the right to unilaterally execute and record
such additional easements and agreements as may be necessary in order to give effect to the
foregoing easements and other rights, which additional easements and other agreements need not
be consented to or joined in by any party having an interest in the Property; provided, however,
that if requested by the Declarant, any party having an interest in the Property shall promptly join
in and execute such confirmatory easements and other agreements.

(d) There is hereby reserved unto the Declarant (and its successors and
assigns to whom such easement has been specifically assigned in writing), for the benefit of the
real property shown on the Development Plan, and for the benefit of the Declarant and its agents,
a non-exclusive perpetual blanket easement upon, across and under the Property (provided such
easement does not encroach upon any building within the Property or unreasonably interfere
with the use and enjoyment of the Property), for the following purposes: (i) ingress and egress to
and from any and all portions of the Property by trucks, construction equipment, construction
personnel and the like; (i1) to construct, mstall, reconstruct, alter, modify, remove and replace
streets, roads, driveways, lanes, sidewalks and parking spaces within the Property; (iii) to
excavate, fill and coordinate the height, grade, slope and contour of the Property, and to add and
remove soil from the Property; and (iv) for the conduct of all other development, construction,
marketing, sales, leasing and related activities as may be deemed necessary or desirable by the
Declarant to implement the Development Plan, to comply with requirements imposed by
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Montgomery County, Maryland, or any governmental or quasi-governmental agency or authority
having regulatory jurisdiction over the Property, and/or to comply with applicable laws or
regulations.

(e) The Property shall be subject to a non-exclusive, perpetual easement and
right of passage, for the benefit of the Association membership, for ordinary and reasonable
pedestrian ingress and egress over, across and upon any sidewalk, trail or pathway (or the
replacement thereof) constructed within the Property by the Declarant or any Participating
Builder that may reasonably be deemed to have been constructed or intended for pedestrian use.

(H) An easement is hereby reserved to Declarant to enter the Common Area
and Community Facilities during the period of construction and sale within the Property, and to
maintain such facilities and perform such operations as in the sole opinion of Declarant may be
reasonably required, convenient or incidental to the construction and sale of residences,
including, without limitation, a business office, sales/leasing office, storage area, construction
yards, signs, displays and model units.

(g)  Declarant also reserves the right to enter into the Common Area and
Community Facilities for the purpose of carrying out any obligations it may have, or assume,
with respect to the curing of any defects in workmanship or materials in the Property or the
improvements thereon. There is further reserved unto the Declarant and its agent(s) a non-
exclusive easement over, across and through all of the Common Area and Community Facilities
for the purpose of access, the storage of building supplies and materials and equipment and,
without any limitation, for any and all purposes reasonably related to the completion of the
development, construction, rehabilitation and repair of the Property.

(h) For a period of ten (10) years from the date of conveyance of the first Lot,
the Declarant reserves a blanket easement and right on, over and under the Property to maintain
and to correct drainage of surface water in order to maintain reasonable standards of health,
safety and appearance. Such right expressly includes the right to cut any trees, bushes or
shrubbery, make any gradings of the soil, or to take any other similar action as may be
reasonably necessary, following which the Declarant shall restore the affected property to its
original condition as near as practicable. The Declarant shall give reasonable notice of intent to
take such action to all affected Owners, unless in the opinion of the Declarant an emergency
exists which precludes such notice. There is further reserved unto the Declarant the right to
grant specific easements, both temporary and permanent, to any person or entity, including all
public authorities and utility companies, over any part of the Property in furtherance of the
blanket easement created by this subsection.

(1) The rights and duties of the Association and the Owners with respect to all
public and/or private utilities serving and/or benefiting all or any portion of the Property,
including, without limitation, water, sewer, gas, eleciricity, cable television, telephones, storm
drains, down spouts, yard drains, and all pipes, wires, cables, conduits, transmission lines and
other related facilities and equipment (collectively, the “Utilities™) shall be governed by the
following:
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(1) Each Lot is hereby subject to a non-exclusive perpetual easement
and right of passage upon, across and under such Lot, for the benefit of the Association and the
Owners of all other Lots, for the installation, maintenance, repair, replacement, inspection,
cperation and use of all Utilities. The Owner of any Lot and the Association shall have the right,
and they are hereby granted an easement and right of passage to the extent necessary therefor, to
enter upon or have a utility company enter upon any portion of the Property in which the Utilities
lie, to inspect, repair, replace and generally maintain such Utilities.

(i1) The right granted in subsection (i) above shall be only to the extent
necessary to entitle the property of the Owner or Association serviced by the Utilities to their full
and reasonable use and enjoyment, and provided further that anyone exercising such right shall
be responsible for restoring the surface of the easement area so used to its condition prior to such
use.

(i)  In the event of a dispute between Owners with respect to the repair
or rebuilding of any Utilities, or with respect to the sharing of the cost thereof, upon written
request of one of such Owners addressed to the Covenant Committee, the matter shall be
submitted to the Covenant Committee, who shall decide the dispute.

(iv)  Each Lot is hereby subject to an easement and right of passage
upon, across and under such Lot for the drainage and discharge of water from any storm drain,
down spout or yard drain situated on another Lot and the Owner of such Lot may not alter or
obstruct such drainage or flow of water to the detriment of any Lot or the Common Area.

() The Association shall have an easement to enter any portion of the
Property for the performance of its duties hereunder; provided that such easement shall not
entitle the entry within the interior portion of any dwelling located on the Property, but (by way
of illustration only and not in limitation of the rights granted herein) shall permit the entry into
fenced, or other similar areas of the Property.

k) With respect to any step, patio, deck, downspout or yard drain or other
similar structure that may benefit any Lot and is constructed by the Declarant or a Participating
Builder and which may encroach upon any portion of the Common Area, there is hereby
reserved for the benefit of the Lot that such step, patio, deck, downspout, drain or other structure
serves, a perpetual easement for the location, maintenance, repair and use of such structure or
items within the Common Area, but only to the extent that the Declarant’s or a Participating
Builder’s original construction thereof encroaches within the Common Area. The Owner of the
Lot benefiting from such easement agrees to maintain such structure or item and to indemmnify
and hold the Association harmless from any loss, liability or damage arising out of or resulting
from the use, enjoyment and benefit of the easement granted hereby.

M There is hereby created for the benefit of each Lot, which is enclosed, in
whole or in part, by any wooden, brick, stone or other similar fence and/or wall constructed by
the Declarant or a Participating Builder, a perpetual easement to use any portion of the Common
Area that may be located between such fence and/or wall and the record platted lot line for such
benefited Lot; and the obligation to maintain such portion of the Common Area shall be that of
the Owner of the benefited Lot and the obligation to maintain the wooden, brick, stone, or other
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similar fencing located within the Common Area, which encloses the benefited Lot, shall be that
of the Owner of the benefited Lot. The Owner of any Lot benefiting from the foregoing
casement agrees to indemnify and hold the Association harmless from any loss, liability or
damage arising out of our resulting from the use, enjoyment and benefit of the easement rights
provided for herein,

(m) A mutual right and easement for utility services is hereby established for
the benefit of all Owners, such that no Owner shall take any action which would in any way
interfere with utility services being provided to other Owners within the Property. If a Lot
contains any ufility pipes, ducts, conduits, wires or the like which are for the benefit, in whole or
in part, of other Owners within the Property, then the Owner of such Lot shall promptly, at his
expense, repair any damage to such utilities caused by the Owner, or such Owner’s tenants,
lessees, agents, guests, invitees, licensees or family members.

(n) The Declarant reserves the right to modify or alter the size, number and
location of the Common Area, Community Facilities and Lots, as well as the improvements
thereon, as it deems necessary or desirable in conjunction with the development of the Project.
Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Declarant reserves the right to resubdivide
all or a portion of the Project, to convey Common Area, to modify the site plans, to construct
improvements on the Common Area, and to take whatever other action with respect to the
Common Area, Community Facilities and the Lots as the Declarant may deem necessary or
desirable,

(0) The Association is hereby granted a non-exclusive easement and right of
passage on, through, over, under and across the real property shown on the Development Plan to
maintain, repair and replace any entrance features and improvements (and the property upon
which such entrance features and improvements are located) that are constructed or installed by
the Declarant or a Participating Builder and that are situated within or appurtenant to and serving
the Project.

Section 10.2. Association Egsements. The Board of Directors of the Association shall
have the right to grant easements, rights-of-way, lcenses and similar interests over any part of
the Common Area for any lawful purpose which the Board determines, in its sole discretion, to
be in the best interests of the Association,

ARTICLE 11
MAINTENANCE

Section 11.1. Qwners’ Maintenance. Except as otherwise specifically provided in this
Declaration, each Owner shall keep each Lot owned by such Owner, and all improvements
therein or thereon, in good order and repair and free of debris in a manner and with such
frequency as is consistent with good property management and the Community-Wide Standard.
In the event an Owner of any Lot in the Property shall fail to maintain the Lot and the
improvements situated thereon, the Association or its agent shall have the right to enter upon said
Lot to repair, maintain and restore the Lot and any improvements erected thereon. The
Association shall also have the right to enter the Lots to correct drainage. Whenever entry is not
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required in an emergency situation, the Association shall afford the Owner reasonable notice and
an opportunity to cure the problem prior to entry. All costs related to such correction, repair or
restoration shall be collectible from the Owner of such Lot in the same manner as Assessments
as provided in this Declaration.

Section 11.2.  Association Maintenance. The Association shall maintain, repair and
replace the Common Area and Community Facilities and shall keep the Common Area and
Community Facilities in good order at all times. This obligation shall include, without limitation,
(i) the maintenance, repair and, as necessary, replacement of any private streets, driveways,
alleys and parking areas within the Common Area, (ii) the maintenance, repair and, as necessary,
replacement of any pathways, sidewalks and walkways that are constructed or installed by, or on
behalf of, the Declarant or the Participating Builders within the Common Area, Single-Family
Detached Lots and/or Townhouse Lots, provided that the Association shall not be obligated to
maintain, repair or replace any pathway, sidewalk or walkway leader, or portion thereof, within
any Single-Family Detached Lot or Townhouse Lot that may reasonably be deemed to serve or
benefit only that Single-Family Detached Lot or Townhouse Lot, and (iii) the removal of
accumulated snow and ice from within all private streets, driveways, alleys and parking areas
within the Common Area and from all pathways, sidewalks, walkways, or portions thereof,
required to be maintained by the Association pursuant to this Section. Further, the Association
shall maintain, repair and replace (i) any rights-of-way, entry strips, signage, and entrance
features or improvements that are situated within or that are appurtenant to and serve the Project,
including, without limitation, any landscaping and other flora and improvements situated
thereon, and (i) any other real and personal property, facilities and equipment as the Association
is obligated or elects to maintain pursuant to this Declaration, or any lease, easement or
agreement, or the direction of any governmental authority or agency. The expenses of all such
- maintenance, repair and replacement shall be a Common Expense of the Association, including,
but not limited to, reserves for the maintenance, repair and replacement of any such property or
improvements. The Association shall also maintain any portion of any Lot that it is obligated to
maintain pursuant to any easement or other agreement.

The Association shall be responsible for the maintenance, repair and replacement
of any storm water management area or facilities situated within the Common Area, including,
without limitation, drainage pipes, infiltration trenches, ponds, basins, swales, berms, out-flow
control devices, drainage areas, filters, inlets, oil/grit separators and underground facilities, if
any. The Association shall also be responsible for the maintenance, repair and replacement of
any such storm water management area or facilities which serve and/or benefit the Property
whether or not located within the Common Area if the Association is responsible therefor
pursuant to any easement, agreement or the direction of any governmental authority or agency.
Such responsibility may be in the form of contributing the Association’s share of the
maintenance costs of any storm water management area, facility or equipment pursuant to an
casement or agreement which shall be a Common Expense of the Association. The Board of
Directors may enter into any such easements and/or other agreements as the Board may deem
necessary or desirable for purposes of allocating and/or sharing the costs associated with the
maintepance of any storm water management areas, facilities and/or equipment which serve
and/or benefit the Property. The Association shall not refuse to accept the conveyance of any
such storm water management area, facilities or equipment from the Declarant.
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The Association may obtain guidance regarding the basic maintenance needs and
associated costs for maintenance of storm water management facilities by consulting the manual
entitled “Maintaining Urban Stormwater Facilities, A Guidebook for Common Ownership
Communities” published by the Montgomery County Department of Environmental Protection
(“DEP”). Copies of this manual may be obtained by contacting DEP (phone: 240.777.7700; web
site: http://www.co.mo.md.us/services/dep/Stormwater/home.htm]).

Section 11.3. Lawn and Garden Area Maintenance.

(a) The Board of Directors may elect, in its sole discretion, to have the
Association assume such maintenance responsibilities with respect to all or a portion of the Lawn
and Garden Area located within any Lot, group of Lots or all of the Lots as the Board may deem
necessary or appropriate, including, without limitation, responsibility for mowing, fertilizing,
trimming, pruning and/or otherwise maintaining all or any portion of the grass, shrubs, bushes,
trees, and other planted materials, and any replacements thereof, as may be located within the
Lawn and Garden Area. Maintenance of the Lawn and Garden Area by the Association shall be
with such frequency and in conformity with such standards as may established by the Board of
Directors from time to time. In the event the Board of Directors elects to assume such
maintenance responsibilities, all costs of such maintenance shall be assessed only against the
Owners of Lots that contain Lawn and Garden Area maintained by the Association.

(b) Any Owner may request that the Association refrain from performing all
or a part of the Lawn and Garden Area maintenance described above. Such a request must be
made to the Association at least thirty (30) days prior to the date the Owner desires the
Association to refrain from such maintenance. The Association shall not unreasonably withhold
approval of such request, provided the Owner has demonstrated to the satisfaction of the
Association his or her intention to maintain the Lawn and Garden Area, as applicable, in a
manner acceptable to the Association. In the event an Owner elects to maintain the Lawn and
Garden Area situated on his or her Lot pursuant to the terms hereof, such Owner shall not be
entitled to any reimbursement from the Association or reduction in the Assessments levied
against such Lot.

Section 11.4. Additional Maintenance Responsibilities. The Board of Directors may
elect, in its sole discretion, to have the Association assume additional maintenance
responsibilities upon all or any portion of the Property. In such event, all costs of such
maintenance shall be assessed only against those Owners residing within the portion of the
Property receiving the additional services. This assumption of responsibility may take place
either by contract {including, but not limited to a contract between the Association and any Lot
Owmer), or because, in the opinion of the Board, the level and quality of maintenance or service
then being provided is not consistent with the Community-Wide Standard of the Project.
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ARTICLE 12
INSURANCE

Section 12.1.  Individual Coverage. By virtue of taking title to a Single-Family
Detached Lot or Townhouse Lot, each Owner covenants and agrees with all other Owners and
with the Association that each individual Owner shall carry blanket all risk casualty insurance on
the dwelling and all structures located upon the Single-Family Detached Lot or Townhouse Lot.
At a minimuim, such coverage shall provide coverage against loss or damage by fire or other
hazards in an amount sufficient to cover the full replacement cost of any repair or reconstruction
work in the event of damage or destruction from any insured hazard. The Board of Directors of
the Association, or its duly authorized agent, shall have the authority to obtain insurance for all
or any of the dwellings located on the Property, unless the Owners thereof have supplied proof of
adequate coverage to the Board of Directors’ satisfaction. The Board of Directors and the
Association shall incur no liability to any Owner or mortgagee in the event that the Board of
Darectors or the Association shall elect not to exercise their authority to obtain such insurance for
all or any of the dwellings located on the Property. In the event the Board of Directors obtains
insurance for any Single-Family Detached Lot, or Townhouse Lot or dwelling unit pursuant to
this Section, the cost thereof shall be assessed against the Single-Family Detached Lot or
Townhouse Lot benefiting from such insurance and shall be collectible in the same manner as
any other Assessment under this Declaration. Each Owner further covenants and agrees that in
the event of a partial loss or damage and destruction resulting in less than total destruction to the
dwelling and other structures constructed on the Single-Family Detached Lot or Townhouse Lot,
the Owner shall proceed promptly to repair or to reconstruct the dwelling and other damaged
structures in a manner consistent with the original construction. Each Owner of a Single-Family
Detached Lot or Townhouse Lot covenants and agrees that in the event that such dwelling is
totally destroyed, the Owner shail proceed promptly to repair or to reconstruct the dwelling in a
manner consistent with the original construction, unless approval to do otherwise is obtained
from the Covenant Committee or the Board of Directors.

Section 12.2. Reguired Coverage. The Board of Directors of the Association, or its duly
authorized agent, shall be required to obtain, maintain and pay the premiums, as a Common
Expense, upon a policy of hazard insurance covering the Common Area and any property
required to be insured by the Association pursuant to any easement or lease agreement (except
land, foundation, excavation and other items normally excluded from coverage) including
fixtures and building service equipment, to the extent that they are a part of the Common Area or
Community Facilities of the Association or such other property which the Association may
insure, as well as common personal property and supplies.

The hazard insurance policy shall afford, as a minimum, protection against loss or
damage by fire and all other perils normaily covered by the standard extended coverage
endorsement, as well as all other perils which are customarily covered with respect to projects
similar in construction, location and use, including all perils normally covered by the standard
“all risk” endorsement, where such is available, and shall name the Association as a named
insured. The insurance should cover one hundred percent (100%) of the current replacement
cost (less a reasonable deductible) of the insured property. Coverage need not include land,
foundations, excavations or other items that are usually excluded from insurance coverage.
Unless a higher maximum amount is required pursuant to the law of the State of Maryland, the
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maximum deductible amount for coverage of the Common Area and Community Facilities is the
lesser of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) or one percent (1%) of the policy face amount. The
funds to cover this deductible amount should be included in the Association’s operating reserve
account,

Each hazard insurance policy must be written by a hazard insurance carrier which
has a current rating by the Best’s Key Rating Guide of B/III or better (or its equivalent). Each
insurer must be specifically licensed or authorized by law to transact business within the State of
Maryland. The policy contract shall provide that no assessment may be made against the
mortgagee, and that any assessment made against others may not become a lien on the
mortgaged Lot superior to the First Mortgage.

The hazard insurance policy must provide that the insurance carrier shall notify
the Association and each mortgagee named in the mortgagee clause in writing at least ten (10)
days before it cancels or substantially changes the Association’s coverage. In addition, each
Eligible Mortgage Holder shall receive timely written notice of any lapse, material modification
or cancellation of any insurance policy covering the Common Area and Community Facilities.

All policies of hazard insurance must contain or have attached the standard
mortgagee clause commonly acceded by private institutions as mortgage investors in the area in
which the mortgaged premises are located. The following endorsements are also required: (i) an
Inflation Guard Endorsement (if reasonably available); (ii) a Construction Code Endorsement if
the Common Area or Community Facilities are subject {o a construction code provision which
would become operative and require changes to undamaged portions of any structures, even
when only part of a structure is destroyed by an insured hazard or peril, and (iii) a Steam Boiler
and Machinery Coverage Endorsement if any structure within the Common Area or Community
Facilities has central heating or cooling, which should provide for the insurer’s minimum
liability per accident per location to be at least equal to the lesser of Two Million Dollars
($2,000,000.00) or the insurable value of the structure(s) housing the boiler or machinery.

If the Common Area or Community Facilities are located in a Special Flood
Hazard Area designated as A, AE, AH, AO, A1-30, A-99, V, VE, or V1-30 on a Flood Insurance
Rate Map, the Association must maintain a “master” or “blanket” policy of flood insurance on
the Common Area and Community Facilities. The amount of flood insurance shall be at least
equal to the lesser of one hundred percent (100%) of the insurable value of all structures and
improvements situated in such Special Flood Hazard Area or the maximum coverage available
under the applicable National Flood Insurance Administration program. Unless a higher
deductible amount is required under the laws of the State of Maryland, the maximum deductible
amount for flood insurance policies shall be the lesser of Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00) or
one percent (1%) of the policy’s face amount. The funds to cover this deductible amount should
be included in the Association’s operating reserve account.

The Association shall obtain and maintain a comprehensive general lability
policy of insurance covering all of the Common Area, Community Facilities, public ways and
any other areas that are under the Association’s supervision. The policy shall also cover any
commercial space owned by the Association, even if such space is leased to others. The policy
should provide coverage for bodily injury (including death) and property damage that results
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from the operation, maintenance or use of the Common Area and Community Facilities, and any
legal liability that results from law suits related to employment contracts in which the
Association 1s a party, Supplemental coverage to protect against additional risks should also be
obtained, if required by a mortgagee. Such insurance policy shall contain a “severability of
interest” endorsement which shall preclude the insurer from denying the claim of an Owner
because of negligent acts of the Association or other Owners. Liability coverage shall be at least
Three Million Dollars ($3,000,000.00) per occurrence, for bodily injury and property damage,
unless higher amounts of coverage are required by a mortgagee. The liability policy must
provide that the mnsurance carrier shall notify the Association in writing at least ten (10) days
before 1t cancels or substantially modifies the Association’s coverage,

Section 12.3. Fidelity Coverage. To the extent reasonably available, blanket fidelity
insurance may be maintained by the Board of Directors for all officers, directors, managers,
trustees, employees and volunteers of the Association and all other persons handling or
responsible for funds held or administered by the Association, whether or not they receive
compensation for their services. Where the Board of Directors has delegated some or all of the
responsibility for the handling of funds to a management agent, such management agent shall be
covered by its own fidelity insurance policy which must provide the same coverage as fidelity
insurance maintained by the Board of Directors. Except for fidelity insurance that a management
agent obtains for its personnel, all other fidelity insurance policies should name the Association
as the insured and should have their premiums paid as a Common Expense by the Association.
Fidelity insurance obtained by a management agent shall name the Association as an additional
insured. The total amount of fidelity coverage required shall be sufficient to cover the maximum
funds (including reserve funds) that will be in the custody of the Association or management
agent at any time while the fidelity policy is in force, and should be at least equal the sum of
three (3) months aggregate Assessments on all Lots within the Association, plus any reserves,
Fidelity insurance policies should contain waivers by the insurers of all defenses based upon the
exclusion of persons serving without compensation from the definition of “employees”, or
similar terms or expressions. The fidelity insurance policies should provide that they cannot be
canceled or materially modified (including cancellation for non-payment of premium) without at
least ten (10) days prior written notice to the Association.

Section 12,4, Repair and Reconstruction of Common Area_and Community Facilities
After Fire or Other Casualty. In the event of damage to or destruction of any portion of the
Common Area or Community Facilities covered by insurance payable to the Association as a
result of fire or other casualty, the Board of Directors shall arrange for the prompt repair and
restoration thereof, and shall disburse the proceeds of all insurance policies to the contractors
engaged in such repair and restoration, as appropriate. Promptly after a casualty causing damage
or destruction of any portion of the Common Area or Community Facilities for which the
Association has the responsibility of maintenance, repair, and/or replacement, the Board of
Directors shall obtain reliable and detailed estimates of the cost to place the damaged portions of
the Common Area or Community Facilities in as good a condition as existed prior to the
casualty. Such costs may include, without limitation, professional fees and premiums for such
bonds as the Board of Directors may desire.
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ARTICLE 13
PARTY WALLS AND FENCES

The rights and duties of the Owners of the Single-Family Detached Lots and Townhouse
Lots with respect to party walls and party fences constructed as a part of the original construction
on the Property shall be governed by the following:

Section 13.1. - General Rules of Law to Apply. Each wall or fence which is constructed
as a part of the original construction on the Property and any part of which is placed on the
dividing line between separate Single-Family Detached Lots and/or Townhouse Lots, shall
constitute a party wall or party fence, as applicable, and with respect to such wall or fence, each
of the adjoining Owners shall assume the burdens, and be subject to an easement for that portion
of the wall or fence on his or her Single-Family Detached Lot and/or Townhouse Lot, and be
entitled to the benefits of these restrictive covenants and, to the extent not inconsistent herewith,
the general rules of law regarding party walls and fences and of liability for property damage due
to negligence or willful acts or omissions, shall apply thereto.

Section 13.2. Sharing of Repair and Maintenance_and Destruction by Fire or Other
Casualty. If any such party wall or fence is damaged or destroyed by fire or other casualty or by
some cause other than the act of one of the adjoining Owners, his or her agents, or family
‘(including ordinary wear and tear and deterioration from lapse of time), then, in such event, both
such adjoining Owners shall proceed forthwith to rebuild or repair the same to as good condition
as formerly, in proportion to their respective use of the party wall or fence.

Section 13.3.  Repairs of Damage Caused by One QOwner. If any such party wall or
fence is damaged or destroyed through the act of one adjoining Owner or any of his or her agents
or guests or members of his or her family so as to deprive the other adjoining Owner of the full
use and enjoyment of such wall or fence, then the Owner responsible for such damage shall
forthwith proceed to rebuild and repair the same to as good condition as formerly, without cost to
the adjoining Owner.

Section 13.4. Damage by Exposure. If any party wall is damaged by reason of exposure
to the elements caused by the negligence or intentional acts of the Owner or occupant(s) of a
Single-Family Detached Lot or Townhouse Lot sharing the use of such party wall, the Owner of
such Single-Family Detached Lot and/or Townhouse Lot, shall be responsible to promptly repair
such party wall at such Owner’s sole expense.

Section 13.5. Encroachments. If any portion of a party wall or fence shall encroach
upon any adjoining Single-Family Detached Lot or Townhouse Lot, or upon the Common Area
by reason of reconstruction, settlement or shifting of any building, or otherwise, a valid easement
for the encroachment and for the maintenance of the same as long as the wall or fence shall exist.

Section 13.6. Right to Contribution Runs with Land. The right of any Owner to
contribution from any other Owner under this Article shall be appurtenant to the land and shall
pass to such Owner’s successors in title.
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Section 13.7. Dispute. In the event of a dispute between Owners with respect to the
repair or rebuilding of a party wall or fence or with respect to the sharing of the cost thereof,
then, upon written request of one of such Owners addressed to the Association, the matter shall
be submitted to the Board of Directors who shall decide the dispute, and the decision of such
Board of Directors shall be final and conclusive upon the parties.

ARTICLE 14
MANAGEMENT

Section I14.1. Management Agent. The Board of Directors may employ for the
Association a management agent or manager (the “Management Agent”) at a rate of
compensation established by the Board of Directors to perform such duties and services as the
Board of Directors shall from time to time authorize in writing, including, but not limited to, the
following:

(a) to establish (with the approval of the Board of Directors of the
Association) and provide for the collection of the Assessments provided for in this Declaration
and to provide for the enforcement of liens therefor in a manner consistent with the law and the
provistons of this Declaration; and

(b) to provide for the care, upkeep, maintenance and surveillance of the
Common Area and Community Facilities; and

() to designate, hire and dismiss such personnel as may be required for the
good working order, maintenance and efficient operation of the Common Area and Community
Facilities; and

(d) to promulgate (with the approval of the Board of Directors of the
Association) and enforce such rules and regulations and such restrictions or requirements, “house
rules” or the like as may be deemed proper respecting the use of the Common Area and
Community Facilities; and

(e) to provide such other services (including legal and accounting services)
for the Association as may be consistent with law and the provisions of this Declaration.

Section 14.2. Duration of Management Agreement. Any management agreement
entered into by the Association shall provide, inter alia, that such agreement may be terminated
for cause by either party upon thirty (30) days’ written notice thereof to the other party. The
term of any such management agreement shall not exceed one (1) year; provided, however, that
the term of any such management agreement may be renewable by mutual agreement of the
parties for successive one (1)-year periods.

Any Management Agreement entered info while the Declarant is in control of the
Association must be terminable, without cause, any time after transfer of control, on not less than
thirty (30) nor more than ninety (90) days’ notice, and no charge or penalty may be associated
with such termination. '
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ARTICLE 15
NEIGHBORHOOD COMMITTEES

Section 13.1. Function. Owners and residents within the Property may serve on
Neighborhood Committees, established in accordance with this Article and any Administrative
Resolution adopted by the Declarant or the Board of Directors. Neighborhood Committees shall
serve in an advisory capacity with respect to issues and matters that relate to or are of particular
concern to the Owners or residents of the Neighborhoods represented by such Neighborhood
Committees.

Section 15.2. Neighborhood Committee Membership. Fach Neighborhood Committee
shall consist of an uneven number of not Iess than three (3) or more than five (5) individuals,
who shall be designated by the Board of Directors from among the Owners and residents of Lots
within the Neighborhood represented by such Neighborhood Committee, and who shall serve at
the pleasure of the Board of Directors.

Section 15.3. Neighborhood Committee Operations. Fach Neighborhood Committee
shall be responsible for establishing the rules and procedures applicable to its activities, provided
that the right of all Owners and residents of Lots within the Neighborhood served by any
Neighborhood Committee to meaningful participation in the Neighborhood Committee shall not
be abridged. Neighborhood Committees shall provide all Owners and residents within their
Neighborhood and the Board of Directors with reasonable prior notice of all Neighborhood
Committee meetings and all such meetings shall be open to all Members of the Association or
their agents in accordance with applicable law. Each Neighborhood Committes shall designate
one of its members as spokesperson for purposes of all meetings of the Board of Directors,
Covenant Committee and other Association committees attended by the Neighborhood
Committee. The designated spokesperson shall be the only member of the Neighborhood
Committee entitled to express the committee’s views at any such meeting.

Section 15.4. Neighborhood Committee Authority. Neighborhood Committees shall
generally be provided with a reasonable prior opportunity to comment, either in person or in
writing, on proposed actions by the Board of Directors, the Architectural Review Entity, the
Covenant Committee and all other Association committees that relate to the Neighborhood
served by such Neighborhood Committee. Neighborhood Committees shall serve as an advisory
conumittee to the Board of Directors with respect to issues and matters of particular concern to
the Owners and residents of the Neighborhood represented by such Neighborhood Committee,
including, but not limited to, the amount of Neighborhood Assessments and the manner of the
maintenance and repair of Neighborhood Common Area within the Neighborhood.
Neighborhood Committees shall serve as an advisory committee to the Board of Directors, the
Architectural Review Entity and the Covenant Committee with respect to the interpretation and
enforcement of the restrictive covenants established by Article 9 of this Declaration, and the
architectural controls established by Article 7 of this Declaration. The recommendations of a
Neighborhood Committee shall not be binding on the Board of Directors, the Architectural
Review Entity, the Covenant Committee or any other Association committes; provided,
however, that the Board of Directors, the Architectural Review Entity, the Covenant Committee
and any applicable Association committee shall make a reasonable effort to implement such
recommendations unless to do so would not be in the best interests of the Association as

45

IMANAGE: 311543 v.07 05724.0033
Ed, 09/26/2003



75300 09

determined by the Board of Directors, the Architectural Review Entity, the Covenant Committee
or applicable Association committee, in their sole discretion.

Section 15.5. Further Neighborhood Committee Provisions. The Declarant or the Board
of Directors may adopt Administrative Resolutions further defining the authority of
Neighborhood Committees, as well as Administrative Resolutions establishing further rules and
procedures to be followed by the Neighborhood Committees in connection with the exercise of
such authority.

ARTICLE 16
GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 16.1. Common_Area Responsibility. The Association, subject to the
rights of the Owners as set forth in this Declaration, shall be responsible for the exclusive
management and control of the Common Area, Community Facilities and any property, real or
personal, which the Association is delegated the responsibility for pursuant to any easement or
lease agreement, and all improvements thereon (including, without limitation, furnishings and
equipment related thereto, private drainage facilities and common landscaped areas), and shall
keep the Common Area, Community Facilities and such other property in good, clean, attractive,
and sanitary condition, order, and repair, pursuant to the terms and conditions hereof. The
Association shall accept title to any real estate or personal property offered to the Association by
the Declarant. The Association shall be responsible for monitoring compliance with the
requirements of any conservation easements and other restrictions imposed on the Common Area
by the Planning Board, and for periodically reminding the Lot Owners of these restrictions.

Section 16.2. Personal Property and Real Property for Common Use. The Association
may acquire, lease, hold, and dispose of tangible and intangible personal property and real
property, subject to the requirements of this Declaration. The Board of Directors, acting on
behalf of the Association, will accept any real or personal property, leasehold, or other property
interests within the Properiy conveyed to it by the Declarant.

Section 16.3.  Implied Rights. The Association may exercise any other right or privilege
given to it expressly by this Declaration or the Bylaws or any lease, easement or other agreement
or document affecting the Association, and every other right or privilege reasonably to be
mmplied from the existence of any right or privilege given to it herein or reasonably necessary to
effectuate any such right or privilege.

Section 16.4. Limitation of Liability. The Association shall not be liable for any failure
of any services to be obtained by the Association or paid for out of the Common Expense funds,
or for injury or damage to persons or property caused by the elements or resulting from water
which may leak or flow from any portion of the Common Area or Community Facilities or other
property within the control or supervision of the Association, or from any wire, pipe, drain,
conduit or the like. The Association shall not be liable to any Member for loss or damage, by
theft or otherwise, of articles which may be stored upon the Common Area, Community
Facilities or other property within the control or supervision of the Association. No diminution
or abatement of Assessments, as herein elsewhere provided for, shall be claimed or allowed for
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inconvenience or discomfort arising from the making of repairs or improvements to the Common
Area, Community Facilities or other property within the control or supervision of the
Association, or from any action taken by the Association to comply with any of the provisions of
this Declaration or with any law or ordinance or with the order or directive of any municipal or
other governmental authority.

Section 16.5. Enforcement.  Declarant, the Association, or any Owner, or any
Mortgagee of any Lot shall have the right to enforce, by any proceeding at law and/or in equity,
all restrictions, conditions, covenants, reservations, easements, liens, charges or other obligations
or terms now or hereafter imposed by the provisions of this Declaration, or the Articles of
Incorporation or Bylaws of the Association or any rule or regulation promulgated by the
Association pursuant to its authority as provided in this Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation
or Bylaws. Failure by the Association or by any Owner or by any mortgagee of any Lot to
enforce any covenants or restrictions herein contained or any provision of the Bylaws, Articles of
Incorporation or rules and regulations of the Association shall in no event be deemed a waiver of
the right to do so thereafter. There shall be and there is hereby created and declared to be a
conclusive presumption that any violation or breach or attempted violation or breach of any of
the within covenants or restrictions or any provision of the Bylaws or Articles of Incorporation
of the Association cannot be adequately remedied by action at law or exclusively by recovery of
damages. If the Association, or any Owner or Mortgagee of any Lot, successfully brings an
action to extinguish a violation or otherwise enforce the provisions of this Declaration or the
Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws of the Association, the costs of such action, including legal
fees, shall become a binding, personal obligation of the Owner committing or responsible for
such violation, and such costs shall also be a lien upon the Lot of such Owner, provided that the
requirements of the Maryland Contract Lien Act are substantially fulfilled.

Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, and in addition to any other
remedies available, the Association after reasonable notice, in writing, provided to the Owner,
may enter any Lot to remedy any violation of the provisions of this Declaration, the Bylaws,
Articles of Incorporation or rules and regulations of the Association provided, however, that the
Association may not enter the interior of any dwelling unit except in an emergency. The costs of
such action shall become a binding, personal obligation of the Owner otherwise responsible for
such violation and shall also be a lien upon the Lot of such Owner.

Section 16.6. Fines. In addition to the means for enforcement provided elsewhere
herein, the Association shall have the right to levy fines against an Qwner and such Owner’s
guests, relatives, lessees and invitees, in the manner set forth herein, and such fines shall be
collectible in the same manner as any other Assessment such that the Association shall have a
lien against the Lot of such Owner as provided in this Declaration, the Bylaws and the Articles of
Incorporation, and such fine(s) shall also become the binding personal obligation of such Owner.

(a) The Board of Directors or the Covenant Committee shall be charged with
determining if there is probable cause that any of the provisions of this Declaration, the Bylaws,
Articles of Incorporation or the rules and regulations of the Association, regarding the use of the
dwelling units, Lots, Common Area, Community Facilities or other Association property, are
being or have been violated. In the event that the Board of Directors or the Covenant Committee
determines an instance of such probable cause, the Board or the Covenant Committee shall
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provide written notice to the person alleged to be in violation, and the Owner of the Lot which
that person occupies or is visiting if such person is not the Owner, of the specific nature of the
alleged violation and of the opportunity for a hearing before the Board of Directors or the
Covenant Committee upon a request made within five (5) days of the sending of the notice. The
notice shall also specify, and it is hereby provided, that each recurrence of the alleged violation
or each day during which it continues shall be deemed a separate offense, subject to a separate
fine not to exceed a reasonable amount established by the Board for each offense. The amount of
the fine shall be based upon the costs and inconvenience caused to the Association and shall not
be a penalty. The notice shall also specify, and it is hereby provided, that in lieu of requesting a
hearing, the alleged violator or Owner may respond to the notice within five (5) days of its
sending, acknowledging in writing that the violation occurred as alleged and promising that the
violation will henceforth cease and will not recur, and that such acknowledgment and promise,
and performance in accordance therewith, shall terminate the enforcement activity of the
Association with regard to such violation.

(b) If a hearing is timely requested, the Board of Directors or the Covenant
Committee shall hold the same, and shall hear any and all defenses to the charges, including any
witnesses that the alleged violator, Owner, the Board of Directors or the Covenant Committee
may produce. Any party at the hearing may be represented by counsel.

(c) Subsequent to any hearing, or if no hearing is timely requested and if no
acknowledgment and promise is timely made, the Board of Directors or the Covenant Committee
shall determine whether there is sufficient evidence of a violation or violations as provided
herein. If the Board of Directors or the Covenant Committee determines that there is sufficient
evidence, it may levy a fine for each violation in the amount provided herein.

(d) A fine pursuant to this Section shall be assessed against the Lot which the
violator occupied or was visiting at the time of the violation, whether or not the violator is an
Owner of that Lot, and shall be collectible in the same manner as any other Assessment,
including by the Association’s lien rights as provided in this Declaration and the Bylaws.
Nothing herein shall be construed to interfere with any right that an Owner may have to obtain
from a violator occupying or visiting such Owner’s Lot payment of the amount of any fine(s)
assessed against that Lot.

(e) Nothing herein shall be construed as a prohibition of or limitation on the
right of the Association to pursue any other means of enforcement of the provisions of this
Declaration, the Bylaws, Articles of Incorporation or rules and regulations, including, but not
limited to, legal action for damages or injunctive relief,

Section 16.7.  Severability. Invalidation of any one of these covenants or restrictions by
judgment or court order shall in no way affect any other provisions, which shall remain in full
force and effect.

Section 16.8. Duration_and Amendment. Except where permanent easements or other
permanent rights or interests are herein created, the covenants and restrictions of the Declaration
shall run with and bind the land for a term of twenty (20) years from the date this Declaration is
recorded, after which time they shall be automatically extended for successive periods of ten (10)

48

IMANAGE: 311543 v.07 06724,0033
£d. 09/26/2003



23305 b10

years. This Declaration may be amended by an instrument signed by, or the affirmative vote of,
Owners entitled to cast not less than fifty-one percent (51%) of the total authorized votes of all
Owners. Any amendment must be recorded in the Land Records.

Section 16.9. Changes and Modifications by Declarant. The Declarant shall have the
right, for a period of fifteen (15) years following the date of recordation of this Declaration,
without the consent of the Members of the Association or any other party, to (i) modify, amend
or change any of the provisions of this Declaration as the Declarant may deem necessary or
desirable to correct errors or omissions herein, and (ii) amend this Declaration, the Articles of
Incorporation and the Bylaws of the Association, as the Declarant may deem necessary or
desirable, to change the name of the Association; provided, however, that so long as a Lot is
encumbered by a deed of trust or mortgage which is insured by FHA, then FHA shall have the
right to approve any material amendment, modification or change to this Declaration.

Section 16.10. FHA Approvals. Provided that any Lot subject to this Declaration is then
encumbered by a deed of trust or mortgage which is insured by FHA, and further provided that
there are then Class C memberships of the Association outstanding, neither the Members, the
Board of Directors, nor the Association shall by act or omission, take any of the following
actions without the prior written consent or approval of the FHA, as circumstances may require:

(a) change the basic organization of the Association including the merger,
cousolidation, or dissolution of the Association; or

(b) dedicate, convey, or mortgage the Common Area; or

() annex additional properties (other than an annexation by the Declarant as
provided in this Declaration); or

(d) otherwise materially modify or amend any provision of this Declaration,
the Bylaws or the Articles of Incorporation of the Association.

Section 16.11. Rights of the Marvland-National Capital Park and Planning Commission
(“Commission” herein). Any other provision of this Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation
or the Bylaws fo the contrary notwithstanding, neither the Owners, the Board of Directors nor the
Association shall, by act or omission, take any of the following actions without the prior written
consent of the Commission, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed:

(a) make any annexation or additions other than as provided in this
Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation or the Bylaws; or

(b) abandon, partition, dedicate, subdivide, encumber, sell or transfer any of
the Common Area; provided, however, that the granting of rights-of-way, easements and the like
for public utilities or for other purposes consistent with the use of the Common Area by the
Owners shall not require the consent of the Commission; or

_ (c) abandon or terminate this Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation or the
Bylaws; or
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(d)  modify or amend any material or substantive provision of this Declaration,
the Articles of Incorporation or the Bylaws; or

(e) merge or consolidate the Association with any other entity or sell, lease,
exchange or otherwise transfer all or substantially all of the assets of the Association to any other
entity; or

(f) substantially modify the method of determining and collecting
Assessments as provided for in this Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation or the Bylaws.

The Commission shall have the right to bring action for any administrative, legal
or equitable relief necessary to enforce the rights and powers granted to the Commission
hereunder.

Section 16.12. Casualty Losses. In the event of substantial damage or destruction to any
of the Common Area or Community Facilities, the Board of Directors of the Association shall
give prompt written notice of such damage or destruction to the Eligible Mortgage Holders who
hold First Mortgages of record on the Lots. No provision of this Declaration or the Articles of
Incorporation or the Bylaws of the Association shall entitle any Member to any priority over the
holder of any First Mortgage of record on his or her Lot with respect to the distribution to such
Member of any insurance proceeds paid or payable on account of any damage or destruction of
any of the Common Area or Community Facilities.

dection 16.13. Condemnation or Eminent Domain. In the event any part of the Common
Area or Community Facilities is made the subject matter of any condemmation or eminent
domain proceeding, or is otherwise sought to be acquired by any condemning authority, then the
Board of Directors of the Association shall give prompt written notice of any such proceeding or
proposed acquisition to the Eligible Mortgage Holders who hold First Mortgages of record on the
Lots. No provision of this Declaration or the Articles of Incorporation or the Bylaws of the
Association shall entitle any Member to any priority over the holder of any First Mortgage of
record on his or her Lot with respect to the distribution to such Member of the proceeds of any
condemnation or settlement relating to a taking of any of the Common Area or Community
Facilities.

Section 16.14. Notice to Eligible Mortgage Holders; Deemed Consent. The Association
shall give prompt written notice to each Eligible Mortgage Holder of (and each Owner hereby
consents to, and authorizes such notice):

(a) Any condemnation loss or any casualty loss which affects a material
portion of the Common Area, Community Facilities or any Lot subject to a First Mortgage or
security interest held, insured, or guaranteed by such Eligible Mortgage Holder.

(b) Any delinquency in the payment of Common Expense Assessments or
charges owed by an Owner whose Lot is subject to a First Mortgage or security interest held,
insured, or guaranteed, by such Eligible Mortgage Holder which remains uncured for a period of
sixty (60) days.
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(c) Any lapse, cancellation, or material modification of any msurance policy
or fidelity insurance maintained by the Association.

(d) Any other matter with respect to which Eligible Mortgage Holders are
entitled to notice or to give their consent as provided in this Declaration.

To be entitled to receive notice of the foregoing, the Eligible Mortgage Holder
must send a written request to the Association, stating both its name and address and the Lot and
Block designation or address of the Lot on which it has (or insures or guarantees) the mortgage.
Any Eligible Mortgage Holder or mortgagee who is notified of any matter for which it is entitled
to notice as provided herein (such notice to be delivered by certified or registered mail, return
receipt requested), and which fails to respond within thirty (30) days of receipt of such notice,
shall be deemed to have consented, if applicable, to the matter of which the Eligible Mortgage
Holder or mortgagee was provided notice.

Section 16.15, Declarant’s Power of Attorney. . Notwithstanding any provision to the
contrary contained in the Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws of the Association or this
Declaration, the Declarant hereby reserves for itself, its successors, transferees and assigns, for a
period of fifieen (15) years from the date of recordation of the first Supplementary Declaration
annexing all or any portion of the real property described on Exhibit “A” hereto, or until it
conveys title to the last Lot, whichever occurs first, the right to execute on behalf of all contract
purchasers, Owners, Eligible Mortgage Holders, mortgagees, and other lienholders or parties
claiming a legal or equitable interest in any Lot, Common Area or Community Facilities, any
such agreements, documents, amendments or supplements to this Declaration, the Articles of
Incorporation and Bylaws of the Association which may be required by FNMA, FHA, VA,
FHLMC, GNMA, or by Montgomery County, Maryland, any governmental or quasi-
governmental agency or authonty having regulatory jurisdiction over the Association, any public
or private utility company designated by the Declarant, any institutional lender or title insurance
company designated by the Declarant, or as may be required to comply with the Fair Housing
Amendments Act of 1988, as amended, to comply with the Act, or to comply with other
applicable laws or regulations.

(a) By acceptance of a deed to any Lot or by the acceptance of any other legal
or equitable interest in the Lots, Common Area or Community Facilities, each and every such
contract purchaser, Owner, Eligible Mortgage Holder, mortgagee or other lienholder or party
having a legal or equitable interest in any Lot, Common Area or Community Facilities does
automatically and irrevocably name, constitute, appoint and confirm the Declarant, its
successors, transferees and assigns, as attorney-in-fact for the purpose of executing such
agreement, document, amendment, supplement and other instrument(s) necessary to effect the
foregoing subject to the limitations set forth herein.

(b) No such agreement, document, amendment, supplement or other
instrument which adversely affects the value of a Lot, or substantially increases the financial
obligations of an Owner, or reserves any additional or special privileges for the Declarant not
previously reserved, shall be made without the prior written consent of the affected Owner(s) and
all owners of any mortgage(s) encumbering the Lots owned by the affected Owner(s). Any such
agreement, document, amendment, supplement or instrument which adversely affects the priority
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or validity of any mortgage which encumbers any Lot, Common Area or Community Facilities
shall not be made without the prior written consent of the owners of all such mortgages.

(c) The power of attorney aforesaid is expressly declared and acknowledged
to be coupled with an interest in the subject matter hereof and the same shall run with the title to
any and all Lots, Common Area and Community Facilities and be binding upon the heirs,
personal representatives, successors, fransferees and assigns of any of the foregoing parties.
Further, said power of attorney shall not be affected by the death or disability of any principal
and is intended to deliver all right, title and interest of the principal in and to said power of
attorney. Sald power of attorney shall be vested in the Declarant, its successors, transferees and
assigns until the initial conveyance of all Lots, Common Area and Community Facilities planned
to be annexed within the jurisdiction of the Association or the expiration of same.

Section 16.16. Taxes and Assessmenis. It is the intent of this Declaration that insomuch
as the interests of each Owner to use and enjoy the Common Area (and any other property to
which such Owner may have a right of use and enjoyment) is an interest in real property
appurtenant to each Lot, the value of the interest of each Owner in such Common Area (or other
property} shall be included in the assessment for each such Lot and as a result, any assessment
directly against such Common Area (or other property if the Association is responsible for the
real estate taxes levied thereon) should be of a nominal nature reflecting that the full value of the
same should be included in the several assessments of the various Lots.

Section 16.17. Successors_of Declarant. Any and all rights, reservations, easements,
interests, exemptions, privileges and powers of the Declarant hereunder, or any part of them,
may be assigned and transferred (exclusively or non-exclusively) by the Declarant by an
instrument, in writing, without notice to the Association.

Section 16.18. No Dedication to Public Use. Nothing herein contained shall be construed
as a dedication to public use or as an acceptance for maintenance of any Common Area or
Community Facilities by any public or municipal agency, authority, or utility and no public or
municipal agency, authority or utility shall have any responsibility or liability for the
maintenance or operation of any of the Common Area or Community Facilities.

Section 16.19. Incorporation by Reference on Resale. In the event any Owner sells or
otherwise transfers any Lot, any deed purporting to effect such transfer shall contain a provision
incorporating by reference the covenants, restrictions, servitudes, easements, charges and liens
set forth in this Declaration.

Section 16.20. Declarant Reserved Rights. No amendment to this Declaration, the
Bylaws or the Articles of Incorporation may remove, revoke, or modify any right, reservation or
privilege of the Declarant without the prior written consent of the Declarant or any successors or
assignees (pursuant to Section 16.17) of the Declarant.

Section 16.2]. Perpetuities. 1If any of the covenants, restrictions, or other provisions of
this Declaration shall be unlawfully void, or voidable for violation of the rule against
perpetuities, then such provision shall continue only until twenty-one (21) years after the death
of the last survivor of the now living descendants of Elizabeth II, Queen of England.
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Section 16.22. Declarant Development. As long as the Declarant has an interest in

" developing the Property or the Project, the Association may not use its financial resources,

directly or mdirectly, to defray the costs of opposing any development activities reasonably

consistent with the general intention of the Development Plan, as amended. Nothing in this

Section shall be construed to limit the nghts of Members to act as individuals or in affiliation
with other Members or other groups.

Section 16.23. Captions and Gender. The captions contained in this Declaration are for
convenience only and are not a part of this Declaration and are not intended in any way to limit
or enlarge the terms and provisions of this Declaration. Whenever the context so requires, the
male shall include all genders and the singular shall include the plural.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]

53

IMANAGE: 311543 v.07 06724.0033
Ed. 08/26/2003



7534b b0

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned, being the DECLARANT herein, has
executed this instrument this a%‘"l{’day of ,%gg% , 2003.

WITNESS/ATTEST: DECLARANT:

CLARKSBURG RIDGE,LLC,
a Maryland limited liability company

, By: AN S
;i;iﬁ:i;;a%f” Name: ZHomas A NG/EL,

RINT NAME]

Title: _uasrvs smasn.

[CORPORATE SEAL]

54

IMANAGE: 311543 v.06 08724.0033
Ed. 09/24/2003



253hb  b1b

* % %
*
3 ;5 ¥ to wits
COUNTY/€H¥ OF ﬁlégﬁm} *

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on this ,;d day of ep FEmAEL | 2003, before me, a
Notary Public, in and for the State and County " aforesaid, personally appeared
TH OB /4 4/;‘/2“7/ ", known to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the
i it e mss g of Clarksburg Ridge, LLC, 2 Maryland limited liability company, and
that such individual, in such capacity and being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing and
annexed instrument on behalf of such company for the purposes therein contained.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

v Notary Public

My Commission Expires: ¢ -/- 25

[NOTARIAL SEAL]

* % %

ATTORNEY’S CERTIFICATION

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing instrument was prepared by or under the
supervision of the undersigned, an attorney duly licensed to practice before the Court of Appeals

of Maryland. _

Gabrille Oswan Sgel
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Exhibit “A”

(Description of Property Subject to Declarant’s Right to
Unilaterally Annex Within the Association)
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DESCRIPTION OF
THE PROPERTY OF
LAWRENCE A. FUNT AND JOSEPH M. LeMENSE, JR.
CLARKSBURG (2"} ELECTION DISTRICT
MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND

Being part of the property conveyed to Lawrence A. Funt and
Joseph M, LeMense, Jr., from Ruth L. Comnery by a deed dated
January 18, 1988 and yecorded among the Land Records of Montgomery
County, Maryland in Liber 3708 at Folio 254 and being more
particularly described as follows

PARCEL CNE

Beginning for the same at a stone with tack found and the
beginning of the 2™ or North 16° 39' 40" East, 935.76 fool line
of the first or 11.846 acre parcel described in Liber 3708 at
Folio 254; thence running with part of said 27 deed line and
binding on, the 1** or Scuth 16° 42' 31" West, 862.04 foot line of
the thixd or 28.0428 acre parcel described in Liber 3708 at
Folio 254 the following course and distance

1. North 16° 47' 56" East, 938.85 feet to a stone found; thence
running with the 3% through 6%
lines of the first or 11.846 acre
parcel described in Liber 3708 at
Folio 254 and binding cn part of
tne 1°° and all of the 2™ through
4% lines as described in a deed
from Gecrge J. Marshall and Joan E.
Marshall to Henry Alan Waterman and
Marcella J. Waterman, his wife,
dated April 18, 1986 and recorded
among the Land Records of
Montgomery County, Maryland in
Liber 7088 at Folio 786 the
fullowing 4 courses and distances
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2. South 57° 47' 02" Bast, 73.27 feet to an iron pipe found;

thence
3. South 23° 38' 15" West, 185,71 feer to an iron pipe found;
thence_
4, séuth.48° 17' 48" East, 589.66 feet to a T-Bar found; thance
5, South 34° 36' 45" East, 180.44 feet to a T-Bar found on the

northwesterly right of way line of
Clarksburyg Road, formerly Maryland
Route 121 (50 foot wide right of
way) as shown on Mazyland State
Roads Commission Plat RNumber 10813;
thence running with the
northwesterly right of way line of
Clarksburg Road as shown on
Maryland State Reads Commission
Plats Numbered 10812 and 10813 the
following 3 courses and distances

6. South 34° 93¢ 28" West, 122.27 feet to a point; thence non-
tangent
7. 388.35 feet along the arc of a curve deflecting to the

left, having & radius of 1934.B6

feet {chord: South 2B° 18‘ 28" Westkt,
387.70 feet) to a point of
tangency; thence

8. South 22° 33 28" West, 1B87.831 feet to a point; thence
leaving the northwesterly right of
way line of Clarksburg Road and
running with part of the 10°" line
and all of the 1 line of the first
or 11.B46 acre parcel described in
Liber 3708 at Folio 254 and binding
on 1)} the last line described in a
deed from Russell C. Corey and
Marian F. Corey, his wife, to
Thomas W. Conley and Sally &,
Conley, hisg wife, dated October 1,
196% and recorded among the

. aforesaid Land Records in Liber

FUNT PROPERTY JOB KO. 523U3
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31420 at Folio 176; 2) the 1°° line
degeribed in a deed £rom Roberxrt D,
Hoffman to Ben Lewis Plumbing,
Heating and Air Conditioning, Inc.,
dated October 15, 1986 and recorded
among the Land Records of
Montgomery County, Maryland in
Liber 7347 at Folio 532; 3) the 2™
line described in a deed from
Wilbert T. Duncan and Helen B.
Duncan to Ben Lewis Plumbing,
Heating, & Air Conditioning, Inc.,
dated July 12, 1990 and recorded
among the Land Records of
Montgomery County, Maryland in
Liber 9402 at Folio 037; 4) the 1%
line of the second or 0.3906 acre
parcel described in the aforesaid
Liber 3708 at Polio 254: 5) the 2™
line described in a deed from Mary
H. Campbell to W.D. Pleasants, Sy .,
and W.D. Pleasants, Jr., dated
April 30, 1970 and recorded ameng
the Land Records of Montgomery
County, Maryland in Liber 3860 at
Folio 220 the following course and
distance

9. North 4%° 20° 40" West, 74.05 feet to a point; thence

160. North 45° 0B' 11" West, 534.03 feet to the point of
Beginning; centaining 512788 square
feet or 11.77222 acres of land.

PARCEL TWO

Beginning for the same at the beginning of the 1°% or South
44° 43' 50" East, 31.00 foot line of the second or 0.3906 acre
parcel described in Liber 3708 at Folio 254; =maid point also
being on the 1" or North 43° 00' West, 534.54 foot line of the
fiyat or 11.B46 acre parcel described in Liber 3708 at Folio
254, distant 73.61 feet from a stone found at the end thereof;
thence running with the 1°° line of said 0.3906 acre parcel and
pinding on the 1°¢ line of said 11.846 acre parcel the following
course and distance

FUNT PROPERTY JOB NO. 52%U3
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31.00 feel to a point; thence
running with the 2™ line of the
second or 0.3806 acre parcel
dezacribed in Liber 3708 at Folio
254 and binding on the 1*° line
described in a deed from Mary H.
Campbell to W.D. Pleasante, 5r.,
and W.D. Bleasants, Jr., dated
mpril 30, 1%70 and reccrded among
the Land Records of Montgomery
County, Maryland in Liber 3360 at
Folio 220 and the 1% line described
in a deed from Elizabeth Anne
Lackey to Ferguson/Anderson,
L.L.C., a Maryland limited
liability company, dated January
14, 1997 and recorded among the
Land Records of Montgomery County,
Maryland in Liber 14707 at Folio
355; the following course and
distance

546.54 feet to a point; thence
running with the 3 line of the
second or 0.3306 acre parcel
deseribed in Liber 3708 at Folio
254 and binding on the
northeasterly side of Maryland
Route 355 (variable width right of
way) the following course and
distance

31.30 feet to a point; thence
running with the 4™ line of the
second or 0.3906 acre parcel
described in Liber 2708 at Folio
254 and binding on the 1% line of
the fourth or 0.8928 acre parcel
described in Liber 3708 at Folio
254 the following course and
diagtance

JOBR KO. 528U3
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4. North 44° 15' 17" East, 551.23 feet to the Point of
Beginning; containing 17013 sguare
feet or 0.39056 acres of land.

PARCEL THRER

Beginning for the same at a point at the beginning of the
Ist or South 44° 28' 12% West, 551.23 foot line of the fourth or
¢.8928 acre parcel described in Liber 3708 at Folic 234; said
point also being on the 1°° or North 45° 00' West, 594.54 foot
line of the first or 11.846 acre parcel described in Liber 3708
at Foliop 254, digtant 73.61 feet from a stone found at the end

thereof; thence running with the 1" line of said 0.8%28 acre

parcel and binding on the 4™ line of the second or 0.3%06 acre
parcel described in Liber 3708 at Folio 254 the following course
and distance :

1. South 44° 15' 17" West, 551.23 feeb to a point; thence
running with the 2™ line of the
fourth or $.89%28 acare parcel
deseribed in Liber 3708 at Folio
254 and binding on the
northeasterly side of Maryland
Route 355 {variable width right of
way) the following course and
distance

2. North 53% 44! 43" West, 70.69 feet to a point; thence
running with the 3™ line of the
fourth or 0.8928 acre parcel
described in Liber 3708 at Folio
254 and binding on the 2™ line
described in a deed from Bernard M.
Frickx to Bernard M. Frickx and
Dawn M. Frickx dated October 22,
1998 and recorded among the Land
Records of Montgomery County,
Maryland in Liber 16477 at Felio
483 the following courge and
distance

FUNT PROPERTY JOB RO, 523U3
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3. North 44° 15' 17" Eagt, 561.8B1 feet to a point at the
beginning of the 4 or South 45°
28' 28" East, 70.01 foot line of
the fourth or 0.89%2B acre parcel
described in Liber 3708 at Folio
254; thence running with the 4%
line of gaid 0.8328 acre parcel and
binding on the 1°° line of the first
or 11.846 acre parcel described in
Liber 3708 at Folio 254 the
following course and distance

4. South 43° 08! 11" East, 70.01 feet to the Point of
Beginning; containing 389%8 sguare
feet or 0.89434 acres of land.

FARCEL FOUR

Beginning for the same at a stone found at the beginning of
the 1*F or South 16° 42°' 31" West, 882.04 foot line of the third
or 28,0428 acre parcel described in Liber 3708 at Folio 254;
thence running with the 1™ line of said 28.0428 acre parcel and
binding on the 2™ line of the first or 11.846 acre parcel
described in Liber 3708 at Folic 254 the following course and
distance

1. South 16° 47 56" West, 8B82.03 feet to a point; thence
running with the 2™ and 3™ lines of
the third or 28.0428 acre pazxcel
described in Liber 3708 at Folio
254 the following 2 courses and

distances
2. North 47° 51' 43" West, 276.88 feet to a point; thence
3, Spouth 41° 35! 32" West, 20.00 feet to a point; thence

running with the 4% and 5% lines of
the third or 25.0428 acre parcel
described in Liber 31708 at Folio
254, with the lines of an existing
wire fence, the following 2 courses
and distances

5. North 41° 53' 11" West, 165.39 feet to a point; thence

FUNT PROPERTY JOB NO. 5293
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5. North 71° 23' 50" West,

5. North 16° 46' 07" East,

7. North 59° 54' 38" East,

8. South 58° 557 Q5" East,
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451.10 feet to a point; thence
running with the 10" line of the
first or 22.0000 acre parcel
described in a deed f£rom Lutheran
Church Extengion Fund - Missgouri
Synod, a Missouri non-profit
corporation, to Clarksburg Ventura
Associates, a Maryland general
partnership, dated June 27, 1950
and recorded among the Land Records
of Montgomery County, Maryland in
Liber 95405 at Folio 618 the
fallowing course and distance

479.58 feet to a point; thence
running with the 8" line of the
firset or 22,0000 acre parcel
described in Liber 9405 at Folic
6§18 and the 3™ 1line of the second
or 23,9872 acre parcel described in
Liber 9405 at Folio 618 the
following course and distance

462 .62 feet to a point; thence
running with the 2™ line of the
seccnd or 23.3872 acre parcel
described in Liker %405 at Folio
618, all of the 12" line of the
third or 28.0428 acre parcel
descriped in Liber 3708 at Folio
254 and binding on part of the 1™
line as described in a deed from
George J. Marshall and Joan E.
Marshall to Henry Alan Watexrman and
Marcella J. Waterman, his wife,
dated April 18, 1986 and recorded
among the Land Records cf
Montgomery County, Maryland in
Liber 7088 at Folio 786 the
following course and distance

561,95 feet to the Point of
Beginning; containing 653431 square
feet or 15.00072 acres of land.
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This description is in accordance with a boundary survey
prepared by Rodgexs Consulting, Inc., dated June, 2002 and iz in
the Maryland State Plane Coordinate System, NAD 83/91.

\\snap2\projdocse\525u3\survey\funtl.doc
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DESCRIFTION OF
THE PROPERTY OF
RONALD R. LEWIS AND GEORGIA L. LEWIS, HIS WIFE, AND
JOHN A. BAKER AND KATHLEEN D. BAKER, HIS WIFE,
CLARKSBURG (2"°) ELECTION DISTRICT
MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND

Being all of the property conveyed to Ronald R. Lewis and
Georgia L. Lewlis, his wife, and John A. Baker and XKathleen D.
Baker, his wife, from Emory Edwards, by deed dated November 18,
1986 and recorded among the Land Records of Mantgomery County,

Maryland in Liber 7408 at Folio 277 and being more particularly
described as follows

PARCEL ONE

Beginning for the same at a point at the end of the g or
Noxth 34° 03' 28" East, 12.12 foot line of Parcel 1 zz dencribed
in Liber 7408 at Folic 277; thence running with said &*™ line,
reversed, and binding on the northwesterly right of way line of
Clarksburg Road, formerly Maryland Route 121 (50 foot wide right
of way) as shown on Maryland State Roades Commizsion Plat Number
10813 the following course and distance

1. South 34° 03' 28" West, 12,12 feet to a point; thence
running with the 5% and 4™ lines,
reversed, of Parcel 1 as desgcribed
in Liber 7408 at Folio 277 and
pinding on the 2™ and 1" lines of
Parcel 2 as described in Liber 7408
at Folio 277 the fellowing 2
coursges and digtances

2. North 47° 49' 50" West, 650.01 feet to a point; thence

LEWIE PROPERTY JOBE NO. 525U3
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3. North 30° 30' 20" Bast, 233.03 feet to a point; thence ruaning
with the 3, 2" and 1°% lines, '
reversed, of Parcel 1 ag degcribed
in Liber 7408 at Folio 277 and
binding on the southwestexly lines
of 2 plats of gsubdivision entitled
“CATAWBA MANOR” and recorded among
the Land Records of Montgomery
County, Maryland as Plar Number
21408 & 21405 the following 2
courges and distances

4. South 50° 27' 18" East, 29.83 feet to a t-bar found; thence
5. South 04° 04* Q0" West, 276.5C feet to a t-bar found; thence

g, South 47° 49' 50" East, 534.%% feet to the Point of
Beginning; containing 2B486& aquare
feet or 0.6538%4 acres of land,

PARCEL TWO

Beginning for the game at a point at the beginning of the
3" or South 34° 03' 28" West, 8.08 foot line of Parcel 2 as
described in Liber 7408 at Folio 277; thence rumming with said
3¢ line and binding on the northwesterly right of way line of
Clarksburg Road, formerly Maryland Route 121 (50 foot wide right
of way) as shown on Maryland State Roads Commigsion Plat Number
10812 and 10813 the following courege and digtance

1. South 34° 03* 2B" West, B.08 feet to an iron pipe found;
thence running with the 4" through
8" lines of Parcel 2 as described
ip Liber 7408 at Folic 277 the
following 5 courses and distances

2. North 47° 49! 50" West, 437 .85 feet, partly with a wood
fence line, to a point; thence

3. North &€3° 00+ 39" West, 102,27 feet with a wood fence line
to an iron pipe found; thence

LEWIS PROPERTY JOB NO. 523%U3
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4, North 49° 59 26" West, 132.37 feet with a wood fence line
to an iron pipe found; thence

5. Noxrth 04° 34' 21" West, 54.66 feet with a wood fence line to
a point; thence

6. North 28%° 58' 30" Rast, 234.91 feet with a wire fence line
to a peint; thence running with the
9™ line of Parcel 2 ae described in
Liber 7408 at Polie 277 and binding
on the southwesterly lines of a
plat of subdivision entitled
"CATAWBA MANOR* and recorded among
the Land Records of Montgomery
County, Maryland as Plat Number
21409 the following course and
distance

7, South 50° 27' 1B" East, 20.02 feet to a point; thencs
running with the 1™ and 2™ lines of
Parcel 2 ag deacribed in Liber 7408
at Folio 277 and binding on the 4%
and 5" lines of Parcel 1 as
degcribed in Liber 7408 at Folio
277 the following 2 courses and

distances
8. South 30° 30' 20" West, 233.03 feet to a point; thence
S. South 47° 49' 50" East, 690.01 feet to the Point of

Beginning; containing 15725 sguare
feet or 0.36100 acres of landg.

This description is in accordance with a boundary survey
prepared by Reodgers Consulting, Ine., dated June, 2002 and ig in
the Maryland State Plane Coordinate System, NAD B3/91.

y:\52%ul\purvey\lewlsl  dac
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'DESCRIPTION OF
THE PROPERTY OF
HENRY ALAN WATERMAN AND MARCELLA J. WATERMAN, HIS WIFE
CLARKSBURG {2} BLECTION DISTRICT
MONTGOMERY COUNTY, MARYLAND

Being all of the property conveyed to Henry Alan Waterman
and Marcella J. Waterman, his wife, from George J. Marshall and
Joan E. Marghall, tenants in commor by deed dated April 18, 1986
and recorded among Lthe Land Records of Montgomery County,
Maryland in Liber 708B at PFolio 786 the and being wore
particularly described as follows

Beginning for the same at an iron pipe found on the 5 or
North 34° 03*' 28" Fast, 253.78 foot line as described in Liber
7088 at Folio 786; said iron pipe found alsc being at the
beginning of the 4" line of Parcel 2 as described in a deed from
Emory Edwards to Ronald R. Lewls and Geocrgia L. Lewis, his wife,
and John A. Baker and Kathleen D, Baker, his wife, dated
November 18, 1286 and recorded among the Land Records of
Montgomery County, Maryland in Liber 7408 at Folio 277: thence
running with part of the 5" line, reversed, as described in
Liber 7088 at Folio 786 and binding on the northwesterly right
of way line of Clarksburg Road, formwerly Maryland Raute 121, (50
foot wide right of way) as shown on Maryland State Roads
Commisgion Plat Number 10812 and 10813 the following course and
distance

1. South 34% 03' 28" West, 233,18 feet to a t-bar found; thence
running with the with the 4°%, 3%
and 2™ and part of the 1st lines,
reverged, as described in Liber
7088 at Folio 786 and binding on the
3*% through & lines of the first eor
11.846 acre parcel described in
Libexr 3708 at Folic 254 the
following 4 courses and distances

2. North 34° 358' 45" West, 180.44 feet toc a t-bar found; thence

WATERMAN PROPERTY JOB NO, 525032
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3. North 48% 17' 48% West, 589.66 feet to an iron pipe found;

thence

4, North 23° 38' 15" East, 185.71 feet to an iron pipe found;
thence

5, North 57% 47' 02" West, 73.27 feet to a stone found; thence

running with part of the 1°° line,
reverged, as described in Liber
7088 at Folic 786 and binding on
the 12" line of the third or
28.0428 acre parcel degceribed in
Liber 3708 at Folio 254 following
course and digtance

6. North 58° 55' 05" West, 3B2.17 feet to a point; thence
: running with the 9™ line, reversed,
as described in Liber 7088 at Folio
786 the following course and
"distance

7. Noxrth 20% 40° 10" Eagt, 235.45 feet bto & poing; thence
running with part of the 8™ line,
reversed, as described in Liber
7088 at Feolio 786 and binding on
the southwesterly lines of a plat
of subdivigion entitled “CATAWBA
MANOR" and recorded among the Land
Records of Montgomery County,
Maryland as Flat Number 21408 the
following course and distance

g2. South 50° 277 18% East, 603.%4 feet to a point; thence
running with the 4" through B%
lines of Parcel 2, reversed as
described in the aforesaid deed
recorded in Liber 7408 at Folio 277
the following 5 courses and
distances

2. South 29% 58! 30" West, 234.91 feet with a wire fence line
to a point; thence

'WATERMAN PROPERTY JOB NO. 52503
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10. South 04° 34' 21" Bast, 54.66 feet with a wood fence line to
an iron pipe found; thence

11. South 48° 59' 26" EBast, 132.37 feet with a wood Ffence line
to an iron pipe found; thence

12. South 83° 00' 39" East, 102,27 feet with a wood fence line
to a peint; thence

13. South 47° 48° 50" Eagg, 437.85 feet, partly with a wood
fence line, to the Point of
Beginning; containing 307327 square
feet or 7.05825 acres of land.

This description is in accordance with a boundary survey
prepared by Rodgers Consulting, Inc., dated June 2802 and ig in
the Maryland State Plane Coordinate System, NAD 83/91.

y:\52%ud\survey\watezman doc
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RESIDENTIAL INTEGRATED PEST MANAGEMENT PLAN

IPM Compliance:

In order to maintain the community areas in an environmentally sensitive manner and to
minimize the use of chemical pesticides, the Association shali comply with the
~ Integrated Pest Management (IPM) Plan as follows:

Clarksburg Ridge integrated Pest Management (IPM) Plan

The purpose of this article is to establish an integrated Pest Management (IPM) Plan to
be applied by the Homeowners Association (HOA) on community areas within
Clarksburg Ridge. This IPM plan has been developed in recognition that IPM provides a
safer method of pest management that minimizes the use of pesticides.

L The HOA shall take all reasonable measures to select and maintain healthy
plants. This may be accomplished as follows:

A.

B.

C.

Selecting plants that are pest resistant. Native plants tend to have the
greatest resistance to pests.

Selecting plants that will remain healthy in the locations they are selected
for. Variables to consider include amount of sunlight, amount of moisture
required, soil considerations, etc.

Adequate site preparation and installing the plants properly.

1. The maintenance program will be set up as to limit exposure of the landscape to
pest problems. This'-may be accomplished as follows:

A.

B.

Selecting qualified contractors familiar with the use of IPM and
establishing that IPM shall be utilized in addressing pest concerns.
Practicing proper and correct cultural methods of plant maintenance,
including root pruning, limb pruning, raking, mulching, destruction of
heavily infected plants, fertilization, composting, etc.

ldentifying predatory species of the pests and maximizing their use to
reduce pest problems. When this method is considered, evaluation must
be given fo other known environmental consequences of utilizing a natural
predator and the factors must then be considered in making the decision
to utilize or not utilize a predatory species.

1. The HOA will actively identify pest-induced problems. Factors associated with
this process are as follows:

A
B.

Monitoring plants for the presence and/or level of infestation of pests.
Recognizing that the mere presence of a pest is not a reason in itself to
control. Establishing thresholds below which pests and related aesthetic
problems can be tolerated.

Tolerating damage that will not have long term effects on the plant.
Focussing management activities on the parts of the landscape that are
most prone to pest problems.

Considering all factors associated with the damage so as to identify
damage that may have occurred after the plant was weakened by other
problems.

Accurately identifying the pest, its host, and the life cycle of both.
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The HOA will make an educated and environmentally sensitive decision on how
to deal with pest induced problems using the following principles.

A.

LG MmO

Weighing the benefits of control against other factors such as potential
hazards to the property and the environment, worker and public health
and safety, efficacy and economics.

Acquiring all relevant knowledge in regards to the pest life cycle and the
host growth cycle in order to determine treatment.

When control is necessary, consider the options in the following order-
physical/mechanical control; 2) biological control; 3) soft chemicals (i.e.
soaps, olls, elc); 4) other pesticides

If pesticide application is required, evaluating se!ec’uon based on a
pesticide’s environmental fate and ecological impact.

Do not use pesticides on a scheduled or preventative basis.

Applying materials at the time they will be most efficacious against the
target pests and have minimal impact on beneficials.

Targeted spraying for pest problems and not cover spraying.

Reading and following the labels of all pesticides and taking every
precaution in their use.

y\528u2itech\environmental\ipm-hoa-language.doc
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CLERK’S INDEX SHEET

{For the purpose of proper indexing only)

Tax 1.D. No,
02-03403887
(2-03403898
02-03403901
02-03403912
02-03403923
02-03403945
02-03403956
02-03403967
02-03403978
02-03403980
02-03403991
02-03404005
02-03404016
02-03404027
02-03404038
02-03404040
02-03404051
02-03404062
02-03404073
02-03404107
02-03404118
02-03404120
02-03404133

02-03404142

02-03404153
02-03404164
02-03404175
02-03404186
02-03404197
02-03404200
02-03404211
02-03404222
02-03404233
02-03404244
02-03404255
02-03404266
02-03404277
02-03404288
02-03404290
(2-03404302
02-03404313
02-03404324
02-03404335
02-03404346
02-03404357
02-03404415
02-03404426
02-03404437
02-03404448
02-03404450
02-03404461

Sireet Address

13314 Catawba Manor Way
13316 Catawba Manor Way
13318 Catawba Manor Way
13320 Catawba Manor Way
13322 Catawba Manor Way
13323 Catawba Manor Way
13325 Catawba Manor Way
13327 Catawba Manor Way
13329 Catawba Manor Way
23518 Clarksburg Road
23516 Clarksburg Road
23514 Clarksburg Road
23512 Clarksburg Road
23401 Winemmller Way
23403 Winemiller Way
23405 Winemiller Way
23407 Winemiller Way
23409 Winemiller Way
23411 Winemiller Way
23433 Tailor Shop Place
23430 Winemiller Way
23420 Winemilier Way
23426 Winemiller Way
23424 Winemiller Way
23422 Winemiller Way
23420 Winemiller Way
23418 Winemiller Way
23416 Winemilier Way
23414 Winemiller Way
23412 Winemller Way
23410 Winermiler Way
23408 Winemilier Way
23406 Winemitler Way
23404 Winemiller Way
23402 Winemiller Way
23433 Tailor Shop Place
23435 Tailor Shop Place
23437 Tailor Shop Place
23439 Tailor Shop Place
23441 Tailor Shop Place
23443 Tailor Shop Place
23445 Tailor Shop Place
23447 Tailor Shop Place
23448 Tailor Shop Place
23451 Tailor Shop Place
23508 Clarksburg Road
23506 Clarksburg Road
23504 Clarksburg Road
23502 Clarksburg Road
23500 Clarksburg Road

11 Webster Hill Court

Plat Ref,
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22438
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22489
22489
22489
22489
22489
22489
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02-03404472
(2-03404483
02-03404454
02-03404506
02-03404517
02-03404528
02-03404530
02-03404541
02-03404552
02-03404574
02-03404385
02-03404596
02-03404608
02-03404621
02-03404665
02-03404676
02-03404687
02-03404698
02-03404701
02-03404712
02-03404723
02-03404734
02-03404745
02-03404756
02-03404767
02-03404778
02-03404780
02-03404791
02-03404803
02-03404814
02-03404825
02-03404836
02-03404847
02-03404858
02-03404860
02-03404871
(2-03404882
02-03404893
02-03404905
02-03404916
(42-03404927
(2-03404938
(2-03404940
02-03404951
02-03404984
02-03404995
02-03405000
02-03405011
02-03405022
02-03405033
02-03405044
02-03405055
02-034050066
02-03405077
02-02405088
02-03405090

9 Webster Hill Court

7 Webster Hill Court

5 Webster Hiil Court

3 Webster Hill Court

1 Webster Hilt Court

13 Webster Hill Court

15 Webster Hill Court

17 Webster Hill Court

19 Webster H:ll Court
13101 Tannery Ridge Drive
13103 Tannery Ridge Drive
13105 Tannery Ridge Drive
13107 Tannery Ridge Drive
23400 Winemiller Way
23450 Tailor Shop Place
23448 Tailor Shop Place
23446 Tailor Shop Place
23442 Tailor Shop Place
23440 Tailor Shop Place
23438 Tatlor Shop Place
23436 Tailor Shop Place
23434 Tatior Shop Place
13200 Dutrow Drive

13202 Dutrow Drive

13204 Dutrow Drive

13206 Dutrow Drive

13208 Dutrow Drive

13210 Dutrow Drive

13301 Catawba Manor Way
13303 Catawba Manor Way
13305 Catawba Manor Way
13307 Catawba Manor Way
12201 Dutrow Drive

13203 Dutrow Drive

13205 Dutrow Drive

13207 Dutrow Drive

13209 Dutrow Drive

13000 Catawba Manor Way
13302 Catawba Manor Way
13304 Catawba Manor Way
13306 Catawba Manor Way

- 13308 Catawba Manor Way

13310 Catawba Manor Way
13312 Catawba Manor Way
13201 Webster Hill Way
13203 Webster Hill Way
13205 Webster Hill Way
13207 Webster Hill Way
13209 Webster Hill Way
13211 Webster Hill Way
23401 Tailor Shop Place
23403 Tailor Shop Place
23405 Tailor Shop Place
23407 Tailor Shop Place
23409 Tailor Shop Place
13122 Tannery Ridge Drive

[}
fad
o

22489
22489
22489
22489
22489
22489
22489
22489
22489
22489
22489
22489
22489
22489
22490
22490
22450
22490
22490
22490
22490
22490
22450
22450
22450
22490
22450
22490
22490
22490
22490
22490
22490
22490
22490
22490
22490
22490
22490
22490
22490
22490
22490
22490
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491

e

o

i3



13
14
15
16
17
i8
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
18
15
20
21
22
23
24
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
10
11
12
13
14
I3
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
23

27

oo o
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02-63405102
02-63405113
02-03405135
02-03405146
02-03405157
02-03405168
02-03405170
02-03405181
02-03405192
02-03405204

- 02-034065215

02-03405226
02-03405237
02-03405248
02-03405250
02-03405261
(2-03405272
02-03405283
02-03405294
02-03405306
02-03405317
02-03405328
02-03405330
02-03405341
02-03405352
02-03405363
02-03405374
02-03405385
02-03405396

102-03405408

02-03405410
02-03405421
02-03405432
02-03405443
02-03405454
02-03405465
02-03405476
02-03405487
02-03405498
02-03405501
02-03405512
02-03405523
02-03405534
02-03405545
02-03405556
02-03405567
02-03405578
02-03405580
02-03405591
02-03405603
02-03405614
02-03405625
02-03403876
02-03403934
02-03404084
02-03404095

75
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13120 Tannery Ridge Drive
13118 Tannery Ridge Drive
23422 Tailor Shop Place
23424 Tailor Shop Place
23426 Tailor Shop Place
23428 Tailor Shop Place
23430 Tailor Shop Place
23412 Tailor Shop Place
23414 Tatlor Shop Place
23416 Tatlor Shop Place
23418 Tatlor Shop Place
23420 Tailor Shop Place
23408 Tailor Shop Place
23406 Tailor Shop Place
23404 Tailor Shop Place
23402 Tailor Shop Place
23400 Tailor Shop Place
13111 Tannery Ridge Drive
13113 Tannery Ridge Drive
13115 Tannery Ridge Drive
13117 Fammery Ridge Drive
13119 Tannery Ridge Drive
13121 Tanmery Ridge Drive
13123 Tannery Ridge Drive
13218 Dutrow Drive

13220 Dutrow Drive

13222 Dutrow Drive

13224 Dutrow Drive

13226 Datrow Drive

13228 Dutrow Drive

13230 Dutrow Drive

13232 Dutrow Drive

13211 Datrow Drive

13213 Dutrow Drive

13215 Dutrow Drive

13219 Dutrow Drive

13221 Dutrow Drive

13223 Dutrow Drive

13225 Dutrow Drive

13227 Dutrow Drive

13229 Dutrow Drive

13231 Datrow Drive

3 Dutrow Drive

14 Dutrow Drive

12 Dutrow Drive

10 Dutrow Drive

8 Dutrow Drive

6 Dutrow Drive

4 Dutrow Drive

2 Dutrow Drive

133C1 Dutrow Way

13303 Dutrow Way
Catawba Manor Way
Winemiller Way
Winemiller Way
Winemiller Way

22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
2249]
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22492
22492
22492
22492
22492
22492
22492
22492
22492
22492
22492
22452
22492
22492
22492
22492
22492
22492
22492
22492
22492
22452
22492
22492
22492
22492
22492
22492
22438
22438
22438
22488
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Grantor: Clarksburg Ridge LLC
200 East Lombard Street

Suite 1400
Baltimore, MD 21202

Grantee: N/A
Consideration: None

Title Insurer: N/A

After Recording Return to;
Linowes and Blocher LLP
7260 Wisconsin Avenue
Suite 800

Bethesda, Maryland 20814
Attn: Douglas M. Irvin, Esq.

343762 vl 06724.0033

02-03404368
02-03404370
02-03404381
(2-03404392
02-03404404
02-03404563
02-03404610
02-03404632
02-03404643
02-03404654
02-03404962
02-03404973
02-03405124
02-03405636
02-03406083
02-03405647

Clarksburg Road
Tannery Ridge Drive
Webster Hill Way
Webster Hill Way
Webster Hill Court
Tannery Ridge Drive
Tannery Ridge Drive
Tatlor Shop Place
Dutrow Drive

Tailor Shop Place
Tailor Shop Place
Tailor Shop Place
Tailor Shop Place
Dutrow Court
Catawba Manor Way
Catawba Manor Way

22489
22489
22489
22489
22489
22489
22489
22490
224590
22490
22481
22491
22491
22493
22493
22493
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Parcel LD Parcel A Block B 02-03404610

Addresa: Webster Hill Way, |
Clarksburg Maryland S
S3

08
4]
33“;&

DECLARATION OF COVENANTS

A
This DECLARATION, made this _{ zﬁ day of Sr“»l;?{ , ZO06, by and
between Clarksburs Ridee Homeowners Association, Inc. (hereinsfter called the HOA) and

Montgemery County, Maryland (hereinafter called the County).
WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the developer Clarksburg Ridee, LLC (hereinafter called the Declarant)

desires to make certain improvements within the public right-of-way for the benefit of the

HOA, being part of that parcel of land conveyed by Lawrence A. Funt to Clarksburg Ridge,

LLC, (formerly known as Natelli Clarksburg, LLC)Y , by deed dated July 18, 2002 and

recorded at Liber 21561 Folio 443 amoang the Land Records of Montgomery Coundy,
Maryland, said improvements consisting of a brick paver sidewalk across Parcel A, Block

B. partially lvine within the right of way for Webgter Hill Wav, a 50 foot wide public right

of way per Montgomery County Department of Permitting Services Revocable Agreement

No. RA — 103y

WHEREAS, the County shall agree to said improvements promptly upon the

execution and due recording of this DECLARATION among the Land Records of

Montgomery County.
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NOW, THEREFORE DECLARANT AND HOA covenants the following:
1. The Declarant sgrees to indemnify and hold, harmless the County against any and all
actions, suitg, claims, demands, lability, loss or damage arising out of or in connection with
the installation of the abeve described improvements.
2. The HOA agrees to indemmify and hold harmless the County against any and all actions,
guits, claims, demands, liability, loss or damage arising ouk of or in connection with the
maintenance or use of the above daseribed improvements.
3. The HOA agrees, continually and at all times, fo maintain in good and safe condition the
above described ivyprovements in the public right-ofway.
4. The ITOA agrees that should the County order any of the said improvements in whole or
in part to be remaoved, such removal shall be at the expense of the Declarant or the
aubsequent owner of the premises, and that the HOA will save the County harmless for any
gxpenses incurred therefrom. Should the County, in order to maintain its facilities within
the said public right-of-way, be required to remove said improvementa, the County will not
be required fto replace ssid improvemants and the HOA will save the County harmless for
any damages that ay occur to said improvements. Upon execution and recording, this
DECLARATION shall run with the land and shall become a binding instrurment upon the
Declarant and HOA and any subsequent representatives, Successors or a&séigns of the HOA.
This Declaration cannot be terminated without the County's approval.
5. This Declaration ghall remain in full force and effect until such time as the
improvements are removed in their entirety by the owner or subsequent cwner from said
public right-of-way. Release of this Declaration may not ocour without writien approval
from the County. The County may, in its sole discretion, unilaterally terminate this

Declaration at any time,
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In TESTIMONY WHEREOT, the said Declarant and FHOA have hereunto set their

hands and seals the day and year firat above written.

(larksburg Ridge Homeowners Agsociation, Ine.

C@‘ U . (SEAL)

Shawn puller Bpo ~d Preid..3

STATE OF MARYLAND

COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY

L HEREBY CERTIFY that on this i%% day of iﬁ_}j\u i . 2008, before
the undersigned officer, a notary public in and for the State and é{mnty aforesaid,

personally appeared, S‘w L !Yh‘f ferm . authorized agent or officer of Clayksburg

Ridee Homeowners Association, Ine, and known to me or proven to be the person whose
name is subscribed to the within instrument and did acknowledge that he executed the

same for the purposes therein contained and signed the same in my presence.

IN WITNESS WIHEREOQF, T hereunto set my hand and offjcial seal,

o,

SMONE GREMILON  (Notary Paiblish———"
NOTARY PUBLIC STATE OF MARYLARD
My Comrdssion Expires Apnl 23, 2007
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Clarkshurg Ridge, LLC

fﬂ /{7‘ ' W (SEAL)

STATE OF MARYLANT)

COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY

!
I HERERY CERTIFY that on this [/ E day of L\,/ML , 2008, before

the undersigned officer, 4 notary public in and for the State and County aforesaid,

personally appea.raiMd \ '1 authorized agent or officer of Clarkgburg
Ridge. LLLC, and known to me or proven to be the person whose name is subscribed to the

within instrument and did acknowledge that he executed the same for the purposes therein

contained and signed the same in my presence.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

My Commission Fixpires: '7/5959’/ Og
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2-3/8" x 4" x 8" BRICK PAVERS

AGED STONE QAKX BLEND
ADHESIVE COAT
1/8"x5" STEEL ETHGE FR{ME (BLACK) 34" BITUMINOUS SETTING BED
1 51
BOLTED TO COMCRETE SLAE /F PRIME COAT }

U2 ed's MACHINE BOLT, NUT

AND W ASHER (18" T2 TYP) 2 348"

|o]e

S
e 676" W2 IAWLE WELDED WIRE FARRIC
CONTINUQUS WITHIN CONCRETE SLAB

\‘ CONCRETE 5LAB
6 MIL. VAPOR BARRIER
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WEBSTER HILL'S PARCEL =
%
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&
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g
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g
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CLARKSBURG RIDGE . I
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SUPPLEMENTARY DECLARATION OF
COVENANTS CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS FOR

THIS SUPPLEMENTARY DECLARATION, is made on the date hereinafter set forth by
CLARKSBURG RIDGE, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company (hereinafter referred to as

“Declarant”).

RECITALS: TP FTSBE
RECORIIHE FEE

S

Al Immediately prior to the recordation of this Supplementary Declag%%t%n”%ﬁcia FEhE

recorded among the Land Records of Montgomery County, Maryland (the “Laq;drﬁ 8 T
certain Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for Clarksburg Rldge

Homeowners Association, Inc. (heretnafter referred to as the “Declaration”, which term shall
include any and all subsequent corrections, modifications and supplements thereof as may be

recorded among the Land Records).

m-i-

!,ﬁ;;! LRER o]

- B. Pursuant to Article 2, Section 2.1, of the Declaration, Declarant has reserved the
unilateral right to subject all or any portion of the real property described on Exhihit “A” to the
Declaration to the operation and effect of the Declaration, regardless of the ownership of such real
property, for a period of fifteen (15) years from the date of recordation by Declarant of the first

%“[Supplementary Declaration annexing all or any portion of the real property described on

;?"_' Exhlbl.tf_‘AZ to the Declaration.

‘ C. Declarant desires to extend the scheme of the covenants and restrictions of the
: _\Deciaratlon to certain Lots and Common Area, as described on Exhibit “A” hereto (hereinafter
. referred to as the “Property”), in accordance with Article 2 of the Declaration.

vide B 35q

NOW, THEREFORE, Declarant hereby declares that the Property shall be and is hereby
made subject to the operation and effect of the Declaration, so that the Property shall be deemed
included within the scheme of the covenants and restrictions of the Declaration and fully subject
to the operation and effect of the Declaration, including each and every covenant, condition,

restriction and easement set forth therein,

Words or phrases defined in Article 1 of the Declaration shall have the same meaning in
this Supplementary Declaration as provided for in Article 1 of the Declaration.

[SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW]|
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A

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the undersigned has executed this instrument this Jp —day of

: 5{;472 s BE . 2003

WITNESS/ATTEST:

[CORPORATE SEAL]

IMANAGE: 343763 v.1 08724.0033
£d. 9/25/2003

DECLARANT:

CLARKSBURG RIDGE,LLC,
a Maryland limited lability company

o AN S

Name: 7%pmp8 4. ABre/l
Tile: Ziwapag 2l BEC
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® % &
STATE OF MARYLAND
. to wit:
COUNTY OF WM
[ HEREBY CERTIFY that on this 26/ day of SurBmpsse. , 2003, before me, a

Notary Public, in and for the State and County aforesaid, personally appeared
THsmAS A /%?JE//, known to be (or satisfactorily proven) to be the

Il e %, of Clarksburg Ridge, LLC, a Maryland limited liability company, and
that Such individual, being anthorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument on behalf of
such limited liability company for the purposes therein contained.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

.M%/I%/’\

My Commission Expires: G-r-0Y

[NOTARIAL SEAL]

ATTORNEY'S CERTIFICATE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing document was prepared by or under the
supervision of the undersigned, an attorney duly licensed to practice before the Court of Appeals

.

Gl tlle ([Seman Siged
Attorney 7

IMANAGE: 343763 v.1 DBT24.0033 3
Ed. 9/25/2003
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CLARKSBURG RIDGE

CLARKSBURG (2"} ELECTION DISTRICT
’ e IV RY Bk Y MARVYT.A [}

£ £% TS,

Lots 8 through 12, inclusive, Block F; Lots 1 through 8, inclusive, Block G; Lots 13 through 18,
inclusive, Block G; Lots 1 through 16, inclusive, Block H; and Lots 25 through 34, inclusive,
Block H, as shown on a plat of subdivision entitled “LOTS 8-12 & PARCEL A, BLOCK F,
LOTS 1-8, 13-18 & PARCEL A, BLOCK G, LOTS 1-16, 25-34 & PARCELS A AND B,
BLOCK H, CLARKSBURG RIDGE”, recorded among the Land Records of Montgomery
County, Maryland on March 7, 2003 as Plat Number 22488.

Lots 1 through 15, inclusive, Block A; Lots 9 through 12, inclusive, Block G; and Lot 17, Block
H, as shown on a plat of subdivision entitled “LOTS 1-15 AND PARCELS A, B, C, D AND E,
BLOCK A, LOTS 9-12 AND PARCEL B, BLOCK G, LOT 17, BLOCK H AND PARCEL A,
BLOCK B, CLARKSBURG RIDGE”, recorded among the Land Records of Montgomery
County, Maryland on March 7, 2003 as Plat Number 22489,

Lots 1 through 14, inclusive, Block D; Lots 1 through 9, inclusive, Block E; and Lots 1 through
7, inclusive, Block F, as shown on a plat of subdivision entitled “LOTS 1-14 AND PARCELS A,
B, AND C, BLOCK D, LOTS 1-9, BLOCK E AND LOTS 1-7, BLOCK F, CLARKSBURG
RIDGE?”, recorded among the Land Records of Montgomery County, Maryland on March 7,
2003 as Plat Number 22490.

Lots 1 through 14, inclusive, Block C; Lots 15 through 29, inclusive, Block D; and Lots 18
through 24, inclusive, Block H, as shown on a plat of subdivision entitled “LOTS 1-14 AND
PARCELS A AND B, BLOCK C, LOTS 15-29 AND PARCEL D, BLOCK D, LOTS 18-24,
BLOCK H, CLARKSBURG RIDGE”, recorded among the Land Records of Montgomery
County, Maryland on March 7, 2003 as Plat Number 22491.

Lots 30 through 37, inclusive, Block D; Lots 10 through 27, inclusive, Block E and Lots 1 and 2,
Block I, as shown on a plat of subdivision entitled “LOTS 30-37, BLOCK D; LOTS 10-27,
BLOCK E; AND LOTS 1-2, BLOCK I, CLARKSBURG RIDGE”, recorded among the Land
Records of Montgomery County, Maryland on March 7, 2003 as Plat Number 22492,

Parcel A, Block F; Parcel A, Block G; and Parcels A and B, Block H, as shown on a plat of
subdivision entitled “LOTS 8-12 & PARCEL A, BLOCK F, LOTS 1-8, 13-18 & PARCEL A,
BLOCK G, LOTS 1-16, 25-34 & PARCELS A AND B, BLOCK H, CLARKSBURG RIDGE”,

recorded among the Land Records of Montgomery County, Maryland on March 7, 2003 as Plat
Number 22488,

I I 'i ’[ 11 g EEl
(Description of the Property)

Page 1 of 2
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Parcels A, B, C, D and E, Block A; Parcel B, Block G; and Parcel A, Block B, as shown on a plat
of subdivision entitled “LOTS 1-15 AND PARCELS A, B, C, D AND E, BLOCK A, LOTS 9-
12 AND PARCEL B, BLOCK G, LOT 17, BLOCK H AND PARCEL A, BLOCK B,
CLARKSBURG RIDGE”, recorded among the Land Records of Montgomery County, Maryland
on March 7, 2003 as Plat Number 22480.

Parcels A, B, and C, Block D, as shown on a plat of subdivision entitled “LOTS 1-14 AND
PARCELS A, B, AND C, BLOCK D, LOTS 1-9, BLOCK E AND LOTS 1-7, BLOCK F,
CLARKSBURG RIDGE”, recorded among the Land Records of Montgomery County, Maryland
on March 7, 2003 as Plat Number 22490,

Parcels A and B, Block C and Parcel D, Block D, as shown on a plat of subdivision entitled
“LOTS 1-14 AND PARCELS A AND B, BLOCK C, LOTS 15-29 AND PARCEL D, BLOCK
D, LOTS 18-24, BLOCK H, CLARKSBURG RIDGE”, recorded among the Land Records of
Montgomery County, Maryland on March 7, 2003 as Plat Number 22491,

Parcel A, Block E; Parcel A, Block J; and Parcel A, Block K, as shown on a plat of subdivision
entitted “PARCEL A, BLOCK E, PARCEL A, BLOCK J, AND PARCEL A, BLOCK K,
CLARKSBURG RIDGE”, recorded among the Land Records of Montgomery County, Maryland
on March 7, 2003 as Plat Number 22493,

In addition to the rights of the Declarant to modify and amend the Declaration of
Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions, the Declarant reserves the right to amend
unilaterally the foregoing Supplementary Declaration as may be necessary (i) to correct the
legal description set forth on this Exhibit “A” and (ii) to confirm the lien, operation and
effect of the foregoing Supplementary Declaration with respect to any Lots or parcels that
are re-subdivided.

Return to:

Linowes and Blocher LLP

7200 Wisconsin Avenue, Suite 800
Bethesda, Maryland 26814

Attn: Douglas M. Irvin, Esq.

I E '] 'g (14 2 3
(Description of Property)

Page 2 of 2



Lot/Parcel

Block
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CLERK'S INDEX SHEET

{For the purpose of proper indexing only)

Tax 1.D. No.
02-03403887
02-03403893
(2-03403501
02-03403912
(2-03403923
02-03403945
02-03403956
02-03403967
02-03403978
02-03403980
02-03403991
02-03404005
02-03404016
02-03404027
02-03404038
02-03404040
02-03404051
02-03404062
02-03404073
02-03404107
02-03404118
02-03404120
02-03404131
02-03404142
02-03404153
02-03404164
02-03404175
02-03404186
02-03404197
02-03404200
02-03404211
02-03404222
02-03404233
02-03404244
02-03404255
02-03404266
02-03404277
02-03404288
02-03404290
02-03404302
02-03404313
02-03404324
02-03404335
02-03404346
02-03404357
02-03404415
02-03404426
02-03404437
0203404448
02-03404450
02-03404461

Street Address

13314 Catawba Manor Way
13316 Catawba Manor Way
13318 Catawba Manor Way
13320 Catawba Manor Way
13322 Catawba Manor Way
13323 Catawba Manor Way
13325 Catawba Manor Way
13327 Catawba Manor Way
13329 Catawba Manor Way
23518 Clarksburg Road
23516 Clarksburg Road
23314 Clarksburg Road
23512 Clarksburg Road
23401 Winemiller Way
23403 Winemiller Way
23405 Winemiller Way
23407 Winemiller Way
23409 Winemiller Way
23411 Winemiller Way
23453 Tailor Shop Place
23430 Wmemilier Way
23420 Winemniller Way
23426 Winemiller Way
23424 Winemiller Way
23422 Winemilier Way
23420 Winemiller Way
23418 Winemiller Way
23416 Winemiller Way
23414 Winemiller Way
23412 Winenuiler Way
23410 Winemiller Way
23408 Winemiller Way
23406 Winemiiler Way
23404 Winemiller Way
23402 Winemiller Way
23433 Tailor Shop Place
23435 Tailor Shop Place
23437 Tailor Shop Place
23439 Tailor Shop Place
23441 Tailor Shop Place
23443 Tailor Shop Place
23445 Tailor Shop Place
23447 Tailor Shop Place
23449 Tailor Shop Place
23451 Tailor Shop Place
23508 Clarksburg Road
23506 Clarksburg Road
23504 Clarksburg Road
23502 Clarksburg Road
23500 Clarksburg Road

11 Webster Hili Court

10t

Plat Ref.
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22488
22489
22489
22489
22489
22489
22489
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02-03404472
02-03404483
02-03404454
02-03404506
02-03404517
02-03404328
02-03404520
02-03404541
02-03404552
02-03404574
02-03404585
(2-034045986
02-03404608
02-02404621
02-03404665
02-03404676
02-03404687
02-03404698
02-03404701
02-03404712
02-03404723
02-03404734
02-03404745
02-03404756
02-03404767
02-03404778
02-03404780
02-03404791
02-03404803
02-03404814
02-03404825
02-03404836
02-03404847
02-03404858
02-03404860
02-03404871
02-03404882
02-03404893
02-03404905
02-03404916
(2-03404627
02-034040638
02-03404940
02-03404951
02-03404984
0203404995
02-03405000
02-63405011
02-03405022
02-03405033
02-03405044
02-03405053
02-03405066
02-03405077
02-03405088
02-03405090

9 Webster Hill Court

7 Webster Hill Court

5 Webster Hill Court

3 Webster Hili Coust

1 Webster Hill Court

13 Webster Hili Court

15 Webster Hiil Court

17 Webster Hiil Court

19 Webster Hill Court
13101 Tannery Ridge Drive
13103 Tannery Ridge Drive
13165 Tannery Ridge Drive
13147 Tannery Ridge Drive
23400 Winerniller Way
23450 Tailor Shop Place
23448 Tailor Shop Place
23446 Tailor Shop Place
23442 Tailor Shop Place
23440 Tailor Shop Place
23438 Tailor Shop Place
23436 Tailor Shop Place
23434 Tailor Shop Place
13200 Dutrow Drive

13202 Dutrow Drive

13204 Dutrow Drive

13206 Dutrow Drive

13208 Dutrow Drive

13210 Dutrow Drive

13301 Catawba Manor Way
13303 Catawba Manor Way
13305 Catawba Manor Way
13307 Catawba Manor Way
13201 Dutrow Drive

13203 Dutrow Drive

13205 Dutrow Drive

13207 Dutrow Drive

13209 Duirow Drive

13000 Catawba Manor Way
13302 Catawba Manor Way
13304 Catawba Manor Way
13306 Catawha Manor Way
13308 Catawba Manor Way
13310 Catawba Manor Way
13312 Catawba Manor Way
13201 Webster Hill Way
13203 Webster Hill Way
13205 Webster Hill Way
13207 Webster Hill Way
13209 Webster Hill Way
13211 Webster Hill Way
23401 Tailor Shop Place
23403 Tailor Shop Place
23405 Tailor Shop Place
23407 Tailor Shop Place
23409 Tailor Shop Place
13122 Tannery Ridge Drive

753hb

22489
22489
22489
22489
22489
22489
22489
22489
22489
22489
22489
22489
22489
22489
22490
22490
22490
22490
22490
22490
22490
22490
22490
22490
22490
22490
22490
22490
22490
22490
22490
22490
22490
22490
22490
22490
22490
22490
22490
22490
22490
22490
22490
22490
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491

22491
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02-03405102
02-03405113
02-03405135
02-03405146
02-03405157
02-03405168
02-03405170
02-03405181
02-03405192
(2-03405204
02-03405215
02-03405226
02-03405237
02-03405248
02-03405250
02-03403261
02-03405272
(2-03405283
(2-03405294
02-03405366
02-03405317
(2-03405328
02-03405330
02-03405341
02-03405352
02-03405363
02-03405374
02-03405385
02-034053%6
02-03405408
02-03405410
02-03405421
02-03405432
02-03405443
02-03405454
02-03405465
02-03405476
(02-03405487
02-03405498
02-03405501
02-03405512
02-03405523
02-03405534
02-03405545
02-03405556
02-03405567
02-03405578
02-03405580
02-03405591
02-03405603
02-03405614
02-03405625
02-03403876
(2-03403934
02-03404084
02-03404095

13120 Tamnery Ridge Drive
13118 Tannery Ridge Drive
23422 Tailor Shop Place
23424 Tailor Shop Place
23426 Tailor Shop Place
23428 Tailor Shop Place
23430 Tailor Shop Place
23412 Tailor Shop Place
23414 Taiior Shop Place
23416 Tailor Shop Place
23418 Tailor Shop Place
23420 Tailor Shop Place
23408 Tailor Shop Place
23406 Tailor Shop Place
23404 Tailor Shop Place
23402 Tailor Shop Place
23400 Tailor Shop Place
13111 Tannery Ridge Drive
13113 Tannery Ridge Drive
13115 Tannery Ridge Drive
13117 Tannery Ridge Drive
13119 Tannery Ridge Drive
13121 Tannery Ridge Drive
13123 Tannery Ridge Drive
13218 Dutrow Drive

13220 Dutrow Drive

13222 Dutrow Drive

13224 Dutrow Drive

13226 Dutrow Drive

13228 Dutrow Drive

13230 Dutrow Drive

13232 Dutrow Drive

13211 Dutrow Drive

13213 Dutrow Drive

13215 Dutrow Drive

13219 Dutrow Drive

13221 Dutrow Drive

13223 Dutrow Drive

13225 Dutrow Drive

13227 Dutrow Drive

13229 Dutrow Drive

13231 Dutrow Drive

5 Dutrow Drive

14 Duirow Drive

12 Dutrow Drive

10 Dutrow Drive

8 Dutrow Drive

6 Dutrow Drive

4 Dutrow Drive

2 Dutrow Drive

13301 Dutrow Way

13303 Dutrow Way
Catawba Manor Way
Winemiller Way
Winemiller Way
Winemiller Way

22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22491
22492
22492
22482
22492
22492
22492
22492
22492
22492
22492
22492
22492
22492
22492
22492
22492
22492
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22492
22492
22492
22492
22492
22492
22492
22492
22492
22492
22488
22488
22488
22488
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Grantor: Clarksburg Ridge LLC
300 Bast Lombard Street

Suite 1400
Baltimore, MD 21202

Grantee: N/A,

Consideration:  None

Title Insurer: N/A

After Recording Return to:
Linewes and Blocher LLP
7200 Wisconsin Avenue
Suite 800

Bethesda, Maryland 20814
Attn: Douglas M. Irvin, Esq.

343762 v} 067240083

02-03404368
02-03404370
(2-03404381
02-03404392
02-03404404
02-03404563
02-03404610
02-03404632
02-03404643
02-03404654
02-03404562
(2-03404973
02-03405124
02-03405636
02-03406083

- 02-03405647

Clarksburg Road
Tannery Ridge Drive
Webster Hill Way
Webster Hill Way
Webster Hilt Court
Tannery Ridge Drive
Tannery Ridge Drive
Tailor Shop Place
Dutrow Drive

Tailor Shop Place-
Tailor Shop Place
Tailor Shop Place
Tailor Shop Place
Dutrow Coust
Catawba Manor Way
Catawba Manor Way

22489
22489
22489
22489
22489
22489
22489
224590
22490
22490
22491
22491
22491
22493
22493
22453
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BYLAWS
Or

CLARKSBURG RIDGE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

ARTICLE 1
NAME AND LOCATION

The name of the corporation is CLARKSBURG RIDGE HOMEOWNERS
ASSOCIATION, INC., hereinafter referred to as the “Association”. The initial principal office
of the corporation shall be located at 300 East Lombard Street, Baltimore, Maryland 21202, but
meetings of Members and Directors may be held at such places within or outside the State of
Maryland as may be designated by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE 2
DEFINITIONS

Section 2.1, “Administrative Resolutions” are rules, policies and/or procedures,
adopted by the Board of Directors, for implementing provisions of the Declaration, these Bylaws
and the Articles of Incorporation of the Association, as more fully described in Article 8 of these
Bylaws.

Section 2.2, “Annual Assessments” shall mean and refer to the assessments levied
against all Lots within the Property to fund the Common Expenses, not including Special
Assessments, Neighborhood Assessments, or Neighborhood Special Assessments.

Section 2.3,  “Assessments” shall mean and refer collectively to any Annual
Assessment, Special Assessment, Neighborhood Assessment, Neighborhood Special
Assessment, and all other fees and charges, including all installments thereof, as may be levied
by the Association in accordance with the Declaration.

Section 2.4.  “Association” shall mean and refer to CLARKSBURG RIDGE
HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC., a Maryland nonstock corporation, its successors and
assigns.

Section 2.5.  "Common Area” shall mean and refer to all real property owned, leased or
maintained by the Association (including the Community Facilities and all other Common Area
improvements) for the common use and enjoyment of the Owners. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, in the event the Association maintains all or any portion of any Lot(s), such property
shall not be considered Common Area. The term Common Area shall be deemed to include
“Neighborhood Common Area” (as defined below).



Section 2.6, “Community Facilities” shall mean and refer to any and all improvements
and facilities located upon the Common Area including, without limitation, recreational facilities
(if any), which are operated and maintained by the Association for the commeon use and
enjoyment of the Owners.

Section 2.7.  “Common Expenses’ shall mean and refer to the actual and estimated
expenses of operating the Association, including, without limitation, a reasonable reserve and
expenses for the maintenance of the Common Area in accordance with Article 10 of the
Declaration, all as may be found to be necessary or appropriate by the Board of Directors
pursuant to the Declaration, these Bylaws and the Articles of Incorporation of the Association.

Section 2.8.  "Declarant” shall mean and refer to Clarksburg Ridge LLC, a Maryland
limited liability company, and its successors and assigns if such successors or assigns should
acquire more than one undeveloped Lot from the Declarant for the purpose of development, but
only to the extent that all or any portion of the rights, reservations, easements, interests,
exemptions, privileges and/or powers of the Declarant are specifically assigned or transferred to
any such successors or assigns by an instrument in writing.

»

Section 2.9.  “Declaration” shall mean and refer to the Declaration of Covenants,
Conditions and Restrictions applicable to the Property recorded among the Land Records for
Montgomery County, Maryland, including any amendments and supplements thereto.

Section 2.]10. “Equity Resolutions” shall mean and refer to those actions of the Board of
Directors which create additional covenants, conditions and/or restrictions with respect to the
Lots, the Common Area and/or the Neighborhood Common Area, as more fully described in
Article 8 of these Bylaws. '

Section 2.11.  “Lot” shall mean and refer to any plot of land designated as a separate
subdivided lot of record upon any recorded subdivision plat of the Property upon which the
planned or actual improvements are primarily intended for use and occupancy as a residential
Living Unit. No Lot shall be counted twice in any situation whete it may fall within more than
one of the foregoing descriptions. The term Lot shall not include Common Area or outlots of
property dedicated for public use. The term Lot shall be deemed to refer collectively to Single-
Family Detached Lots and Townhouse Lots.

Section 2.12.  "Member” shall mean and refer to every person, group of persons,
corporation, partnership, trust, or other legal entity, or any combination thereof, who holds any
class of membership in the Association.

Section 2.13.  "Mortgagee” shall mean the holder of any recorded mortgage, or the party
secured or beneficiary of any recorded deed of trust, encumbering one or more of the Lofs,
“Mortgage”, as used herein, shall include deeds of trust, “First Mortgage”, as used herein, shail
mean a mortgage with priority over all other mortgages. As used in the Declaration, the term
“mortgagee” shall mean any mortgagee and shall not be limited to institutional mortgagees. As
used 1n the Declaration, the term “institutional mortgagee™ or “institutional holder” shall include
banks, trust companies, insurance companies, mortgage insurance companies, savings and loan
assoclations, trusts, mutual savings banks, credit unions, pension funds, mortgage companies,
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Federal National Mortgage Association (“FNMA”), Government National Mortgage Association
(“GNMA”), Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (“FHLMC”), all corporations and any
agency or department of the United States Government or of any state or municipal government,
or any other organization or entity which has a secunty interest in any Lot. In the event any
mortgage 1s msured by the Federal Housing Administration (“FHA™) or guaranteed by the
Department of Veterans Affairs (“VA”), then as to such mortgage the expressions “mortgagee”
and “institutional mortgagee™ include the FHA or the VA as the circumstances may require,
acting, respectively, through the Federal Housing Commission and the Secretary of Veterans
Affairs or through other duly authorized agents.

Section 2.14.  “Neighborhood” shall mean and refer to any group of Lots which are
hereafter annexed within the jurisdiction of the Association by Declarant pursuant to Article 2 of
the Declaration and which are designated by Declarant as constituting all or a portion of
specified Neighborhood of Lots in the Supplementary Declaration annexing such Lots. The term
Neighborhood shall also mean and refer to any group of Lots designated as constituting all or a
portion of a specified Netghborhood of Lots by the Declarant or the Board of Directors based on
such factors as are deemed appropriate by the Declarant or the Board, including, without
limitation, the location and proximity of such Lots, any special features or amenities within or
serving such Lots, any special services provided to or requested by the Owners or residents of
such Lots, and the input of interested Owners and residents within the Property.

Section 2,15, “Neighborhood Assessments™ shall mean and refer to assessments for
those portions of the Common Expenses, if any, as may be levied against the Lots within a
specified Neighborhood in accordance with Section 5.10 of the Declaration.

Section 2.16.  “Neighborhood Committee” shall mean and refer to any committee
comprised of the Owners and/or residents of Lots within a specified Neighborhood, as may be
established by the Board of Directors in accordance with Article 15 of the Declaration.

Section 2.17.  “Neighborhood Common Area” shall mean and refer to any Common
Area which is hereafter annexed within the jurisdiction of the Association by Declarant pursuant
to Article 2 of the Declaration and which is designated by Declarant as being for the primary or
exclusive use and benefit of a specified Neighborhood in the Supplementary Declaration
annexing such Common Area. The term Neighborhood Common Area shall also mean and refer
to any Common Area designated as being for the primary or exclusive use and benefit of a
- specified Neighborhood by the Declarant or the Board of Directors based on such factors as are
deemed appropriate by the Declarant or the Board, including, without limitation, the location and
proximity of such Neighborhood to the Common Area, any special features or amenities within
the Common Area serving such Neighborhood, and the input of interested Owners and residents
within the Property.

Section 2.18. "'Neighborhood Special Assessment” shall mean and refer to any
assessment levied by the Association against Lots within a specified Neighborhood in
accordance with Section 5.11 of the Declaration.

Section 2.19.  “Owner” shall mean and refer to the record owner, whether one or more
persons or entities, of fee simple title to any Lot which is a part of the Property, including
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contract sellers, but excluding those having such interest merely as security for the performance
of an obligation. )

Section 2.20.  “Project” as used in these Bylaws shall refer to the Property.

Section 2.21.  “Property” shall mean and refer to all real property as may hereafter be
brought within the jurisdiction of the Association pursuant to Article 2 of the Declaration.

Section 2.22.  “Single-Family Detached Lot shall mean and refer to any Lot upon
which there is construed, or is intended to be constructed, a single-family detached dwelling unit.

Section 2,23, “Special Assessment” shall mean and refer to any assessment levied by
the Assoctation in accordance with Section 5.4 of the Declaration.

Section 2.24. “Townhouse Lot shall mean and refer to any Lot upon which there is
constructed, or 1s intended to be constructed, a smgle-family attached or semi-attached
townhouse dwelling umt.

Any other capitalized terms used herein shall be defined as set forth in the Declaration unless
specifically provided otherwise in these Bylaws,

ARTICLE 3
MEETING OF MEMBERS

Section 3.1.  Annual Meetings. The first annual meeting of the Members shall be held
within twelve (12) months from the date of filing of the Articles of Incorporation of the
Association, and each subsequent regular annual meeting of the Members shall be held during
the same month of each year thereafter or such other reasonably similar date as may be selected
by the Board of Directors. If the day for the annual meeting of the Members is a legal holiday,
the meeting will be held at the same hour on the first day following which is not a legal holiday.

Section 3.2.  Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Members may be called at any
time by the President or by the Board of Directors, or upon written request of the Members who
are entitled to vote not less than twenty percent (20%) of the votes of each class of Members.

Section 3.3.  Notice of Meetings. Written notice of each meeting of the Members shall
be given by, or at the direction of, the Secretary or person authorized to call the meeting, by
mailing a copy of such notice, postage prepaid, or hand delivering a copy of such notice, at least
ten (10) days (but not more than ninety (90) days) before such meeting to each Member entitled
to vote thereat, addressed to the Member’s address last appearing on the books of the
Association, or supplied by such Member to the Association for the purpose of notice. Such
notice may be waived upon the declaration of an emergency by the person calling the meeting.
Such notice shall specify the place, day and hour of the meeting, and, in the case of a special
meeting, the purpose of the meeting. All meetings of the Members shall be held at places and
times convenient to the greatest number of Members.

Section 3.4.  (uorum. The presence at the meeting of Members entitled to cast, or of
proxies entitled to cast, twenty percent (20%) of the votes of each class of Members shall

4
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